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COMPANY PROFILE
DA N

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757), is a leading
supplier of solar energy services. Its products are not only sold to
customers in the mid-stream industries, but also directly to end users.

During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the following
businesses:

(@  the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules;

(b)  the construction and operating of photovoltaic power plants;
and

(¢)  the manufacture and trading of semiconductor, the trading of
monocrystalline silicon solar cells and others.

The Group now focuses on the manufacturing and sales of downstream
photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic industry. Among them the
major customers of photovoltaic modules are large domestic state-
owned enterprises, multinational corporations and other photovoltaic
end-user customers. This enables the Group to fully demonstrate its
current advantages in the production of such products. Moreover,
the Group is engaged in the installation of photovoltaic systems and
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance of
photovoltaic generation plants.

As of the end of December 2023, the module production capacity of
the Group was 9.8GW.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MEMR

Five-Year Financial Summary EFEMBEHE
RMB'000 ARETT
2022
2019 2020 2021 (Restated)
—E-CF
—T-NEF —ZoTF ZTZ-F (E5)
Revenue N 4,425,552 6,051,956 4,640,843 6,869,362 7,192,853
Gross profit EF 341,368 585,852 404,997 271,264 458,003
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHB/(H8) (354,358) (196,367) 302,352 1,112,088 141,668
Profit/(loss) attributable to SERERARRENFE,/

owners of the parent (B#8) (355,492) (215,648) 193,222 957,163 111,906
Basic earnings/(loss) per share ~ ERERAEF /(FE)

(RMB cents) (ARED) (11.07) (6.82) 5.84 28.80 3.37
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,606,272 1,743,154 2,166,354 1,004,472 929,930
Current assets MBEE 2,822,908 3,858,549 4,124,818 6,732,819 4,738,265
Current liabilities nEBERE 3,578,792 4,822,316 4,893,543 6,117,099 4,121,752
Non-current liabilities ERBER 394,822 439,391 725,350 414,494 353,334
Net assets BETE 455,566 339,996 672,279 1,205,698 1,193,109
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
GROW TO ACHIEVE SUCCESS
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TAN Wenhua,
Executive Director and Chairman

BMXE PTEERIE

In 2023, the global economy has gradually recovered from the impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic. Although confronting with high inflation,
continued geopolitical conflicts, risks faced by global industry chain
and supply chain, and lackluster trade and investment, global economy
still maintained moderate growth of 3.1%. In 2023, China's GDP grew
by 5.2% year-on-year, which has been the weakest since the country
closed its border for three years due to the pandemic and since 1990.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FREEE

Dear honorable shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited,
| am pleased to present our annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBKES

Despite the difficult global economic and operating environment in the
past year, global photovoltaic (PV) industry still delivered outstanding
performance, with installed capacity showing rapid growth. According
to the latest report published by the International Energy Agency
(IEA), the global installed capacity of renewable energy reached nearly
510GW and surged by nearly 50% last year. Of the total newly installed
capacity, that of PV accounted for about three-quarters, close to
about 375GW in 2023, up by approximately 31.8% for the year. In
2023, the newly installed PV capacity reached approximately 216GW,
approaching the total newly installed capacity in the four years from
2019 to 2022.

Compounded further by the continuous upgrade of technological
standards, expansion of the scale of manufacturing and installed
capacity applications in the industry, and the continuous reduction in
PV power generation costs, the strong development potential for the
PV industry has attracted many companies to enter and the PV industry
has been facing fierce competition. In 2023, the entire PV industry
chain in China experienced temporal and structural overcapacity issue,
and prices in the upstream and downstream sectors have dropped,
entering the stage of "involution" and "reshuffle".

In the face of various challenges, our Group, leveraging its extensive
experience, expertise, and well-established management system,
is confident in its ability to overcome them. During the Year, we
strengthened market research and analysis, while formulating flexible
business strategies and plans to optimize our business layout, reduce
costs, enhance efficiency, and mitigate risks. Moreover, we successfully
established a diversified market presence, solidifying relationships with
existing customers, expanding our customer base, and actively pursuing
overseas markets to drive sales growth.

Furthermore, we increased the proportion of high-quality production
capacity, and improved the production efficiency of our intelligent and
digital production lines. We also optimized supply chain management,
timely captured market information to help us make quick and accurate
judgment to reduce costs and improve operational efficiency. By
providing high-quality products that can precisely meet customers'
needs, we have ultimately boosted our profitability.

Benefiting from the above strategies, the Group’s revenue for the
year under review reached RMB7,192.9 million, up 4.7% year-on-
year. Gross profit was RMB458.0 million and gross profit margin was
6.4%. Excluding the one-off gain from the disposal of the business
in FY2022, the Group recorded a profit for the year from continuing
operations of approximately RMB141.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. This was a significant turnaround from a loss to a
profit compared to the loss for the year from continuing operations
of approximately RMB134.7 million recorded for the year ended 31
December 2022. Total production capacity in various places reached
9.8GW of modules a year.
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Prospects

With the signing of the “Paris Agreement”, countries around the world
have reached a consensus on the development of renewable energy to
solve the problem of global warming. Generally speaking, in 2023, the
global energy structure continued to transform, moving forward with
diversification, and on the going clean and low-carbon tracks. Against
that backdrop, plus such favorable factors as advancing technologies
helping reduce power generation cost, demand for installed PV
capacity of countries and regions worldwide, including China, has
remained strong. Guided by her carbon dioxide peaking and carbon
neutrality goals, China has kept pushing ahead with development in
the renewable energy realm. Innovation and upgrade of PV power
generation technology combining with energy storage technology will
help solve the issue of interruption in PV power generation, making
power systems more stable. Optimum allocation of power resources
will also be realized with the construction of smart grids. With policies
and technological innovation giving it support, the PV industry has a
promising future.

At present, with sustainable development worldwide restricted by
environmental degradation and scarcity of resources, a comprehensive
reform of the energy system is imperative. Further development and
use of renewable energy and existing energy sources going clean and
low-carbon will be the basic trend of energy development. Among
the different types of renewable energy, solar power comes with
such advantages as requiring little resources, low carbon emissions
and high power generation efficiency. For a long time, at the push
of PV companies, the PV module industry has advanced in terms
of cost control, smart application, production capacity expansion,
technological innovation, and product development, as such, has
realized sustainable development and is looking at huge development
opportunities.

Solargiga, as one of the leading manufacturers in China specializing
in the production of advanced monocrystalline silicon PV module
products, will continue to enhance the influence of its brand and
market channels, as well as its technical strengths, in order to maintain
advantages and competitiveness. With our existing customers in mind,
we will continue to broaden our sales channels, plus tighten business
relationship with more state-owned enterprises, by improving our
global business layout and the collaborative use of strategic resources
along our industrial chain. We will enhance penetration in key markets
such as China, Europe, the Americas, and India. Simultaneously, we will
actively develop sales networks both domestically and internationally,
covering regions such as Asia, Europe, Latin America, the Middle
East, and Africa. This strategic approach aims to diversify our market
channels, expand our market share, and ultimately boost sales volume
while mitigating the impact of trade barriers.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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In addition, we will systematically increase high-quality production
capacity by introducing advanced automation production technology
and equipment to our major production base in Jiangsu, to improve
production efficiency and quality. With the help of Internet of
Things and big data analysis, we will pursue intelligent and digital
management of production processes. At the same time, via designing
for flexible production, we will be able to meet the needs of the
market and customers for product types and mass output in the fast
evolving PV technology environment. We will also build the second
phase of the Jianhu base into the most advanced N-type production
capacity in the industry to enhance our profit margins through offering
cutting-edge technology products, and build the Jinzhou base into a
customized production line for overseas customers to increase profits
through product differentiation.

Another strategic move we will undertake is to intensify our efforts
in product technology innovation and the conversion of technological
advancements. This will involve constructing new module laboratories
and test lines, implementing high-end cutting-edge technologies, and
ensuring the timely transformation of technological achievements.
For example, our collaboration with Zhejiang University and Westlake
University on the development of shared perovskite has already yielded
results. Through technological innovation, we can not only drive
product innovation, but also continuously reduce costs and consolidate
our leading position and enhance profitability.

As for operation and production management, we will strengthen
cooperation and integration of supply chains, and continue to reduce
the cost of raw and auxiliary materials. In addition, we will also increase
digital applications to achieve information sharing and improve office
efficiency. Our Group is committed to strengthening talent training
and team building to enhance our core competitiveness, as well as
improving manpower efficiency, reducing expenditure on redundant
manpower and other unnecessary areas, and strengthening cash flow
in order to provide financial support for the sustainable development.

According to the IEA report, in the next five years, China will generate
more new renewable energy than the rest of the world combined.
China, accounting for approximately 80% of the global PV module
production, holds the title of the world's largest solar PV module
producer. Over the past decade, its significant contribution has led to
an impressive reduction of over 80% in solar module prices. This has
played a pivotal role in supporting countries worldwide to expand their
adoption of solar PV technology. We believe that the PV industry is
currently facing both challenges and opportunities. With over 20 years
of experience in the PV industry, Solargiga is dedicated to excelling in
the field. We remain committed to delivering high-quality PV products,
along with technical support and comprehensive after-sales services
and solutions to customers worldwide. By doing so, we aim to drive the
advancement of the clean energy industry and seize the opportunities
presented by the "golden age" of the PV industry.

Chairman
TAN Wenhua

27 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Market Overview

As global climate change becomes increasingly serious, countries are
accelerating the development and deployment of renewable energy.
According to a report issued by the International Energy Agency
(IEA), in 2023, the world’s newly installed renewable energy capacity
increased by 50% vyear-on-year, reaching 510GW, of which solar
photovoltaics (PV) accounted for around three quarters. By early 2025,
renewable energy such as PV will become the world's most important
source of electricity. Amid the energy transition trend last year, the
global PV industry continued to accelerate its development, and the
scale of the industry has reached new heights. Global installed PV
power generation capacity surpassed hydropower for the first time,
becoming the most cost-effective energy source in most countries.
According to the annual report issued by the IEA, newly installed global
solar PV capacity was projected to reach 375GW in 2023, with total
installed capacity growing by 31.8% year-on-year.

As the market with the strongest demand in the world, China's PV
industry continued to grow in volume and quality last year. The annual
newly installed solar PV capacity was 216.9GW, a year-on-year increase
of 148.12%, which is equivalent to the newly installed global solar PV
capacity in 2022 and close to the total newly installed PV capacity in
China for the previous four years. According to China’s 2023 power
industry statistics released by the National Energy Administration, the
country’s cumulative installed power generation capacity was 2.92
billion kilowatts (kW), up 13.9% year-on-year. Of this, 610 million kW
were installed solar power generation capacity, a growth of 55.2%
year-on-year.

As a key sector showing steady progress under the “dual carbon” goal,
China’s PV industry has ample room for development, with brilliant
performance in PV product output and export. However, the industry
also needs to address challenges such as overcapacity in mid-to low-
end products and a sustained price decline. Module prices fell from
around RMB1.8 per watt at the beginning of the year to below RMB1
per watt, leading to a price and cost inversion. Despite the challenges,
the PV industry still shows strong potential for growth. China has also
led the world in terms of PV module output for 16 consecutive years,
accounting for more than 80% of global output and capacity.

As the development of China's PV market has matured after a
period of rapid development, TrendForce expects the growth rate
of China's newly installed PV capacity to slow to 210GW in 2024,
an increase of 11% vyear-on-year. The average price of electricity is
expected to fall with the gradual progress of power system reform.
In addition, the close to depletion of grid-connected capacity
allocated to household PV users in various regions, declining
economic benefits of projects and stricter grid-connected control
may lead to a profound adjustment in demand for household PV
installations in China in 2024. The PV industry cycle has also driven
the elimination and clearance of outdated production capacity,
and the PV industry will realize more significant development and
construction with larger scale and more advanced technologies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Market Overview (Continued)

In 2023, the establishment of China's “1+N” carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality policy system was completed, and the proportion
of green energy in the overall energy structure continued to increase,
marking the completion of the world’s largest power and clean energy
system. As one of the “three new"” drivers of China’s manufacturing
transformation and upgrade, PV products have not only seen
rapid growth in foreign trade exports, but have also made positive
contributions to the global green and low-carbon transformation.

Affected by trade policy distortions and geopolitical tensions, global
economic growth slowed down in 2023, and the solar industry
gradually shifted from a high-growth industry to a mature industry
with slower growth. In December 2023, the 28th Conference of the
Parties (COP28) to the United Nations Framework Convention on
Climate Change reached the "UAE Consensus” for the first global
stocktake under the Paris Agreement and to set clear targets to
triple global installed renewable energy capacity and double energy
efficiency by 2030, helping to accelerate the process of global energy
transformation. In addition to China, Europe, the US and India
remained the main solar markets in 2023.

According to a report issued by SolarPower Europe, newly installed PV
capacity in the EU is projected to reach 56GW in 2023, which will be
the third consecutive year that the EU has maintained an annual growth
rate of over 40%. In terms of modules, Europe imported a total of
101.5GW of PV modules from China in 2023, an increase of almost
17% compared with 86.6GW in 2022. The report also states that the
total installed PV power generation capacity in the EU is expected to
double by 2026, reaching 484GW. In addition, in February 2024, the
Council of the European Union and the European Parliament reached
a provisional agreement on the “Net-Zero Industry Act”, which aims to
boost the EU’s industrial deployment of net-zero technologies to meet
climate goals and strengthen the EU’s advantage in industrial green
technologies.

Among EU countries, Germany's renewable energy power generation
exceeded 50% for the first time, and PV power has become one
of the main forces driving the country’s renewable energy power
generation. In 2023, the total installed PV power generation capacity in
Germany reached 81.7GW. According to the latest information released
by Enedis, a French power grid operator, the cumulative installed
PV power generation capacity in France exceeded 17GW in 2023,
and the annual newly installed PV capacity reached a record high of
approximately 3.14GW, an increase of 30% compared with 2022. In
addition, according to the "EU Market for Solar Power 2022-2026"
published by Solar Power Europe, total installed PV capacity in Poland
could reach 29.8GW by 2026. The country is also set to become one of
the fastest-growing key PV markets benefiting from the government's
strong focus on and support for renewable energy.
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Market Overview (Continued)

Since the launch of the Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) more than a
year ago, the solar PV industry in the US has been growing at an
accelerated pace. According to the forecast of industry organizations,
the annual newly installed PV capacity will reach 33GW in 2023, with
even more impressive growth in the future. Global PV enterprises have
entered the US market, attracted by the country’s supportive policies.
Among them, eight Chinese companies, including five leading module
companies, have announced their investment in plant construction in
the US. In 2023, the US imported a total of 30.2GW of PV modules
from China, up nearly 22% from 24.8GW in 2022. The Energy
Information Administration (EIA) in the US also released a report on
the short-term energy outlook, forecasting that between 2023 and
2028, the renewable energy capacity in the US will increase by nearly
340GW, almost all of which will come from solar PV and wind power
installations.

According to JMK Research, India’s installed renewable energy was
12.9GW in 2023, of which more than 10GW was solar PV, and the
newly installed PV capacity decreased by 28% year-on-year. The overall
PV market in India will continue to be affected by the Approved
List of Models and Manufacturers (ALMM) and Basic Customs Duty
(BCD) policies. Although the Indian government made the decision
to postpone the ALMM for one year as local PV manufacturers were
unable to meet domestic needs, the government-funded PV projects
will not be allowed to use PV modules from China from the end of
March 2024, when the ALMM is re-imposed. Based on the 2024 plan,
India’s Finance Minister has also allocated an additional INR1,950 billion
(US$2,602 million) for the production-based solar incentive program
and will impose a BCD of 40% on foreign solar modules and a BCD
of 25% on batteries from April, hoping to reduce production costs
and compliance burdens for local PV manufacturers and enhance their
competitiveness.

The IEA’s latest “Renewable Energy Market Update” indicates that
global renewable energy generation will continue to grow, reaching
4,500GW in 2024, driven by policy support, rising fossil fuel prices,
and the active promotion of solar and wind power generation projects.
The manufacturing capacity of the PV industry will also more than
double to 1,000GW. In addition to the construction of large-scale PV
power plants in various regions of the world, the number of small-
scale PV power generation systems is also increasing rapidly, driving
the sustainable growth of the industry. As a renewable energy source,
solar can not only replace fossil fuels to address the climate crisis and
contribute to the goal of carbon neutrality, but also meet the demand
for energy security. The unwavering determination of countries to
develop solar energy and related supportive policies are believed to
be the key driving force that will lead the global solar industry to go
further and longer.
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Operation Review
Operations Summary

At present, in order to continuously reduce carbon emissions, achieve
energy security, address frequent global extreme climate change,
and reduce the risk of the cost volatility of the impact of fossil fuel
prices, renewable and clean energy, represented by photovoltaics,
has become the main development strategy of many countries in
the world. With the governments’ policy and strategic supports, cost
reductions, continuous technological development and economic
incentives, it is an indisputable fact that photovoltaic energy is now
the renewable and clean energy with the huge development potential
and the lowest cost compared with the inflated fossil fuel prices, so
the soaring demands for photovoltaic products have already come.
Before completion of the disposal of the upstream monocrystalline
silicon ingots and wafers business through the disposal of the Group's
equity interests in Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Ltd.* (#hi5
S #TER 1D B PR A 7)) (“Qujing Yangguang”), a former non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on 30 December 2022 (the
"Disposal”), the Group maintained a solid financial performance in
the manufacturing and sales of downstream photovoltaic modules and
upstream monocrystalline silicon ingots and wafers. After completion
of the Disposal, the Group has since focused on the manufacturing
and sales of downstream photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic
industry. Our major customers of photovoltaic modules are large
domestic state-owned enterprises in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), multinational corporations and other photovoltaic end-
user customers. Moreover, the Group is engaged in the installation
of photovoltaic systems and the development, design, construction,
operation and maintenance of photovoltaic generation plants.
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Operation Review (Continued)
Operations Summary (Continued)

As the first batch of domestic photovoltaic enterprises engaged in
the production of photovoltaic products, with 20 years of experience
in the photovoltaic industry, the Group now has accumulated mature
experience in terms of technology, domestic and overseas market
development, industrial chain cooperation, brand effect, premium
services, etc. Subsidiaries of the Group have obtained 327 Nationa
patents, third prize of National Business Science and Technology
Progress Award and more than 30 provincial and municipal science
and technology first prizes, second prizes, and achievement
awards. The awards are: National High-tech Enterprise, National
Green Factory, National Intelligent Photovoltaic Pilot Demonstration
Enterprise, National Photovoltaic Manufacturing Industry Specified
Conditions Admission Regulated Enterprise, National Intellectual
Property Advantage Enterprise, Provincial Intelligent Manufacturing
Demonstration Factory, Provincial Green Supply Chain Management
Enterprise, Provincial Five-star Cloud Enterprise, Provincial Enterprise
Technology Center, Provincial Engineering Technology Research Center,
Photovoltaic Testing Center with China National Accreditation Service
for Conformity Assessment’s laboratory accredited, National Model
Enterprise of Harmonious Labor Relations — Excellent Enterprise, Top
500 Global New Energy Companies in 2023 (No.263), Top 500 PRC
Energy Companies (Group) in 2023 (No.316), Top 20 PRC Photovoltaic
Module Companies in 2023 (No.15), Top 100 PRC Photovoltaic
Brands in 2023 (No.60), Photovoltaic Brand Lab (PVBL) 2023 Global
Photovoltaic Top 100 (No.33), PVBL 2023 Global Photovoltaic Brand
Communication Award, 2023 Leading China’s Top 100 Renewable
Energy Photovoltaic Enterprises, 2023 Most Influential Photovoltaic
Module Enterprise, China’s High-quality Household and Industrial
and Commercial Photovoltaic Module Brand in 2023, and the Most
Promising Enterprise in the Photovoltaic Industry in 2023. The Group
is the vice chairman unit of PRC Photovoltaic Industry Association,
vice chairman unit of Semiconductor Materials Branch of and standing
council unit of China Electronic Materials Industry Association,
Household Photovoltaic Professional Committee unit, Standardization
Technical Committee unit and Photoelectric Building Professional
Committee unit of China Photovoltaic Industry Association and expert
member of Photovoltaic Professional Committee of China Renewable
Energy Society. Solar photovoltaic modules are rated as national grade’s
green design products. The Group also provides products and services
to the State Power Investment Group (one of the five major power
generation groups all year round), the major supplier of double-sided
double glass modules in the 2018 Front Runner Plan and the major
module supplier for the power configuration project of the UHV
transmission base in Hainan, Qinghai Province, a national key project
in 2019.
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Operation Review (Continued)
Operations Summary (Continued)

As at the end of December 2023, the total production capacity of
our production bases was 9.8 GW of modules due to the production
scale, the high-efficiency and high production capacity layout of the
Group. Overall, the Group has demonstrated stronger comprehensive
competitiveness and further increased the market share of high quality
but low-cost products.

Continuing operations
Module businesses

The Group has been engaged in module production since 2009,
and has accumulated rich experience and advanced production
technology and process in monocrystalline module production. The
monocrystalline products that the Group focuses on has not only
become the mainstream in the market, but after years of development,
it also further expanded and strengthened the deployment and sales
of monocrystalline silicon high-efficiency module products such as
P-type high-efficiency modules, N-type high-efficiency modules, half-
cell photovoltaic modules, multi busbar cell module, all-black modules
and other high-end products.

The current main base of the Group for monocrystalline module
production is located in Yancheng, Jiangsu. In addition to the various
preferential investment supporting policies from the local government,
the Company can take advantage of significantly lowering the
investment in capital expenditure by renting plant buildings. Moreover,
the area around the Yangtze River Delta is an agglomeration area for
the supply of raw and auxiliary materials which provides advantage
in terms of procurement. In order to meet the needs of module
customers, the Group has expanded module production capacity in
Yancheng, Jiangsu, to further strengthen the economic scale advantage
of module products. As of the end of December 2023, the module
production capacity of the production base in Yancheng, Jiangsu
was 8.0 GW, while the total module production capacity of the
Group was 9.8 GW. Through the completion of the layout of high-
efficiency production capacity, it has begun to show stronger overall
competitiveness and reduction in the production costs, which further
enhanced the national and regional market share of the products, and
led to obvious market benefits.
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Operation Review (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)
Module businesses (Continued)

External sales of modules were mainly made to large state-owned
enterprises and international multinational enterprises, such as State
Power Investment Corporation (FEBIZXRE 1% & E£E A F]) (“SPIC"),
SHARP Corporation (“SHARP"), Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and Xinyi
Solar Group (E&EIHE(ZRHEEEE), Sungrow Power Supply
Co., Ltd ((BHXERR M BB A7A]), China General Nuclear Power
Corporation and Astronergy etc. The Group has been cooperating with
these enterprises in continually expanding module sales for foreign
customers.

The Group focuses on the manufacturing of monocrystalline silicon
photovoltaic products. Further, the Group has also introduced SHARP's
global leading 40-year quality assurance system for photovoltaic
products. The quality of the products is stable and reliable, which
could bring long-term and stable income to end-user owners in the
economic efficiency of photovoltaic power generation.

Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business

Following the measures in relation to resumption of normality,
apart from devoting its efforts in stabilising the development of its
manufacturing business, the Group has been actively expanding the
end-user power plants construction and application business which
not only drives the sales of module products in a bottom-up manner,
but it will also spread the profits of construction and operation of
the photovoltaic system businesses, so as to bring additional revenue
and improve the overall profitability of the Group. The Group's
photovoltaic system business includes traditional distributed power
station EPC business, Building Applied Photovoltaics (BAPV) business
and Building Integrated Photovoltaics (BIPV) business. With the national
policy background of the PRC government’s vigorous advocacy of
“carbon emissions peaking”, “carbon neutrality”, the construction of
“green buildings”, “zero energy buildings” and the implementation of
rooftop distributed photovoltaic development program after “Opinions
on Promoting Green Development of Urban and Rural Construction”
issued by the State Council of the PRC and the “Notice on the Pilot
Scheme of Country-wide (City, District) Distributed Rooftop Project”
published by the National Energy Administration, taking into account of
the current huge building volume and a massive amount of promising
and potential distributed photovoltaic generation capacity for the
development in the PRC, the Group anticipates that BIPV business
would have broad development prospects and will continue to enjoy
the benefits from the significant photovoltaic industry expansion.

EEERwER DT

& E O BE ()
481 T (1)

EEEINEE  EBZRFP ABEAN AR &M E R
BEE4CE WHPEBEREHNREEEQA(EHE
# 1)+ AR E % (SHARP Corporation [SHARPJ) *
EEFEBHEEAEER BAERRGERA
A PEERZEEBRAR ERHERSE - I
HEErE-—FHAESERHEEINEFHMAN
HE o

AEBEEREINERANEREER  BA%
ETEAEERREMEIRELNIOFEERE
BR EnGEBENSE AJARBARBUE
ITHFREHBENLBE S -

B REENREHGER
BEEMEBEBEENEGE CREXNEEBEE
MR AEERGEZHRAAKREXREHER
BEREY  TETA T ENBESFERNH
E NMABSZEREIREENRKERERNFE
A RFEN S RIES A S B EREERE S -
AEEBXREFEBRIEERN D M X EUHEPC
X% WEEEEM EOHKREE ZFEBAPV)E
o AR IKREE—EB(EBIPV)ER « K
FEE— B8 (BIPV) 3 75 BE 2 b B B0 7 B ED 3% [ BA A
HEHAREGCEENE R RERERBEMS
(AR BEEZ(ME)EESMA R KAEA B
FERBA] REBFANDEEREE] [HF
M BXER(GCER] [THEEEEIRER
EEOBAARBERIAENEREEESET &
EEHREERMEFEENEARLEERAEAEHM
BESHBANXKREESEHEE  AEEBEBIPY
¥BBHEERNEREN S VTEBBHESER
HARITERBITER -



1 8 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED B3 &82IRIZRBRA R

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBHWMRDN

Operation Review (Continued)

Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business
(Continued)

Benefits of the comprehensive R&D and rich technological experience
accumulated in the photovoltaic industry while strengthening industry-
university-research cooperation, the Group formally signed an
industry-school cooperation agreement in the past with the School
of Architecture, School of Civil Engineering and Architectural Design
Institute of Southeast University, and it will cooperate with Southeast
University to establish a BIPV research and development line to
conduct in-depth research and development in the field of zero-carbon
buildings and BIPV monocrystalline silicon in Nanjing city and Yancheng
city, Jiangsu province with a view to enhancing the photoelectric
conversion efficiency of BIPV module and lower the production costs,
and actively leading the formulation and development of national and
industrial standards of BIPV in the area of zero-carbon green buildings.
At the same time, the industry-university-research base cooperated
by the two parties will also become the postgraduate teaching place
of the School of Architecture and School of Civil Engineering of
Southeast University. The BIPV pure color crystalline silicon modules,
BIPV imitation stone modules and others launched by the research and
development line have passed China Compulsory Certificate (“CCC")
certification, China Quality Certificate Centre (“CQC") certification,
and GB8624-2012 building materials and products combustion
performance test certification. In addition, the Group is carrying out
a series of research and development projects in cooperation with the
National Housing and Residential Environment Engineering Technology
Research Center for BIPV structural components and other areas,. The
BIPV structural components have obtained ten patent authorizations.
Moreover, the zero-carbon mobile building products independently
developed by the Group integrate prefabricated buildings with
customized photovoltaics and energy storage, enabling off-grid energy
operation and self-sufficiency in electricity. The Group expects that,
with the continuous development of BIPV business in the building
photovoltaic market and more emergence of new scenarios application,
the photovoltaic system construction and application business would
experience further growth.
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Operation Review (Continued)

Construction and operation of photovoltaic system business
(Continued)

Semi-conductor business

The PRC market is the world’s largest semiconductor application
market. The Group is engaged mainly in production and sales of 4-6
inches semiconductor grade monocrystalline silicon ingot with heavy
doping (including arsenic, antimony and phosphorus products which
are at the leading level of the industry) and 4-6 inches semiconductor
grade monocrystalline silicon ingot with lightly doping. In 2023,
the semiconductor business was affected by the decline in number
of orders placed by customers due to the negative impact of the
unpredictable volatility of global political and poor economic situation.
The Group expects that resuming a path to normality with positive
impacts and in the context of the growth of the Chinese semiconductor
market in the long run, the semiconductor business will maintain
growth in the future, and will contribute profits to the Group. With the
planned increase in the research and development, and production of
multiple varieties of 8-inches semiconductor monocrystalline silicon for
integrated circuit in 2024 in order to meet the demand of customers
and the expected formation of an alliance with industry chain players
to jointly explore a new cooperation mode, the Group is fully prepared
for the next round of growth cycle.

Discontinued operation
Photovoltaic monocrystalline silicon ingot and wafer business

The Group disposed of the business on 30 December 2022, and
therefore no longer conducted the photovoltaic monocrystalline silicon
ingots and wafers business within the year. Instead, it focuses on
the production and sales of photovoltaic modules, the construction
and operation of photovoltaic system businesses, and the operation
of semiconductor businesses. This approach makes these existing
businesses more competitive and professional, with the aim of fully
realizing the hidden value of these businesses.
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Operation Review (Continued)
Operation Strategy

In the midst of ongoing advancement of photovoltaic production
technology innovation and cost-efficiency improvement, the production
cost per watt of photovoltaic power generation has dropped sharply.
At present, the photovoltaic applications have reached the target of
grid parity. With expected acceleration in the process for photovoltaic
industry to move from grid parity to low-price, faster and strong
demand growth in the downstream photovoltaic installation leading to
significant sales growth is foreseeable in the future. In the premises,
production related equipment also needs to be upgraded or added in
order to be in line with technological advancement and to improve
production efficiency. Therefore, since 2018, the Group has been
investing in upgrading and transforming existing production capacity
and facility, and invest in low-cost, high-efficiency new production
capacity. Mass output by comprehensive upgrade of production
capacity and facility, and new high-efficiency production capacity have
also been realised accordingly.

By adopting a core product strategy of continuous development of
module products, the Group effectively concentrates on and utilises its
existing resources. Since our photovoltaic module customers are mostly
domestic state-owned enterprises or large multinational corporations,
the market position and strength possessed by these module customers
are the strongest in the overall photovoltaic industry chain. Therefore,
the Group has established a direct supply relationship with large
module customers through significant module production capacity and
significant cost and quality advantages to enhance its market presence,
which maintains a more stable module product estuary.

Operating Performance

The Group keeps growing the revenue and profit. It is not only due
to releasing the momentum of downstream photovoltaic installation
demand and the low-cost and high-efficiency production capacity, but
also necessary to maintain leading technology in the ever-advancing
photovoltaic industry to build up a cost advantage in order to
continuously keep obtaining purchasing orders from existing and new
customers. The Group has gained success in research and development
in recent years, and has overcome various production bottlenecks. The
Group has successfully incorporated the most advanced production
technologies into mass production, such that some production costs
of our various product lines have decreased. The Group will continue
to strive to enhance its competitive advantages.

During the year, the total external shipment volume of major
products, photovoltaic modules increased from 4,205.3MW in 2022
to 6,683. 1MW in 2023, representing a growth rate of 58.9%. The
increase in the external shipment volume of modules was mainly due
to the increase in orders from existing customers and the successful
development of new customer base.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operation Review (Continued)
Operating Performance (Continued)

The Group is devoted to the development and sales of monocrystalline
high-efficiency module products, such as P-type double-sided double
glass modules, N-type TOPCon modules, multi busbar Black Solar
("BS") module, and related high-end products. Besides, the module
production line of the Group can also produce multi-busbar single or
double glass of 182 mm and 210 mm large-size modules, the module
power of which could reach more than 660 watts. In addition, the
related equipment automated intelligence and packaging technology
are in the leading position in the industry. In addition, for the 54-
cell all-black module products, the modules are packaged with all-
black materials. Taking into account the consistency and aesthetics
of the module appearance, the module itself is guaranteed to be
completely black, and there is zero module-to-module colour difference
to naked eye. All-black modules enhance product diversification,
improve product competitive advantages, and further increase
sales performance. According to the analysis of the recent bidding
in China’s photovoltaic market, 182 mm and above photovoltaic
modules accounted for more than four-fifths of the bidding product
specifications. Since the Group’s photovoltaic module production lines
can all produce large-size scarce products such as 182 mm and 210
mm products which are mainstream products in the market, they
could further enhance the Group’s ability to increase the shipment
volume and provide opportunity for an increase in gross profit margin.
Moreover, the Group is also carrying out a number of research projects
for N-type heterojunction with intrinsic thin layer (HJT) technology,
perovskite technology, BIPV products and flexible modules, aiming
to upgrade the mass production technology of the abovementioned
products, so as to expand the market sales of corresponding products
and remain the resilience and competitiveness of the Group in the
market.
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Operation Review (Continued)
Operating Performance (Continued)

Looking ahead, given (a) further improved products quality, leading
technological cost advantages and large-size product lines with higher
bargaining power, the Group will be able to continue to gain market
share; (b) in respect of the Group’s major production base, with more
favorable production environment with the strong support from the
government policies, the Group will be able to reduce the production
costs; (c) the Group continues to expand low-cost, high-efficiency new
production capacity through more refined and smoother production
process and operations, and the existing production capacity and
facility have also been upgraded and transformed, and optimised
production and logistics processes, and stable operation, which can
further demonstrate the advantages of economies of scale, such
as lower procurement, logistics and production costs; (d) the long-
standing diversified and accumulated technological advantages of
various product lines and created product differentiation; (e) adopting
a flexible sales and marketing strategy to accelerate inventory turnover;
(f) the consideration received from the Disposal has enabled the Group
to invest in expansion and growth of its continuing operations; (qg)
after the completion of the acquisition of interest of Jiangsu Yueyang
in June 2023, its whole year results will be fully attributable to the
Group in 2024; and (h) the strong client base in PRC and overseas,
with increasing demand from new and old customers, it is expected
that 1) the production costs will decrease owing to the increased
polysilicon supply in the industry; and 2) the decline in the market
average selling price of photovoltaic modules will be stabilised given
the slowdown in over-capacity of photovoltaic module production in
the photovoltaic industry and continuous growth in the downstream
photovoltaic installation. Regarding gross profit margin performance,
the room for future improvement remains high.

Financial Review
Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by 4.7% from approximately
RMB6,869.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB7,192.9 million for the year. The growth in revenue
was mainly attributed to the increase in orders from existing customers
and the successful development of a new customer base that has led
to a significant increase in the external shipping volume of photovoltaic
modules.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year has increased from approximately
RMB6,598.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB6,734.9 million for the year. The increase was in
line with the growth in revenue.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB458.0 million
and a gross profit margin of 6.4% for the year ended 31 December
2023, as compared to a gross profit of approximately RMB271.3 million
and a gross profit margin of 3.9% in 2022, which increased by 68.8%
and 2.5% points respectively. The Group’s high-efficiency production
capacity increased, resulting in economies of scale. Although operating
performance has been offset by the decline in the market average
selling price of photovoltaic modules, the overall gross profit margin
has still increased.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly comprised packaging
expenses, freight charges, and insurance expenses. Selling and
distribution expenses increased to RMB100.6 million in 2023 from
RMB79.9 million in 2022. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the reversal of the provision for warranty
arising from changes in accounting estimates in 2022, but there was
no such reversal in 2023.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised of staff costs, research and
development expenses and daily office expenses. The administrative
expenses for the year amounted to approximately RMB279.0 million,
as compared to approximately RMB264.6 million in 2022. The increase
was mainly because the Group hired more experienced staff to support
its business expansion and development, resulting in higher staff costs.

Reversal of impairment losses/impairment losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

Loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLs”). ECLs on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions. During the vyear, the Group has efficiently
managed the collection of trade receivables, which led to a relatively
lower ECL rates in the ECL model. As a result, a reversal of impairment
losses on trade receivables and contract assets of RMB12.7 million
(2022: impairment losses of RMB21.2 million) was recognised during
the year.

Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment

An impairment loss of property, plant, and equipment amounting to
Nil was recorded in 2023 (2022: impairment losses of RMB43.0 million)
due to the recoverable amount being higher than the carrying amount
of property, plant, and equipment.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Finance costs

Finance costs were mainly derived from bank and other borrowings.
The Group's finance costs decreased from RMB78.8 million in 2022
to RMB71.1 million in 2023. The Group is aiming to lower the finance
costs gradually in the future and to obtain more sources of financing.

Income tax

Income tax expense was RMB15.5 million in 2023, while income
tax expense amounted to RMB16.2 million in 2022. The income tax
expense for the year was mainly derived from the provision of income
tax for the profitable subsidiaries of the Group. The decrease in income
tax expenses was mainly due to an over-provision in respect of prior
years, which was partially offset by an increase in the assessable profit
of certain profitable subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China.

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations

During the year, the Group’s profit from continuing operations was
approximately RMB141.7 million, marking a significant turnaround from
a loss to a profit compared to the loss of approximately RMB134.7
million recorded for the year ended 31 December 2022. The main
reason for the increase was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in the external shipping volume of photovoltaic modules,
and the Group's increased high-efficiency production capacity, which
resulted in economies of scale, as evidenced by the rise in gross profit
during the year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

The decrease in profit attributable to owners of the parent of
approximately RMB111.9 million was shown in 2023, compared to the
profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately RMB957.2
million in 2022, mainly due to a non-recurring gain on the disposal of
its equity interest in Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Ltd.* (i 5
f% Y #7RE R AR 1D B BR 2 F)) completed in December 2022, amounting
to approximately RMB1,043.8 million in aggregate.

Inventory turnover days

The Group has been focusing its efforts in raising the inventory
turnover and lowering the inventory turnover days in order to mitigate
the risk of rapid decline inventory prices caused by continuous
technological advancement of photovoltaic products, and at the same
time, reducing the backlog of funds and further strengthen the Group'’s
operation working capital. The inventory turnover days of the Group
during the year remained stable at 24 days (2022: 29 days).
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Financial Review (Continued)
Trade receivable turnover days

The sales of photovoltaic modules accounted for over 90% of the
Group’s overall sales in 2022 and 2023. According to the standard
terms of the industry’s module sales contracts, the recovery of module
receivables depends on the construction progress of the photovoltaic
power plant. For instance, some trade receivables can only be recovered
after the customer’s photovoltaic power plant is connected to the grid.
Therefore, the trade receivables turnover days of module business are
generally longer. During the year, the Group has efficiently managed
the collection of trade receivables, which led to a relatively lower ECL
rates in the ECL model. The trade receivables turnover days for the
year remained stable at to 94 days (2022: 92 days).

Trade payable turnover days

The trade payable turnover days of the Group during the year remained
stable at 162 days (2022: 163 days). The Group would continue to look
to utilise its operating funds in a more strategic manner for business
growth.

Liquidity and financial resources

The principal sources of working capital of the Group during the year
were cash flow from financing activities. As at 31 December 2023, the
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group
was 1.1 (31 December 2022: 1.1). The Group had net borrowings of
RMB-505.2 million as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022:
RMB=1,913.3 million), including cash and cash equivalents of RMB578.4
million (31 December 2022: RMB937.9 million), pledged deposits of
RMB1,358.0 million (31 December 2022: RMB2,314.2 million), bank
and other loans due within one year of RMB1,403.0 million (31
December 2022: RMB1,247.0 million) and non-current bank and other
loans of RMB28.2 million (31 December 2022: RMB91.8 million). The
net debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by total equity) as at 31
December 2023 was —42.3% (31 December 2022:-158.7%).

Net cash outflow from operating activities

The operating activities resulted in a net cash outflow of approximately
RMB1,648.3 million in 2023, compared to a net cash inflow of
approximately RMB2,397.4 million in 2022. The main reasons for the
net cash outflow were a decrease in trade and other payables and an
increase in trade receivables in 2023.
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Financial Review (Continued)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
from continuing operations

During the vyear, the Group’s earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") from continuing operations
were approximately RMB387.0 million (5.4% of the revenue) (2022 :
approximately RMB107.6 million, 1.6% of the revenue). The main
reason for the increase in EBITDA was attributable to the increase in
revenue and gross profit during the year.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases, cash, bank deposits and bank loans that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency,
Renminbi, of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily the US Dollar and Euro. The Directors do
not expect any significant impact from the change in exchange rates
since the Group uses trade receivables in foreign currencies received
from foreign customers to settle foreign loans and trade payables in
foreign currencies which naturally mitigates the exchange rate risk. In
addition, the Group will consider the difference in interest rates and
fluctuations in the exchange rates of foreign currency denominated
and local currency-denominated loan balance, and seize opportunities
to mitigate the risk through low-risk forward exchange agreements,
in order to strike a balance between the exposure to the variations in
interest costs and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Acquisition of interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary

On 13 June 2023, Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd.* (& % ¢ B
JRBBRAR]) (as purchaser) (the "purchaser"), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into the equity transfer agreements
with Jack Win Investment Holdings Limited (as Vendor A) ("Vendor A")
and Wintek International Corp (as Vendor B) ("Vender B"), pursuant to
which the Purchaser agreed to purchase, and Vendor A and Vendor B
agreed to sell 13.76% and 8.72% of the equity interest in the Jiangsu
Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (T & 155 Y IREHEBR A R])
("Jiangsu Yueyang"”) at a consideration of approximately RMB58,130,000
and RMB36,820,000 respectively (the "Acquisition"). Completion took
place in June 2023, upon which, Jiangsu Yueyang was directly owned
as to approximately 85.99% by the Purchaser and indirectly wholly-
owned by the Company. Immediately before the entering into the equity
transfer agreements, the Purchaser was a substantial shareholder of
Jiangsu Yueyang and, therefore, a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level according to Rule 14A.07(1) of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. By virtue of Rule
14A.101 of the Listing Rules, since (1) the Purchaser was a connected
person at the subsidiary level; (2) the Board has approved the Acquisition;
and (3) the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the terms of the Acquisition are fair and reasonable and the Acquisition
is on normal commercial terms or better and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole, the Acquisition is subject to
the notification and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the circular, independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For
further details of the Acquisition, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 13 June 2023.
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Financial Review (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: Nil).

Human resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 2,887 employees (31
December 2022: 3,029 employees).

Business Outlook

Given the increasing use of photovoltaic power generation, it has
become the most important renewable energy source as clean and
renewable energy supply in recent years, so it is generally expected
that the global newly installed capacity of photovoltaic power
generation will continue to grow in 2024. Coupled with cost-efficiency
improvement and the introduction of a series of government favourable
policies to continuously support the development of the photovoltaic
industry with an aim to lead the energy industry transition from
traditional energy sources to renewable and clean energy sources
in an orderly manner, it is expected that the PRC's and the global
mid and long-term demand for photovoltaic products will continue
to grow. Following the grid parity, photovoltaic products will be
able to move further towards full-scale marketised competition in
the photovoltaic industry and away from policy subsidies, and will
progress towards self sustainable development, the acceleration of the
advance technological progress and innovation, reduce cost of power
generation to strengthen the achievement in comprehensive grid parity
and will bring the rapid growth for photovoltaic demand.

In order to thoroughly grasp these development opportunities and
meet the growing demand for photovoltaic products, the Group has
expanded production capacity of monocrystalline silicon modules to
take advantage of the external production environment in different
areas, enabling the Group to employ technological innovation and fully
utilise its current technological advantages in production to meet the
needs of photovoltaic end-user customers in all aspects.

Facing the transition towards green power market and as a
renewable and clean energy source in respect of photovoltaic power
generation, the road to grid parity is mingled with opportunities and
challenges, but the expected growth in the market after reaching
grid parity will provide an opportunity for the photovoltaic industry.
As ever, positioning itself as the leading supplier and manufacturer
of monocrystalline silicon photovoltaic modules in the photovoltaic
industry, the Group is fully prepared to rely on its existing advantages
and will do its utmost, to embrace the long-term promising prospect
for the photovoltaic industry and continue to contribute to the early
realization of the “double carbon” strategic goal in the PRC.
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Event after Reporting Period

At the date of this report, there are no important events affecting the
Group which has occurred since 31 December 2023.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the Group’'s
consolidated financial results for the year ended 31 December 2023,
and has discussed and reviewed the risk management, internal control
and reporting matters.

Dividend

No final dividend was paid in 2023 (2022: Nil). The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2023 (2022: Nil).

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 6 June
2024 to 12 June 2024, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712—
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2024.
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Overview

The board of Directors (the “Board”) strives to attain and maintain
high standards of corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices to meet the legal and commercial standards. This
report outlines the principles and the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”), as contained in Appendix
14 (renumbered as Appendix C1 since 31 December 2023) of the Rules
(the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which have
been adopted by the Group.

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Code to oversee the financial
reporting procedures and internal controls of the Group so as to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has also established
a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) (collectively,
the “Board Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board Committees have been posted on the websites
of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Group has implemented a compliance manual which covers areas
such as ongoing compliance obligations of the Company and the
Directors, business operations of the Group, financial management
systems, human resources management systems, internal control
systems, quality assurance and property management systems. In the
opinion of the Board, all the code provisions set out in the Code
were met by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2023.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 (renumbered as Appendix C3 since 31 December 2023)
of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities transactions entered
into by Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all the
Directors and all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout the
financial year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Board of Directors

The Board takes the responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management systems,
and monitoring the performance of the management team. The
Directors have the responsibility to act objectively in the interests of
the Company. The Directors also assume the following responsibilities
for corporate governance as set out in code provision A.2.1 of the
Code:

(@) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(©) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’'s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three executive Directors: Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman), Mr.
TAN Xin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. WANG Junze, one non-
executive Director: Mr. HSU You Yuan, and three independent non-
executive Directors: Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert, Ms. CHUNG Wai
Hang and Ms. TAN Ying. The names and biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section entitled “Directors, Company
Secretary and Senior Management Profile” in the annual report. The
Board has a strong independent element in its composition with over
half of the board members being non-executive Directors to ensure
that all decisions of the Board are made in the best interest of the
Group's long-term development.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
Committees. Further details of these committees are set out below
"Board Committees” section.
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Board Meetings

The Company holds Board meetings regularly, at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of Board
meeting will be sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular
Board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given to the Directors for
ad-hoc Board meetings. Board papers together with all appropriate,
complete and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least
3 days before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep
the Directors apprised of the latest developments, financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
Each Director also has separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary. Directors may participate either in
person or through electronic means of communications. The Company
will provide relevant materials to all the Directors relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All the Directors will be provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and, upon reasonable
request, the Directors will be able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All
Directors will have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 11 Board meetings and
1 Shareholders meeting were held and the attendance of individual
Directors at these meetings is set out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings HER/EEAK

Board  Shareholders BEE® BR
Name of Directors meetings meeting BEEHR 23 e
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) 1/1 171 BNESRE(FE) 11/11 11
Mr. TAN Xin 1M/ 17 BarAs 11/11 171
Mr. WANG Junze 1/11 11 FHEEAE 11/1 11
Non-executive Director EHITES
Mr. HSU You Yuan 1/11 1/1 At kA& 11/1 11
Independent non-executive Directors BAUKHTES
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 1/M 11 FoxEFELT 1/11 11
Ms. CHUNG Wai 1M/ 111 BRI 11/11 11
Ms. TAN Ying 1M1 n EHgt 11/11 11



32 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED 582 RIZRERA A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREAWMSE

Independent Non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors possess a wealth of
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. They have played
a significant role in the Board by virtue of their independent judgment
and their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In
particular, they bring impartial views to the Board on issues of the
Company'’s strategy, performance and control. The Board also considers
that independent non-executive Directors provide independent advice
on the Company’s business strategy, results and management so that
all interests of shareholders are taken into consideration, and the
interests of the Company and its shareholders are taken into account
in all business decisions. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to the criteria Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive Director who has
served the Board for more than nine years, his/her further appointment
should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders.

Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent Non-
executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why
it considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed independent non-executive Director will be
holding their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why
the Board believes the individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert has served as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company for more than ten years. As an
independent non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, he has expressed objective views and given independent
guidance to the Company over the past years, and he continue to
demonstrate a firm commitment to their role.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert would not affect his exercise
of independent judgement and is satisfied that Dr. WONG Wing Kuen,
Albert has the required character, integrity and experience to continue
fulfilling the role of an independent non-executive Director.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua has been appointed as an executive Director for a
specific term of three years commencing from 21 June 2023. Mr. TAN
Xin and Mr. WANG Junze have been appointed as an executive Director
for a specific term of three years commencing from 21 June 2023 and
23 June 2022 respectively. Such terms are subject to re-appointment
by the Company at an annual general meeting upon retirement.

Mr. HSU You Yuan has been appointed as non-executive Director for
a specific term of three years commencing from 23 June 2022. Such
terms are subject to re-appointment by the Company at an annual
general meeting upon retirements.

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director for a specific term of three years commencing
from 21 June 2023, Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying have
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a specific
term of three years commencing from 11 July 2022 and 18 October
2022 respectively. Such terms are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. WANG Junze, Mr. HSU You Yuan and Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being
eligible, and will offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting.
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Training and Professional Development

In compliance with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials to ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in
relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge
and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director.

All Directors had provided a record of training they received during
the year to the Company. According to the training records provided
by the Directors, the trainings attended by them during the reporting
period is summarised as follows:

Trainings on
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Directors development = |
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. TAN Wenhua (Chairman) v BNELEE(EFE) v
Mr. TAN Xin v BELE v
Mr. WANG Junze v/ FHEEAE v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. HSU You Yuan v =T ¥k P A& v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert v/ FokEEL v
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang v/ ERIT A+ v
Ms. TAN Ying v/ EE G v/

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The role of the Chairman was performed by Mr. TAN Wenhua. Mr.
TAN Wenhua is an executive Director who is responsible for the
management of the Board and he also involves in the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. The role of CEO is performed
by Mr. TAN Xin.

Mr. TAN Wenhua is the father of Mr. TAN Xin. Save as disclosed, there
was no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
the Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (continued) The overall
management of the Company was performed by the CEO, executive
Directors and senior management of the Company. The executive
Directors (Mr. TAN Wenhua, Mr. TAN Xin and Mr. WANG Junze)
who have extensive experience in the solar energy industry and
their respective areas of profession, spearhead the Group’s overall
development and business strategies.

Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of and Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include overseeing the financial reporting processes and internal
control procedures of the Group, reviewing the financial information
of the Group and considering issues relating to the external auditor.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman),
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang and Ms. TAN Ying.
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In 2023, the Audit Committee met 2 times and the attendance of W_ZE- = BRZESELRIT2AEHE  ME
individual Directors at these meetings is set out below: MESHFEEBESZENBERAFHINMT
Attendance/

Number of HER/
Name of Directors meetings EENS BERE
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (Chairman) 2/2 ToxkEBL(EE) 2/2
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang 2/2 BEHTZL 2/2
Ms. TAN Ying 2/2 mERAL 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and interim
financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2023, including the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and has also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters with
the management. The Audit Committee also monitored the Company’s
progress in implementing the CG Code as required under the Listing
Rules.
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Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008
pursuant to Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of and Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s structure
for remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of four members; three of whom are independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. TAN Ying (Chairman), Dr. WONG Wing
Kuen, Albert and Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang, and one is an executive
Director, namely, Mr. TAN Wenhua.

In 2023, the Remuneration Committee met once and the attendance
of individual Directors at the meeting is set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of HE=RS
Name of Directors meeting BEEHS =Y/
Independent non-executive Directors BUkHITES
Ms. TAN Ying (Chairman) 171 BETE(EE) 171
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 11 FoxiEE L 11
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang 11 ERITA T 11
Executive Director BITES
Mr. TAN Wenhua 171 BN ESE 171

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the
Board regarding the remuneration policy of the Company. In addition,
it has also reviewed and approved management’'s remuneration
proposal and directors’ service contracts by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by the Board, and ensured that no
Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 27 February 2008 pursuant to
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for recruiting Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for nomination procedures and process and criteria adopted
by the Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates
for directorship and senior management. Currently, the Nomination
Committee consists of four members; three of whom are independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (Chairman),
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert and Mr. TAN Ying, and one is a non-
executive Director, namely, Mr. HSU You Yuan.
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In 2023, the Nomination Committee met once and the attendance of RZZT-_=F RE{|ZELERTIRGHE @ m(E
individual Directors at the meeting is set out below: MEELRFEBEEENBAEIN M T
Attendance/

Number of HERS
Name of Directors meeting BEEER EEDNS
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (Chairman) 1/1 EBRB Lt (FE) 11
Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert 11 FoxiEEL 11
Ms. TAN Ying 11 EESetun 11
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. HSU You Yuan 171 FFAhOM ST A& 11
The Nomination Committee has discussed matters relating to the RAZEC@FANCIwBEBZISHEEEKE

appointment of a senior management members during the year.
The Nomination Committee also considered and resolved that all
the existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the
Company.
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Board Committees (continued)
Board Diversity

The Board has a board diversity policy which is available on the
Company’s website. In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives
among members of the Board, it is the policy of the Company to
consider a number of factors when deciding on appointments to
the Board and the continuation of those appointments. Such factors
include gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and the
legitimate interests of the Company’s principal shareholders. The Board
considered the Company has achieved the objective of board diversity
and gender diversity during the year.

As at 31 December 2023, the workforce (including senior
management) comprised of 36.7% female and 63.3% male. The
Company is determined to and will continue to achieve and maintain
gender diversity and equality in terms of the Board and the general
workforce.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2023 are set out in note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Directors,
Company Secretary and Senior Management” in this annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2023 by band is set out in note 10 to
the Financial Statements.

Non-competition Undertaking

During the year from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors nor their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or might compete
with the business of the Group.

Mr. TAN Wenhua has confirmed to the Company of his compliance
with the non-competition undertakings provided to the Company
under a non-competition undertaking dated 27 February 2008 (“Non-
competition undertaking”). The independent non-executive Directors
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Non-competition undertaking had been
complied with and duly enforced from 1 January 2023 and up to 31
December 2023.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
Financial Reporting

The Board, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and the Finance
Department of the Company, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group. In the preparation
of financial statements, International Financial Reporting Standards /
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted and
the appropriate accounting policies have been consistently used and
applied. The Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance in the annual and interim reports to the
shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure and announcements in
a timely manner.

Auditors’” Remuneration

The performance and remuneration of the external auditors of the
Company, Ernst & Young, have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid and payable to
Ernst & Young and other external auditors in respect of audit services
amounted to approximately RMB2,750,000 (2022: RMB3,148,000).
In addition, approximately RMB256,000 (2022: RMB1,220,000) was
charged for other non-audit services.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and the internal
control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Company conducted regular review to monitor the Company’s internal
management and operation during the year. Procedures have been
designed to review the risk management functions and to ensure
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication, ensure
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations. The Company’s
risk management and internal control system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Board supervised the management’s design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems, and reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group; such
review covered all major control aspects of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Group's internal audit team plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The internal audit team mainly
monitors and reviews the matters relating to the internal control and
compliance of the Company, and provides regular risk-oriented internal
audits for its subsidiaries. The internal audits cover sales, financial
reporting and information security and so on. The internal audit team
reports to the Board once a year. The review covered each of the
twelve months of 2023.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
(continued)

Risk management and internal control (continued)

In order to fulfil their fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence, the Directors will constantly seek advice and assistance from
the Company’s internal legal team and if necessary, seek advice from
external legal advisors in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Company also
adopted internal control procedures relating to, among others, signing
authority and procedures since February 2007. The Company has an
Audit and Legal Department consisting 4 members with extensive
experience in the legal field. The main duties of the Audit and Legal
department include:

o providing legal advice on major business decisions
o reviewing and drafting legal documents

o handling legal disputes

o advising on legal issues related to daily operations
o conducting internal training for compliance matters

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board considered that the
Group's risk management and internal control systems are adequate
and effective and the Company has complied with the CG Code in
respect of risk management and internal control.

Whistleblowing policy

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy. Whistleblowing
channels are published in all workplace. The policy is to facilitate
employees, partners and customers to report complaints and internal
malpractices to the audit and legal department of the Company, who
will review, investigate and follow up these complaints. Once cases are
verified, investigation results will be announced within the Company
as warnings.

Directors’ responsibility on the financial statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, which
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company,
Ernst & Young, on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the section entitled “Independent Auditor’'s Report” in
the annual report.
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Financial Reporting and Internal Control
(continued)

Going concern

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

Investors Relations

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy with
the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders and potential investors
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company.

The Company places strong emphasis on its communications with
investors, and considers that maintaining on-going and open
communications with investors can promote investors’ understanding
of and confidence in the Company. The Company disclosed
all necessary balanced and understandable information to the
Shareholders in compliance with the Listing Rules and met with media,
securities analysts, fund managers and investors on a regular basis to
respond to their enquiries so as to provide them with a clearer picture
of the Company’s achievements in business, management, strategic
goals and other aspects.

The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and Shareholders. The
Company will meet with the Shareholders and respond to their
enquiries in the general meetings. The executive Directors attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 June 2023.

The Company has reviewed the shareholders communication policy
conducted for the year ended 31 December 2023 and considered that
the shareholders communication policy has been well implemented and
effective.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat whose
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors,
Company Secretary and Senior Management Profile” in this annual
report.

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat has confirmed that he had attained no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31 December
2023, as required by Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the Company
("EGM")

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary,
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Act (2011
Revision) or the articles of association of the Company. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post or by facsimile,
together with his/her contact details, such as postal address, email or
fax, addressing to the Board at the head office of the Company at the
following address or facsimile number:

Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited Room

1402, Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attention to: Board of Directors/Company Secretary
Fax: 852 3416 2111

Changes to Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these
documents are published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should
be announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision.

The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

o the Group has implemented its policy on fair disclosure by
pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to
the public through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and the Company’s website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential
or inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so
that only the executive Directors, the Company Secretary and
the staff responsible for investor relations of the Company are
authorised to communicate with parties outside the Group.
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua (B3 %), aged 67, an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board. He was one of the founders of the Jinzhou
Plants in 2001. He was conferred various honours including the Model
for the Labour of the Nation, the medal of “May 1st” Labour of
Liaoning Province, the Builders Merit award of Liaoning Province, the
Outstanding Entrepreneur of the Building Materials Industry of the
Nation, the Venture Entrepreneur of the Liaoning Province and First
Prize Entrepreneur of Jinzhou. Prior to the founding of Jinzhou Plants,
he was the Chairman of WM EAEE B (EEH)BERETAF
(Jinzhou Xinhua Quartz Glass (Group) Co., Ltd.) and the Director of
8 —HE A (Jinzhou 155 Factory), a state-owned factory engaging
in quartz crucibles manufacturing. He has been granted a special
subsidy by the State Council in 2004 for his contribution in engineering
technology. He is the father of Mr. Tan Xin, the executive Director of
the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. TAN Xin (%), aged 40, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He holds a bachelor’'s degree of
Marketing from the Macau University of Science and Technology, and
a master’s degree of Business Administration from University of East
Anglia, the U.K. Mr. Tan is also the representative at the 11th and
12th and executive committee member of the 13th member congress
of the National Association of Industry and Commerce (& B T & 5),
Representative at the 17th National Congress of the Communist Youth
League (& &), the 14th Standing Member of the CPPCC Liaoning
Committee (EZEHHHZ &), Standing Committee Member of the
11th Liaoning Province Association of Industry and Commerce (GEE4
THEEBAE), and the 12th and 13th Vice President of the Liaoning
General Chamber of Commerce ((EZE & #E), Standing member
of the 10th,11th and 12th Liaoning Province Youth Federation (&%
EEFHAEEHELZEEMKE), Member of the 12th and Standing
Member of the 13th Jinzhou Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (33T E+-"EHBHZE 8,
FTZERWEHZE), and the 1st and 2nd President of the Jinzhou
Youth Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Tan was awarded the Liaoning
“Model Workers” (&)%), the 4th Constructors’ Medal (5 /&
®EHEZ), the “May 1st Labour Medal” (E— 4828 5), “Excellent
Entrepreneur” (12 7 1 % ); the Jinzhou “Model Workers” (45 8)
#1), “Meritorious Entrepreneur” (I B2 %K), “Technology Expert
with Outstanding Contributions in Jinzhou” (88 /1 & 22t & Bt &l
B HK): the Yancheng “Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (£ b ¥ R),
“Industrial Powerful City — Outstanding Individual” (T %38 T{E%
# @A) and “Youth May Fourth Medal” (T PUE 4 € E) and other
honorary titles. Mr. TAN took up the position of Chief Executive Officer
of the Group since October 2016. Before taking the role of the Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Tan also worked in other subsidiaries within the
Group and accumulated plenty of experiences from his prior positions.
He is the son of Mr. TAN Wenhua who is an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company.
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Directors (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. WANG Junze (E#3£), aged 52, is an executive Director of
the Company. He joined the Company on 1 January 2007 and was
the deputy general manager of China region, who was responsible
for the accounting and finance matter of the Group. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from the State University of New
Jersey (Rutgers). He is a certified public accountant in Maryland, the
United States. Prior to joining the Group, he was a Special Assistant
to President & Deputy Spokesman of The Office of General Manager
of WWX, the Spokesman and Chief Financial Officer of Panram
International Corp., a company listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market
in Taiwan.

Non-executive Director

Mr. HSU You Yuan (FF %), aged 69, is a non-executive Director
of the Company. He joined the Group on 6 February 2007 and was
appointed an executive Director on the same date. He graduated
with a master degree in Business Administration from the Chinese
Culture University in 1980. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HSU was
the Managing Director of Wafer Works Corp. ("WWX") from 1998 to
2003 and later became the Vice-Chairman of WWX in 2003. WWX is
a manufacturer of silicon wafer for the semiconductor industry and is
listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan in 2002. He was the
managing director of Silicon Technology Investment (Cayman) Corp.
and was appointed the Chief Executive Officer of Solar Technology
Investment (Cayman) Corp. In March 2006, he was appointed a
director and he was subsequently appointed as the Chairman of the
board of Jinzhou Youhua in September 2006. Mr. HSU's previous work
credentials also include acting as Deputy General Manager of Mosel
Vitelic Inc., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and as
a director and Executive Vice-President of Mosel Vitelic (Hong Kong)
Limited, a subsidiary of Mosel Vitelic Inc. Mr. HSU had also made
contributions to non-commercial sectors in the past. He served as a
researcher, a deputy director, and the director of Business Department
of the Executive Yuan Development Fund of Taiwan (Note: Executive
Yuan Development Fund is now known as National Development Fund,
Executive Yuan). He was also a lecturer of Statistics and Managerial
Mathematics for the Business Administration department at the
Chinese Culture University. Mr. HSU has been an independent non-
executive director of China Shanshui Cement Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since
September 2018. He has been a president of Little Aid from Everyone
Association (/N ZH % €) from January 2021 to January 2024,.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert (£ K #), aged 72, was appointed
as an Independent non-executive Director on 12 January 2008. Dr.
Wong is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Chartered Institute for Securities
and Investments, UK, Association of International Accountants, Society
of Registered Financial Planners, Hong Kong, The Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in Ireland, UK, as well as a member of Hong
Kong Securities Institute, The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, Macau
Society of Certified Practising Accountants and an associate member of
The Chartered Institute of Bankers in Scotland, UK. He holds a Doctor
of Philosophy in Business Administration degree from the Bulacan
State University, Republic of the Philippines. Dr. WONG had been a
director and Chief Executive Officer of Minghua Group International
Holdings Limited, a listed public company in the United States, until
30 September 2004.

Since 1 January 2018, Dr. WONG was appointed as the Principal
Consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited. Dr. WONG has been an
independent non-executive director of APAC Resources Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
since July 2004; an independent non-executive director of China
Merchants Land Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since June 2012; an independent
non-executive director of China VAST Industrial Urban Development
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, from August 2014 to December 2022,
an independent non-executive director of China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, since September 2017; an independent non-
executive director of Capital Finance Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the GEM board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the period
from January 2018 to January 2022; an independent non-executive
director of China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since
December 2018; and an independent non-executive director of Dexin
China Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since February 2019.

Dr. WONG is an Independent non-executive Director of the Company
and has served on the Board for more than 10 years. As an
Independent Non-executive Director with extensive experience and
knowledge and in-depth understanding of the Company’s operations
and business, Dr. WONG has expressed objective views and given
independent guidance to the Company over the past years. He
continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role.

EX )

FEHITES

FTAREBL 25 —EEN\F-A+-HEZ
TABIINTES - TBLAEBRBEHWER
TRABRE  BEFIMNERE  BTAUBZE
T BREETEAFLREESE  ZEBEEEE
nE BHEAMUBRIMBERAEERBEA
REAMACEFTEEURDT AR FEEED
EREFTEMEE RIS A R EBRER
BEFTRTRESSE - FIFAEARBELID
B 37 KE2(Bulacan State University) T i & 12 £18
TEM - TS EEE—HLETARBEEER
BEERBERAGILHTEESREFHNTE EE2ZET
TMEAA=ZTAILE -

IEIR T N\F-A-HRZERTIAES
BITERARMERERR -ITHLAB-_FTTNO
FLAERERBAMIXMERETNTAERA
RARBIFATES R_T——_FAREE
BMRXAERLETHOREREMERARBILIEH
TEF N_BE-—NFN\RE-_Z-__F+-AK
ERAMIAEIRETNTERREXZTRERS
RARZBIIFATEE  R_FT—LFNAR
EAMIAER EHHPESHEZER)BRA
AZBYFATEE KRBT \F-HE-ZT
“E-ARBREBRMAIZER LT AR E
BRERARZBYFFNTESE  R_FT—/\Ft+=
ARBAEABMXMERLTHHEERFAKRERA
AZBIUNATESE RR_ZT-NF_ARE
BHMIAER ETOEBETEERERARZE
MIFHITESE -

IBELHREARABUFHTESTBB+F - £
BIEREE RBRE HBARAMNEBLE
BRAN BEBEUBIIERATEFEHTNHE
ARAREZENRBERGETEINES  HA
SAERBRREB TN ARE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &3 47

DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.3.4 of the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules, the Nomination Committee
and the Board consider that Dr. WONG, being a Certified Public
Accountant, is able to complement the professional background of
the composition of the Board in terms of expertise in accounting and
financial reporting. Notwithstanding Dr. WONG holds various company
directorships in listed companies in Hong Kong, he devoted sufficient
time in fulfilling his role in the Company. During the past year, he
attended and actively participated in the discussions in all the Board
meetings and committee meetings which he was eligible to attend.

The Nomination Committee and the Board consider that the long
service of Dr. WONG would not affect his exercise of independent
judgment and are satisfied that Dr. WONG has the required
character, integrity and experience to continue fulfilling the role of an
Independent Non-executive Director and consider Dr. WONG to be
independent.

Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang (¥ ¥7), aged 54, an Independent non-
executive Director of the Group. She joined the Group and was
appointed as an Independent non-executive Director on 11 July 2022.
She holds a bachelor’s degree of Social Science from Lingnan University
and a master’s degree of Science in International Real Estate with
distinction from Royal Agricultural University, United Kingdom. Ms.
CHUNG has been an independent non-executive director of Dynasty
Fine Wines Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since December 2023. Ms. CHUNG
has about 30 years of working experiences in private enterprises and
listed companies in Hong Kong, and has led one of the Hong Kong
companies with manufacturing plants in mainland China to carry out
business development and general management. She has professional
knowledge in real estate development and corporate governance, and
practical experiences in domestic and overseas investment, asset and
portfolio management and valuation in the past 10 years. She is a
life member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association.
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Directors (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Ms. TAN Ying (FE#), aged 58, an Independent non-executive
Director of the Group. She joined the Group and was appointed as
an Independent non-executive Director on 18 October 2022. has
more than 30 years of experience in the legal and academicindustry
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). She worked as a full-
time lawyer at Jinzhou City Huaying Law Firm* (880 ffE S 2 60
7% FfT) from September 1990 to February 1996, and subsequently as
a part-time lawyer at Liaoning Qiuming Law Firm* (¥ Zfk $%2 A =
7 FT) since then. Since March 1996, she has been teaching at and
is currently a professor in the Faculty of Law of The Bohai University
(BB ARKEJLEBT) in the PRC. She is also a part-time legal advisor to
certain governmental bodies (including the Jinzhou Municipal People’s
Government (5% /1| 7 A R fF)) and arbitrator in the PRC. Ms. TAN
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from the China University of
Political Science and Law (FEIEEARER) in 1994, and further obtained
a master’s degree in economics from The Nankai University (& X
) in the PRC in 1999. Ms. TAN holds the Teachers’ Qualification
Certificate of the PRC* (Fh#EARZLFMBEHKEMEKE), the Legal
Professional Qualification Certificate of the PRC* (FpZE A R HFNEE L2
B ZE1KEE) and the Legal Practicing Qualification Certificate of the
PRC* (FEARKAMEIZANH EEMKE). From 11 February 2018 to
30 October 2019, Ms. TAN was an independent non-executive director
of Bank of Jinzhou Co., Ltd.* (88 /SR 7T R 1D B R A &) (Stock Code:
0416), a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

The Directors’ interest or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") are set out in the section headed
“Interest and Short Positions of the Directors and the Chief Executives
of the Company in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company and its Associated Corporations” in this annual report.
Each Director has been appointed for a term of three years. The
Directors’ emoluments, the basis of determining the same (including
any bonus payments, whether fixed or discretionary in nature,
irrespective of whether the Director has or does not have a service
contract) and the Directors’ fees are set out in note 9 to the Financial
Statements and the section headed and “Report of the Directors —
Emolument Policy” of this annual report. Save as disclosed above, each
Director confirmed that there are no other matters that need to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company and there
is no other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Company Secretary

Mr. YEUNG Chi Tat (#7&3£), aged 54, is the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Yeung graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of business
administration and obtained a master's degree in professional
accounting with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He worked at a major international accounting firm for over 10 years
and then worked for various Hong Kong listed companies as vice-
president, chief financial officer, financial controller and/or company
secretary. He possesses extensive experience in auditing, accounting,
business management, corporate restructuring and corporate finance.

Senior Management

Mr. ZHANG Hai (&), aged 41, the General Manager of the Module
Business Department of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
information technology and business management at Northeastern
University, master’s degree in energy management from Tulane
University. He is a PhD candidate of Business Administration at the
Belhaven University and is an electrical engineer. In 2010, Mr. ZHANG
was employed by Huachang Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd (3£&%
KEHEERAF]) as the head of Quality Assurance Department. He
served as the head of Group Quality Control Department in 2012 and
the director of Group Quality Management Department in February
2014. In August 2014, he became the general manager of Module
Business Department. Since January 2018, he served as the Vice
General Manager and General Manager of R&D Quality Assurance
Centre of the Group. He was appointed as the General Manager of
Module Business Department since February 2021. He is currently vice
chairman of China Photovoltaic Industry Association and the Deputy to
the Jinzhou Municipal People’s Congress. He was awarded the May 1st
Labor Medal of Jinzhou City, one of the inventors of 16 patents, one
of the third prize of Liaoning Province Science and Technology Progress
Award and one of the first prize of Jinzhou Science and Technology
Progress Award.

Ms. LIU Bo (2I/®), aged 51, the General Manager of Jianhu
Production Base of the Module Business Department of the Group.
She joined the Group in 2005. She graduated from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in 1996. Ms Liu became the team
leader of Wafer Slicing from 2006. Since 2008, she served as minister
of production and equipment. In January 2013, she was the Vice
General Manager of Module Business Department and has served as
the General Manager of Jianhu Production Base of Module Business
Department since May 2019.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. WANG Lixin (£3Z%7), aged 56, the General Manager of lJinzhou
Production Base of Module Business Department of the Group. He
graduated from the Party School of Liaoning Province in 2000. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. WANG was the Chief Engineer of Jinzhou
Thermal Power Corporation (§3 /1|22 422 F]) from April 1990 to May
2008. He joined the Group as the head of Cell Business Department
and Equipment Department in 2008 and later became the plant head
of Cell Business Department since 2012 and the general manager of
Cell Business Department since 2014. He also served as the General
Manager of Module Business Department since January 2018. Since
December 2020, he serves as the General Manager of Jinzhou
Production Base of the Group’s Module Business Department.

Mr. MA Yuan (&), aged 38, the General Manager of the Group's
Marketing Operation Centre. He joined the Group in 2008 and served
in Shanghai Marketing Centre. He graduated from Dalian Jiaotong
University in 2008. Mr. Ma was the Vice Supervisor of Shanghai
Marketing Centre in 2013. Later, he became the department head of
the Domestic Marketing Department in 2015 and Director in 2017.
In 2020, he was appointed as the General Manager of the Group’s
Marketing Operation Centre. Mr. Ma has won various provincial and
municipal honorary awards many times, such as “Jinzhou Model
Worker”, “Jinzhou Top Ten Industrial Sales Champions” and other
glorious titles. The marketing team led by him won the “Jinzhou May
Fourth Youth Medal” (collective) in 2019.

BEREEAB S

FUHKE 565 AEEAMEERBMEEER
WREE FR_ZETTFEENEELER -
MBEAEER  TEEB-NMNETEFOAE_ZT
ENFRHALERMABELTNEZEIREM - A
—ETN\FMBAER EEBR FELEE
HERFEXREBHEDR HER T ——FRESE)
FEEIRE T NEFRESHREEILE
BB YR —E-NF-ARCETEGFEL
BEPE - g T -TFE+ AR EFEGFES
7N A I A AR o

FEXE 38m AEHZHEELHROALE -
BER-ZZFZNFMBREE - EBRARR LETT
AL  BR-_FETZNFEETREIBARE -
BEERZE-—=ZFHEAKE LBLHTLE
ITHE HER T -AFHRECAEEBERNEE
BHE XR-_F-FHRRETEANHESHAE
E T ZTEMHNR BAELEARAERLEHE
BRLBEE BLERZREGEMERRE
R HMMHESHRE] [HMTIELTK
HEMTIFI R - EEBNEHBBER _-F
—NFEGHRMAMNEFREZ|(F8) -



ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#§ 51

DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Senior Management (continued)

Ms. FENG Wenli (5 X ), aged 68, the General Manager of the
Group's Liaoning Boxinke Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd. She
graduated from Northeastern University in 1982 with a major in
semiconductor materials. From the same year, she worked in /&[5 &
faiE B T{E (Luoyang Monocrystalline Silicon Factory). She was mainly
engaged in semiconductor-grade monocrystalline silicon ingot-pulling
technology and technical quality management. In 1990, she served as
Chief Engineer of Luoyang Monocrystalline Silicon Factory. In 1993, she
served as the Secretary of Party Committee of Luoyang Monocrystalline
Silicon Factory and from 1995 onwards, she concurrently served as
General Manager of Sino-US joint venture company ZH752 & F# kA
fR2R] (MCL Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) and has received training on
monocrystallme silicon ingot and wafer technologies and management
training from MEMC of the United States. In October 2000, she
worked as Deputy General Manager of 7 #ff £ f% Bl 2= 2 ] (GRINM
Silicon Guotai Co., Ltd.) under It R E BB I (Beijing General
Research Institute For Nonferrous Metals). She was responsible for the
technical quality and production of heavily blended monocrystalline
silicon ingots and wafers, and participated in the national science and
technology research and development project work on 8-inch heavily
arsenic blended monocrystalline silicon. She served as the Deputy
General Manager of /8B FMAHE-F# £ 2A 7] (Shanghai Shenhe
Thermomagnetic Electronic Materials Co., Ltd.) in March 2003, where
she was responsible for monocrystalline ingot and wafer production.
She has also received training on wafer production, technology and
management from BZAR 2 @& A7) (Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd.) of
Japan. She was the General Manager of W%E%m%j‘tﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
7] (Inner Mongolia Minaji Photovoltaic Materials Co., Ltd.) in 2006,
where she was responsible for the production of solar monocrystalline
silicon and the production of heavily blended monocrystalline silicon.
She was appointed as the General Manager of the Group’s Liaoning
Boxinke Semiconductor Materials Co., Ltd.on 11 July 2022.

Mr. CAO Hongbin (B AL#), aged 59, the General Manager of the
Group’s Jiangsu Xinyangguang Zhiding Technology Co., Ltd. He joined
the Group in January 2021. He graduated from Jiangsu Agricultural
Reclamation Workers' College (T #& & &= ZEH T K2) in Enterprise
Management in 1989 and obtained the title of Senior Economist.
Mr. CAO became the General Manager of Jinzhou Xinyangguang
Photovoltaic Application Co., Ltd in January 2021. Since March 2021,
he has served as the General Manager of Jiangsu Xinyangguang
Zhiding Technology Co., Ltd.
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Senior Management (continued)

Mr. SATO Masanobu ({&£ B IE #£), aged 54, is the Quality Director
of Module Business Department of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, he worked in Sharp Corporation from 1988 and had worked
in the semiconductor field for 18 years. After which, for 10 years
from 2006, he served as the Quality Manager in the Department of
Photovoltaic Systems in Sharp Corporation. Since 2016, he serves as
the Quality Director of Cell Business Department and Technology and
Quality Director of Module Business Department of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company of the Group.
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and
trading of photovoltaic modules, the construction and operation of
photovoltaic power plants. The analysis of the principal activities and
geographical locations of the operations of the subsidiaries during
the financial year are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a description of an indication of likely future development in and,
risks and uncertainties of the Group’s business, can be found in the
section entitled “Management Discussion and Analysis” this annual
report. This discussion forms part of this directors’ report. The
description and disclosures of the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance aspects during the financial year can also be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG"”) Report which to be
published separately.

Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

As far as the directors are aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s top five customers are mainly silicon solar wafer, cell or
modules manufacturers or traders. In aggregate, the largest and five
largest customers did not exceed 18% (2022: 17%) and 55% (2022:
50%) of the Group's total sales in 2023 respectively.

In aggregated, the Group’s purchases from its largest and five largest
suppliers did not exceed 15% (2022: 15%) and 45% (2022: 47%) of
the Group’s total purchases in 2023 respectively. Save for Mr. Tung
Ching Sai indirectly interested in one of the five largest suppliers, at no
time during the year have the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers and/or customers.
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Relationship with Employees, Suppliers,
Customers and Other Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. During the
year under review, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its suppliers, customers and/or stakeholders.

Financial Statements and Dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 71 to 200. The Directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to owners of the parent for the year ended 31
December 2023 was RMB111,906,000 (2022: RMB957,163,000)
(restated) had been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the section entitled “consolidated statement of
changes in equity” in the annual report.

As at 31 December 2023, distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB917,583,000 (2022:
RMB922,009,000).

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year was
RMB85,000 (2022: RMB Nil).

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2023 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of acquisitions and other movements in property, plant and
equipment are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the annual
report.
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Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAN Wenhua, Chairman
Mr. TAN Xin
Mr. WANG Junze

Non-executive Director
Mr. HSU You Yuan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. WONG Wing Kuen, Albert
Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang
Ms. TAN Ying

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. HSU You Yuan, Mr. WANG Junze and Ms. CHUNG Wai Hang will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service agreement with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, transactions with the
following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Name of party &7 &%

BEBLXS

HEZT-=F+ZA=1+—HLFE BT3A
THRSGEREBEEB RS

Relationship 8 1%

Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Ltd.
BB KRR D BR QR

Jinzhou Youhua Silicon Materials Co., Ltd.
WINEEEM B BR QAR

Jinzhou Changhua Carbon Products Co., Ltd.

WMEERMEHRERAF

Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
IFR T BENEERBMERARAA

Liaoning Yangguang Energy Power Co., Ltd.
BEEBEERENBRA

Controlled by the directors and their close relatives
of the Company

RARRNAEF RSB

Controlled by the directors and their close relatives
of the Company

RARRNAEEFE RR S B

Controlled by the directors and their close relatives
of the Company

RARRNAEE KRS B

Associate of the Group
A BB E AT

Associate of the Group
A8 B A

Details of the related party transactions are disclosed in note 38 to
the financial statements.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the Company’s continuing connected transactions.

Connected Transaction

Saved for the acquisition of interest in Jiangsu Yueyang the details
of which are set out in the section entitled “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review — Acquisition of interest in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary” in the annual report and save for the exempt
connected transactions as disclosed in note 38(b) to the financial
statements, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the other related
party transactions disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Share Scheme

The Company did not have a share scheme as at 31 December 2023.
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Employee Share Ownership Plan

The Company did not have employee share ownership plan as at 31
December 2023.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) by reason of
their holdings of the shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in
or exercising of any rights in relation to the shares, they are advised
to consult their professional advisers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Interests and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company

in the Shares, Underlying Shares an
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their associates
had the following interests in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code:

Name of Directors Nature interest

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#§ 57

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

EIERKREE
RZE-_=F+-"A=+—HB KRR RKEELH
Bt

BERR
ARREFMERRARE(REDAS RS

IR EE E’JEH%RIE%% MERTHEERE -
FAE RBRE  RXZATEERDA T EF

IHMBEE EEWREFFERNEFXEM -

BE LEFEEARAFLHES
REE-F-=F+-A=+—ALFE  FQH
HAEAHBATEMBE - i ELEEA AT
2 EWES

RZBE-_=ZF+-A=+—R BEEME &=
RARBZBITRABRBREZBHEALTRAR
AMEBABEE(EZREFRPEERMN(TEFR
HIEERP D EXVED) D - HERODRESS -
BECTLHERREBEESEBERDIFI2HERE
FENECLHIRBRERETIASITANEARF
R FrEV ST

Number of Approximate

ordinary shares
held (Note 1)

percentage of
shareholding (%)

FEBELTERKE BMOFERES K

EEgE EEME (B aE1) (%)
Mr. TAN Wenhua Beneficial interest (Note 2) 556,924,443 (L) 16.76%
BN EL A i w (M FE2)

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note 2) 155,320,308 (L) 4.67%

PRk B R w2 (P RE2)
Mr. TAN XIN Beneficial interest 41,762,000 (L) 1.26%
EEkAE EmiEm

Mr. WANG Junze
FHELEAE

Beneficial interest

B w

Mr. HSU You Yuan
FF AR A&

Beneficial interest
EmiEm

100,500 (L)

15,591,016 (L)

Less than 0.01%
L120.01%

0.47%
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Interest and Short Positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executives of the Company

in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations (continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

2. As at 31 December 2023, Mr. TAN Wenhua is interested in an aggregate of
712,244,751 shares of the Company, of which (i) 556,924,443 shares of the
Company are directly held by Mr. TAN Wenhua; and (i) 155,320,308 shares of
the Company are held by You Hua Investment Corporation, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. TAN Wenhua.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions’ in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the Directors are aware, save as
disclosed above, the substantial shareholders and other persons or
corporations (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

BEERAQNTBRSITHRAEREAD
AREEBEBNRSG -  HER®
LELHENEZRRE @

B &E -
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2. RZTE-_ZF+-_A=+—HB BXELLEAHL
0712,244751 RARAGI RGO T HEAEZE - EF
()556,924, 443 AN R IR AB X ESX L EERE -
(i) 155,320,308 A AGI RN HBHENELELE
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Number of
ordinary shares

Approximate
Percentage of

Name Capacity held (Note 1) shareholding (%)
FEERAREE BAFERED

L -vg g5 (FEET) (%)

Hiramatsu International Corp. Beneficial owner 304,261,692 (L) 9.15%

EmEAA

Hanako Hiramatsu (Note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 304,261,692 (L) 9.15%

Hanako Hiramatsu (Hff 5£2) L EEE

Madam SZE Tan Hung Beneficial interest 234,919,000 (L) 7.07%

itz AN BEmEm

Mr. TUNG Ching Sai (Note 3) Interest of spouse 234,919,000 (L) 7.07%

BB EAE(FHRE3) Fic 18 1 25




Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions’ in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
2. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief having

made all reasonable enquiry, Hiramatsu International Corp. is wholly-owned
by Hanako Hiramatsu as at the date of this report. By virtue of the SFO,
Hanako Hiramatsu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hiramatsu
International Corp.

3. Mr. TUNG Ching Sai is the spouse of Madam SZE Tan Hung and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the shares which Madam SZE Tan Hung is
interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or
short position in shares and underlying shares of the Company which
fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Non-competition Undertaking

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
nor their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or might compete with the
business of the Group.

Mr. TAN Wenhua has confirmed that he has complied with the terms of
non-competition undertaking (“Non-competition Undertaking”) given
in favour of the Company. The independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed the status of the compliance of the undertakings
stipulated in the Non-competition Undertaking and have confirmed
that, as far as the independent non-executive Directors can ascertain,
there is no breach of any of such undertakings.

Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, Mr. TAN Wenhua shall
continue to be bound by the terms of the non-competition undertaking
in the event that he ceases to be a Director but remains a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

The interested Director shall abstain from the meeting where there is
actual or potential conflict in interest.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had not
received any information in writing from Mr. TAN Wenhua in respect of
any new business opportunity which competed or might compete with
the existing and future business of the Group which were offered to or
came to be the knowledge of the Mr. TAN Wenhua or his associates
(other than any member of the Group), and the Company has received
an annual written confirmation from Mr. TAN Wenhua in respect of him
and his associates in compliance with the non competition undertaking.
The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed and were
satisfied that Mr. TAN Wenhua had complied with the Non-competition
undertaking.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

On 2 June 2020, Solargiga Hong Kong, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a loan agreement with Mr. TAN Wenhua,
our executive director, for a loan to Solargiga Hong Kong which is
unsecured with a 5% annual interest rate. For details, please refer to
Note 38 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023 in this report.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a director is or had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and as at the date of this
report, the Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set out by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Retirement Benefit Schemes

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
C3 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Special enquiries have been made by the
Company to confirm that all Directors have been complied with the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section entitled “Corporate Governance report” in the
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
references adopted in compliance with the Code set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are the
three independent non-executive Directors, and Dr. Wong Wing Kuen,
Albert, an independent non-executive Director, is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for communication
between other Directors, the external auditor and the internal auditor
(where an internal audit function exists) of the Company as regards
their duties relating to financial and other reporting, internal controls,
external and internal audits and such other financial and accounting
matters as the Board determines from time to time.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in providing an independent
review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management system of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
may be assigned by the Board from time to time and the Company
considers these systems effective and adequate. The audit committee
has reviewed the Group’s interim and annual consolidated financial
statements for the year 2023, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group.

Management Contracts

The Company did not enter into any contract with any individual,
firm or body corporate to manage or administer the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Dividend Policy

In considering the payment of dividends, there shall be a balance
between maintaining sufficient capital to grow the Group’s business
and rewarding the shareholders of the Company. The Board shall take
into account the following factors, among other factors:

(a) the Group’s overall results of operation, financial position,
liquidity position, capital requirements, cash flow and future
prospects;

(b)  the amount of distributable reserves of the Company;

(c)  the expected capital requirements and future expansion plans
of the Group;

(d)  the general business and regulatory conditions, the business
cycle of the Group and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Group;

(e) the statutory and regulatory restrictions;

(f) the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the Shareholders or by the subsidiaries of the
Company to the Company;

(g)  the Shareholders’ interests; and
(h)  other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and as agreed with the
Stock Exchange, based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

Auditors

Ernst & Young, registered public interest entity auditor, was appointed
by the Directors to conduct audit on the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company.

By Order of the Board
TAN Wenhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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To the shareholders of Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 71 to 200 which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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Key audit matters (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

By BET RS
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The amount of trade receivables and contract assets accounted
for a significant portion of the Group’s assets. As at 31 December
2023, the aggregated carrying amount and the impairment provision
were RMB1,953,190,000 and RMB52,533,000 respectively of trade
receivables and contract assets.

The Group applied the simplified approach to determine the provision
and recognised lifetime expected losses for trade receivables and
contract assets. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the ageing of balances for groupings of various customers
with similar loss patterns, repayment histories, and existing customer-
specific and market conditions. In addition, management considered
forward-looking information, including the forecast of industry
situation and overall economic conditions. Estimating the expected
credit loss requires significant management judgements and estimates.

The accounting policies and disclosure of the impairment are
included in note 2.4 “Material accounting policies”, note 3
“Significant accounting judgements and estimates”, note 22 “Trade,
bills receivables and contract assets” to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Key audit matters (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREETEE®
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We assessed management’s processes and controls relating to the
estimation of the expected credit loss by obtaining an understanding of
the design, implementation and operation of key internal controls over
the credit control, the receivables collection process and the process
of recording expected credit losses for trade receivables and contract
assets. We discussed with management on the estimation involved
in determining the expected credit losses allowance regarding trade
receivables and contract assets.

We tested the arithmetic accuracy of the provision matrix of simplified
approach prepared by management to calculate the expected credit
losses. We also assessed management's estimates on loss allowance
by examining the information used by management, including testing
the accuracy of the ageing report and repayment histories by sampling
items with the relevant underlying documentation; and evaluating
whether the estimated loss rates were adjusted based on forward-
looking information. In addition, we evaluated the forward-looking
information which the Group used to calibrate the matrix, such as
the forecast of industry situation and overall economic conditions, by
comparing them to external industry outlook reports.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures included
in the consolidated financial statements regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets.
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Other information included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB, HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

By BET RS
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

By BET RS
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Denis Ming Kui Cheng.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

GERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+-A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZI(E)
2023 2022
—s=-= —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBF T
Notes (Restated)
Bt 3 (E751)
Continuing operations BHEKSEXER
Revenue I 2= 5 7,192,853 6,869,362
Cost of sales 85 & A (6,734,850) (6,598,098)
Gross profit EF 458,003 271,264
Other income and gains Hab g A RS 6 140,560 113,104
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEFX (100,638) (79,928)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (279,045) (264,582)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment WBRkaNEERER
losses) on financial and contract assets O (E) 12,651 (21,214)
Impairment losses of property, plant and ME - WERZHBE
equipment — (43,039)
Other expenses Ht&HR (3.283) (15,355)
Finance costs B & B A 8 (71,118) (78,793)
Profit/(loss) before tax from BECEER ZBRBA
continuing operations FE(EE) 7 157,130 (118,543)
Income tax expense st & A 11 (15,462) (16,186)
Profit/(loss) for the year from BEREXERZFE
continuing operations @ (EE) 141,668 (134,729)
Discontinued Operation BERIEKEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIEEEEBIFE
operation ) 12 — 1,246,817
Profit for the year FEFNE 141,668 1,112,088
Attributable to: BUR A+ FE4h:
Owners of the parent SN §=1 111,906 957,163
Non-controlling interests IE 2 Il 14 #E 25 29,762 154,925
Profit for the year FERNME 141,668 1,112,088
Basic and diluted earnings per share FEREAREERRE
attributable to ordinary equity WERELARBEEF
holders of the parent (RMB cents) (AR% %) 14
For profit for the year FEAE 3.37 28.80
For profit/(loss) from continuing operations — $F & & & ¥ 2
A () 3.37 (4.48)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEEHBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#5I(E)

2023 2022
—E_-= —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(E751)
Profit for the year FERE 141,668 1,112,088
Other comprehensive loss Htt 2 HEE
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified to AIRE B EF HEEEEN
profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hih2mEE S
Exchange differences on translation of foreign REBINEBEED
operations IE N =% (16,256) (27,385)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE>EWRAERE 125,412 1,084,703
Attributable to: LR A+ FE4h:
Owners of the parent [SNGIE§= 95,650 929,778
Non-controlling interests IE 2= I 15 #E 25 29,762 154,925

Total comprehensive income for the year FE2HEWAHLLE 125,412 1,084,703
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#R BB IR OR R

31 December 2023 R-ZT-=F#+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZI(E)

2023 2022
—_E_-= —EF-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR T ARBETF T
(Restated)
(E5))
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRERRK 15 756,401 831,955
Long term prepayments and other & EATE S FRIE f H Ath fE UK
receivables RIE 40,709 35,722
Goodwill EES 16 — —
Right-of-use assets EHEERE 17 116,040 118,298
Investments in associates REERARINKRE 18 1,200 1,200
Equity investments designated at fair value AR EBEFEEHEES)
through other comprehensive income FTAEMARE W =
ERRE 19 3,700 190
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 20 11,880 17,107
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 929,930 1,004,472
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 58 21 326,763 587,567
Trade, bills receivables and contract assets EWEFEREH - ZHE N
EWAEE 22 2,188,054 1,558,894
Prepayments, other receivables and other TERTFRIE - HAth fEURGRIE
assets MH M & E 23 281,038 1,333,164
Current tax recoverable BDHA AT Uy =] % 1R 6,046 1,096
Pledged deposits BB TR 24 1,358,000 2,314,201
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEED 25 578,364 937,897
Total current assets REBEEHE 4,738,265 6,732,819
Current liabilities FEBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings $R1TR Ef st BB & 26 1,403,010 1,246,979
Trade and bills payables ERESERRER 27 2,326,030 3,740,934
Other payables and accruals HithERIEREFTHAS 28 291,755 676,175
Contract liabilities e ON=E 29 37,996 329,018
Current tax payable BV B JE 1+ 7 18 53,866 118,441
Provision B 30 5,128 2,252
Current portion of lease liabilities —FRIPHEERE 17 3,967 3,300
Total current liabilities nEBEEAE 4,121,752 6,117,099
Net current assets RBEEFHE 616,513 615,720
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERARBAERE 1,546,443 1,620,192
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EEM AR R

31 December 2023 HZZ=—=4#+-A=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAR#5I(E)

2023 2022
—_E_= —E- =
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®B TR AREFIT
(Restated)
(E3)
Non-current liabilities EFRBAEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings $R{TR EfM st BB & 26 28,239 91,772
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREERE 20 10,721 13,480
Deferred income I T WA 31 105,074 126,347
Lease liabilities HEa’ 17 23,213 22,692
Provision B 30 186,087 160,203
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBHEE 353,334 414,494
Net assets EEFRE 1,193,109 1,205,698
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of FEREARRREN
the parent =
Share capital % 7< 33 285,924 285,924
Reserves 1 34 891,100 815,680
1,177,024 1,101,604
Non-controlling interests IF £ Bl R R 16,085 104,094

Total equity R 1,193,109 1,205,698
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 Eﬁ:

SREEER

—E=F+-RA=1+—RHLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZI(E)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent

BEHRBATRRNER
General Non-
Share Share Reserve Capital  Exchange Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium* fund*  reservet  reserve*  reserve* losses Total interests equity
FE5H
B RBEE -REEe  EABE  EXEE  EREE  2iEE gt BE B4R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AE%TR  ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETn ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETZ
As at 31 December 2022 BECE-CEfIA=t-R 285924 1,540,888 230,361 34,103 (26,560) (68,008)  (895,8%8) 1,101,410 104,024 1,205,434
Eifect of adoption of amendments (EReirenzng)/(Ake
10 IAST2IHKAS 12 fnote 2) FERZNTIBENZE
(F#22) - - - - - - 194 194 ] 264
As at 1 January 2023 (restated) BECECoE-A-R(EF) 59 1540888 230,361 34,703 (26,560)  (68,008)  (895,704) 1,101,604 104,094 1,205,698
Profit for the year EEAIR - - - - - - M98 111,906 2976 141,668
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ~ EEEM2EEE:
Eichange differences related to
foreign operations EENRERONERE - - - = (1625) - - (16,250) - (16,256)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EEZALNEE - - - - (16,256) - M6 95650 276 12541
Acquisiion of non-controllng interests ** B2 5IHER - - - - - B0 - (0300 (470 (94,950
Capital contrbuton from non-controling~ JFiE 41 £ ER B
inferests *** - - - - - - - - 511 511
Dividends paid to non-controling IRRFERREORE
shareholders - - - - - - - - (48162)  (48,162)
Appropriation t0 reserves HiEeHER - - 78,446 - - - (1844) - - -
As at 31 December 2023 HE-ECZETCAS-H 285,924 1,540,888 308,807 34,703 (42816)  (88,238)  (862,244) 1,177,024 16,085 1,193,109
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of RMB891,100,000  * ZERBERGEAVYBEMRARPNEHEBAR

* Kk

(2022: RMB815,680,000 (restated)) in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In June 2023, Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd. (“Jinzhou Yangguang”, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) acquired 22.48% share of Jiangsu
Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Yueyang”) from the
non-controlling shareholders of Jiangsu Yueyang at a total consideration of

RMB94,950,000.

The non-controlling shareholders of Liaoning Boxinke Semiconductor Material
Co., Ltd. (“Boxinke”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
contributed capital of RMB5,110,500 during this year.

**

#891,100,0007T (=T =~ — 4 : A R¥815,680,0007T
(EF)) °

RZZZ=FXA SBMERERBROBR A ([

MK ARARI2EMBARD LEREBARE

94,950,000 7T M) /T &k 1% 5 IF 12 AR AR SR UL BT & 11 5
SREHEBRAR (NI E 5 ])22.48% 8 AZ (5 ©

ZK RIEEZEMEBA EIFH LR EEBMBAR
AR ([EEXE %J)M%F#IHXHX$EA$H£FEW§A
FE#5,110,5007T °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAARZIME)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the parent
BERERARRNER

General Non-
Share share Teserve Capital ~ Exchange Other  Accumulated controling Total
capital premium fund reserve Tesere Teserve losses Total Inferests equity
FaGE
Bx  RhEE -REE:  EAEE  ENMEE  EpRE  ZHER g5 Bn EngE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
MREBTR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
As at 31 December 2021 HECE-E1IR=T-A 285,94 1,752,401 238,451 34703 825 (74794 (1.86109) 376,414 295865 672219
Eifect of adoption of amendments to (BmerEzng)/(Bhe
IAST2IHKAS 12 (note 2) TEHRNEIBINEE
(22 - - - - - - 139 139 5 189
A at 1 January 2022 (restated) BECEoCE-A-A(ES) o 1740 238451 34703 85 (479 (1860957) 376,553 295915 672468
Profit for the year (estated) ERHBE) - - - - - - %63 %7163 15495 112,088
Other comprehensive logs for the year: ~ FEEMZEEE:
Exchange differences related to FENEZBNNERE
foreign operations - - - - (27385) - - 38y - (138
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ENABE(ET])
(restated) - - - - (27389) - 957163 929778 154925 1,084,703
Acquisiton of a subsidiary under common - ARBH THHELA
control - - - - - 47612 - 47612 @612 -
Capital contibution from non-controling— SEE 4R A
shareholders - - - - - 40,826) = (40,80) 17259 (2356)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEHBAA (3E30) - - (9,438) - - - 9438 - BI0%Y  BI09Y
Special dividends (note 13 BRRE () - s - - - - - s -
Dividends paid o non-controling FERREORE XA
shareholders - - - - - - - - (5,459) (5,459)
Appropriation o reserves AREER - - 1348 - - - (1,348) - - -
As at 31 December 2022 (restated) HE-E-CETCACt-H
(&5)) 25924 1,540,888 230,361 34703 (26,560) (68,008 (895,704) 1,101,604 104,094 1,205,698
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZI(E)

2023 2022
—E-= = —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt & AR®B TR ARBETF T
Cash flows from operating activities & EFEBHEESHRE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BERIAE S (EE)
from continuing operations BEEEET 157,130 (118,543)
from discontinued operation ERIEEEER 12 — 1,387,976
Adjustments for: A
Depreciation and amortisation T8 K B 5 7(c) 158,787 330,936
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEL&HENE
equipment i 71 767
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HjEWE A 2 W= 36 — (1,044,553)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of & (O B =),/ WOR
inventories 7(c) (42,107) 86,546
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ ERESEARENEE (OB
impairment losses on trade receivables  {E @) /(&
and contract assets 22 (12,651) 26,274
Impairment losses of property, plant and ¥ % * B E k& &R E
equipment 7(c) — 43,039
Finance costs Bh & kA 8, 12 71,118 140,266
Provision/(reversal of provision) for REBEE, (BERER)
warranties 30 35,604 (23,850)
Interest income from bank deposits BRITEROF B A (44,784) (27,930)
Gain on acquisition of a subsidiary g LN & — (1,512)
Fair value gains on financial instruments € RTETAAREBEZ
W & — (6,502)
Net foreign exchange gain P& 5 Uz 05 58 (40,796) (29,564)
Changes in working capital: LBEALEE:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TFEm D) 302,910 (439,455)
Increase in trade receivables, JEUR B SRR - A KT
prepayments, other receivables and H i FE U BR R R At ﬁ F
other assets i (479,132) (165,937)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD, (G 25,426 (86,350)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other & 2 58 3 K E Atb & 7K
payables 7 CRL ),/ hn (1,676,774) 2,370,956
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income & iE U A Gt 4>) /48 A0 (21,273) 6,248
Cash (used in)/generated from BRETEE (A, RS
operations (1,565,831) 2,448,812
Income tax paid SIS (76,377) (50,435)
Withholding tax paid XA TR (6,141) (945)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated E&EH (FiA) FERER
from operating activities EFE (1,648,349) 2,397,432
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE-ZT-_=F+-A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAARZIME)

2023 2022
—_E_= —E- =
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B o AR TR ARBF T
Cash flows from investing activities REFHHESHRE
Payments for the purchase of property, #t8EE W - BE & & & X
plant and equipment H) 3K 18 (288,058) (704,170)
Payment for the acquisition of right-of- &t & B FI#E & & ST )5/ 1E
use assets — (2,719)
Payment for acquisition of non- We B B 8 A R4 I M R 2
controlling interests in a subsidiary TH A (94,950) —
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B B B A R — (661)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE¥ % - BENREFME
and equipment RIE 10,026 3,215
Interest received BRI & 44,784 27,930
Disposal of subsidiaries i 6 BT B A A 36 889,321 369,784
Additions to equity investments BEAABEFEAHZHH
designated at fair value through other ABZFH SR E E
comprehensive income (3,700) —
Net cash flows generated from/(used R EEB B, (FiB) BER
in) investing activities BEFE 557,423 (306,621)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEFHHESHKE
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds % 77 7] #2 % & % BU 15 7 1B — 249,829
Placement of pledged bank deposits EFCDEMRITER (2,943,205) (3,674,929)
Release of pledged bank deposits RBREEFRRITER 3,899,406 2,057,569
New bank loans and other loans RITERREMERFEHIE 1,284,259 2,595,647
Repayment of bank loans and other BEBRTERREMER
loans (1,191,761) (2,664,686)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZzEAEEH (4,327) (38,386)
Capital contribution from non-controlling 3F % &l 14 # 25 H &
shareholders 5,111 8,500
Interest paid B E (71,118) (115,426)
Dividends paid ERARE (253,246) —
Net cash flows generated from/(used B EEB B, (FiB) BER
in) financing activities EFH 725,119 (1,581,882)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+-A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (JAAREZI(E)

2023 2022

—E-= —_ET- =
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T AR F T

Net(decrease)/increase in cash and RERBLZEYWOR D),
cash equivalents nFEE (365,807) 508,929

Cash and cash equivalents at the FOERESRBELEEY

beginning of the year 937,897 431,861
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSHNTETE

changes, net 6,274 (2,893)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRBELEEY

the end of the year 25 578,364 937,897

Analysis of balances of cash and cashiR &€ RE S ZEW 4 &
equivalents P
Cash and bank balances ReRIBITHEE 25 578,364 937,897
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g R

31 December 2023 R-ZT-_=F+—-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BEEAEIN  LARKZIE)

1. Corporate and group information 1. AREH
Solargiga Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together 5 RIERBR AR ([AQR ] - EREHK
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”, Hong Kong stock code: 757) BARGHEIAER]  BERMDARG:757)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman. The R—ERHAEREFMAIZIZER AR -
registered office of the Company is located at Cricket Square H 5t 3 SR AL 5 Cricket Square Hutchins
Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 Cayman Drive P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Islands. Cayman Islands °
The Group is a leading supplier of downstream vertically REBATHEEEGANGRRFENEL
integrated solar energy services. HER -
During the year, the Group was mainly engaged in the following HA AEBFTEREUATES:
businesses:
(@  the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules; (@ HEREEXKRAGH:
(b)  the construction and operation of photovoltaic power by HEEREEHKEL: R
plants; and
() the manufacture and trading of semiconductor, the trading (0 HERBEEYERIUKEEANGEE
of monocrystalline silicon solar cells and others. mm i B S HM o
Information about subsidiaries EHEMBRARIMNEFR
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB EEMBRARAMNFBET
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
it 1 $:040]
Place of incorporation/ Held Held
registration and Authorised/ by the by a
Name of company business registered/paid-in/issued capital Company  subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
IRAL/AINER AR/EM/EE/ mALY A-ENE
AR REREELY BRTER KE  DERE IZER EERR
% %
Jinzhou Rixin Silicon Materials Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Trading of photovoltaic Limited liability company
BHRBEMHERAD 4: RMB190,000,000 modules BREALA
MR ESEEAR%190,0000007 AR AN
Jinzhou Yangguang Energy Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Manufacture and trading of  Limited liability company
BNEEERERAT hE RMB,151,565,479 photovoltaic modules EREFAF
HMRESERARE PERERAREN
1,151,565,4797C
Shanghai Jingji Electronic Materials Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Manufacture and trading of  Limited liability company
LEERETHHERAT EP 596,950,000 photovoltaic modules ERERAF

iR E S276,950,000% T

RERERLNANS
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31 December 2023 R-ZE—-=#+-"A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHEAEIN - LARKZIE)
Corporate and group information (continued) 1. 28 E R (4)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERAMBARINER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
it 1 $:340]
Place of incorporation/ Held Held
registration and Authorised/ by the by a
Name of company business registered/paid-in/issued capital Company  subsidiary  Principal activities Legal form
IRAL/AIBER AR/ER/EH/ mALE A-EKE
AAER REREELE BERTER ¥E  DERE IEER EERR
% %
Solar Technology Investment (Cayman) Cayman Islands Authorised capital of HK$400,000,000 of 100 —  Investment holding Limited liability company
Corp. R HK$0.10 each and issued share capital RERR BRREAF
of HK$167,895,494
£ E A74000000008 T ERERE
010BTRERRA167895,494E T
Jinzhou Yangguang Jinmao Photovoltaic ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Manufacture and trading of  Limited liability company
Technology Co,, Ltd. ® RMB140,000,000 photovoltaic modules BRREAF
BN REARBRARAR R EHETARE140,000,0007 HEREERREN
Solargiga Energy (Hong Kong) Company  Hong Kong HK$1 100 —  Trading of polysiicon and Limited liability company
Limited B AT monocrystalline ingots/  ERETAT
BreR(ER) ERAT wafers/photovoltaic modules
BERMREH
Silicon Solar Materials Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
AEERIHERAT i BT REZR EREMAT
Sino Light Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Authorised capital of US$500,000 of 100 —  Investment holding Limited liability company
AERLHE US$0.001 each and issued share capital RERR ERREAF
of US$53,920
£ 2 ER500,000% 7T * B EE0.001
FTREETRAS3 0% T
You Xin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding Limited liability company
hERERRAR Bk 100,000/ 72 RERR EREALA
Jinzhou Huachang Photovoltaic Technology ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Trading of photovoltaic Limited liability company
Company Limited q: RMB130,000,000 modules BRREAF
BMZEANBRARAE iR RE S AR AR 130,000,000 BEERR Ak
Jinzhou Xinyangguang Photovoltaic PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Application Co,, Ltd ® RMB100,000,000 power plants BRREAT

BB RERARAA

R E 45 KA K 5100,000,0007

RRAKES
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS B IS B R B AR

31 December 2023 R-ZT-_=F+—-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHEAEIN  LARKZIE)

NEIE R @
BHEWEBATNER (&)

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

it 1 $:340]
Place of incorporation/ Held Held
registration and Authorised/ by the bya
Name of company business registered/paid-in/issued capital Company  subsidiary Principal activities Legal form
IRAL/AILER ER/EM/EE/ mALE A-ENE
AAER REREELY BRTER K& DRKE TERH EERR
% %
Jinzhou Xinlin Solargiga Industrial and PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar Limited liability company
Trading Co, Ltd. i RMB20,000,000 modules EREFAT
BHERGRIBARAA HMRESERAEH20,0000007 BEAB#EHRABEAR
Jinzhou Jiuxin Solargiga Technology and ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Trading of solar cells and solar Limited liability company
Trading Co, Ltd. i RMB20,000,000 modules EREFAT
BHAEBEAREERAT FMRESERAEH20,0000007T BEAB#EHRABEAR
Jinzhou Yangguang Motech Renewable PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Manufacture of Limited liability company
Energy Co, Ltd. h RMBG4,040,000 monacrystaline wafers EREFAT
BHE R ENERERAT HMRESERARK64,040,0007 HEREERREN
Jinzhou Chuanghui New Energy Co,, Ltd. ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Manufacture and trading of  Limited liability company
BEERERERAT i RMB200,000,000 photovoltaic modules EREFAT
R E S AR AR E200,000,0007T HEREERREN
Jinzhou Yiyang New Energy Co, Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Trading of photovoltaic Limited liability company
BMEEFRRERAT i RMB25,000,000 modules BREALA
HMRESERARH25,000,0007 EExMEHR
Liaoning Boxinke Semiconductor Material ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered and paid-in capital of - 51 Manufacture and trading of  Limited liability company
Co, ltd h RMB36,000,000 electronic semiconductor ~ EREE A
RERLRTEEMHERLA R E S ER AR 36,000,000 materials
YEREESTHEENH
Jiangsu Yueyang Photovoltaic Technology ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital of - 100 Manufacture of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Co, ltd i RMB217,990,000 modules EREFAT
TEHBXRBRERAR EMRESERARH217990,0007 HEtRAs
Jiangsu Xinyangguang Zhiding Technology ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland  Registered capital of RMB30,000,000 and - 70 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Co. Ltd. ("Jiangsu Zhiding”) i paid-in capital of RMB20,000,000 power plants EREFAT
IEHELEERRERDT AR ARS30000000T RESHE BERERES
(NT&ER)) AAR20,0000007
Qujing Xinyangguang Zhiding Technology ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered capital of RMB10,000,000 and - 75 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
Co,, Ltd. i paid-in capital of RMB2,000,000 power plants EREFAT

HERB X ERRRERAT

HRERARE10,000,000 RELER
AE#2,000,0007

REAKE
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31 December 2023 MW-ZE-=F+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHEAEIN - LARKZIE)
1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. 27 & (40
Information about subsidiaries (continued) ERAMBARINER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
it 1 $:340]
Place of incorporation/ Held Held
registration and Authorised/ by the by a
Name of company business registered/paid-in/issued capital Company  subsidiary  Principal activities Legal form
EMAL/RILER kE/ER/EE/ mALE A-EKE
PEEE: REREELY BRTER K& DERE IEXH EERR
% %
XSD Union Solar Tech Limited Hong Kong Registered capital of US$100,000 and - 51 Construction of photovoltaic  Limited liability company
B paid-in capital of i power plants BREEAH

HREAZ 2100000 RESEAST

The English translation of the company names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are based on the
official language of their respective place of incorporation.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"),
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for equity investments and
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

RRAHES

AREBHEXBRERSE - REATW
EXREZBERHSARMOHEHES -

ERRBESARIEFVEFAREALRE
RAREERID FEENAARMBEAR -
EEZRA MEFINEMMERRNEFR -
TEUREBNHITE -

gt BE

MR EE
ZEMBRRDREBEERESFHENEZES
((EEEEAZE )RR B R
SHEA((ERM B IREER ) BB SETAED
RE(BEEAMAE]) BRAZE BN B R
SEAN(EEFBRESER] BEMAE
BUMBREEN BAEFEN(ELEES
ERDE2E) BREARSFRAINEE
NEAGEPIRBEERTIARE - RIARREE
AENEZTARTEESB TR BE
TIREBEESLKAEBEIRE  ZFMBREK
NARB(TAREDIE BB HEHAIN
FEBECHEEREOT M -
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31 December 2023

(Expres

2.
2.1

RZZ=Z=F+=—A=+—H

sed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BHERAEIN - LARKZIE)

Accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

B E @)
B E X ()

MERBCESE

GAMBEREBEARAREWB AR (5
BAEERNEE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—
AIEFEzHB®RE - WBARAKRARE
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AEEHSMBEH REBKNTE ERE
EEBRKFEEFARESBEHEEN R
WEND(NAEEERTRBENANETER
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By - BDERAS 45 %l 4 -
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—RME BREVNEBRZHERARE
B MARRERAHMBERBEINEREY
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSAE XA -

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill) and liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange reserve; and recognises the
fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The IASB has issued a number of new and amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting year
commencing 1 January 2023 or later but available for early
adoption. The equivalent new and amendments to HKFRSs
consequently issued by the HKICPA have the same effective
dates as those issued by the IASB and are in all material aspects
identical to the pronouncements issued by the IASB.

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs/
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
statements:

IFRS17/HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IAS 1/

HKAS 1 and IFRS/
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8/ Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to IAS 12/ Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising a Single

Transaction
International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12/
HKAS 12

Except for the below amendments, none of these developments
to IFRSs and HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group have a material effect to the
Group’s results and financial position prepared or presented in
these financial statements.

2.1

2.2

e mRMEE

To=f+=f=1—A
A RMIE)

31 December 2023 K=
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(a

Amendments to IAS 12/HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception in IAS
12/HKAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit
is available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions.

Prior to the initial application of these amendments, the
Group applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related
to leases. The Group has applied the amendments on
temporary differences related to leases as at 1 January
2022. Upon initial application of these amendments, the
Group recognised (i) a deferred tax asset for all deductible
temporary differences associated with lease liabilities
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available), and (ii)
a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets at 1 January 2022,
with cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to
the balances of accumulated losses and non-controlling
interests at that date. The quantitative impact on the
financial statements is summarised below.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)
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31 December 2023

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H

AARKEDIE)

22 ESTBEREHRBE®)

(@  (continued) ) (#&)
Impact on the consolidated statements of financial HEeWBMRARNTE:
position:
Increase/(decrease)
O )
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—_E2-= = —F-—
+=ZA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—H —A—H
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR® T ARBEF T ARBTFT
Assets EE
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E (i) 337 267 194
Liabilities a8
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIEBE 0) (3) (3) (5)
Net assets BEE 334 264 189
Equity P&
Accumulated losses Z2itEiE
(included in reserves) (BERE) 334 194 139
Equity attributable to BRENE AT
owners of the parent % R &9 2= 334 194 139
Non-controlling interests 3 22 1] 14 # 25 — 70 50
Total equity R 334 264 189
Note (i): The deferred tax asset and the deferred tax liability H0): AYVHmAEN EA—FRARMNMBEEASR

arising from lease contracts of the same subsidiary have
been offset in the statement of financial position for
presentation purposes.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (continued)

(a

(continued) @)
Impact on the consolidated statements of profit or loss:

Income tax expense from continuing HECEEBNAERER

22 ESTBHREHRBE @)

(#&)
HircEaRNTE
Increase/(decrease)
o Cr )

For the year ended 31 December
HET-A=+—HILFE
2023 2022
—E-= i —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBF T

operations (70) (75)
Profit for the year from continuing FEIEEXEB 2 FEFE
operations 70 75
Profit for the year F = A B 70 75
Attributable to: LATRA A
Owners of the parent B ARIRE 64 55
Non-controlling interests FE ¥ I M 2 6 20
70 75
Total comprehensive income for FEZHVALRE
the year 70 75
Attributable to: LATAT ML :
Owners of the parent BRAIRR 64 55
Non-controlling interests 4 I M 6 20
70 75

The adoption of amendments to IAS 12/HKAS 12 did
not have any material impact on the basic and diluted
earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, other comprehensive income and the
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (continued)

(b)

Amendments to |AS 12/HKAS 12 International Tax
Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and disclosure
of deferred taxes arising from the implementation of
the Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements
for the affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand the entities’ exposure to
Pillar Two income taxes, including the disclosure of current
tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the
periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the
disclosure of known or reasonably estimable information
of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods
in which the legislation is enacted or substantively
enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has applied the
amendments and the mandatory temporary exception
retrospectively. Further disclosures are included in note 11
to the financial statements.

2.3 Issued but not yet effective IFRSs/HKFRSs

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
and HKICPA have issued a number of amendments which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2023 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it is concluded that the initial adoption
is unlikely to have significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Material accounting policies
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments
in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in
a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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24 ERSHHEM®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets
and non-current assets), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5/HKFRS 5. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal useful lives used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings located on
leasehold land

Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and estimated useful
lives, being no more than 50 years

after the date of completion

Plant, machinery and
equipment

6 to 30 years

Other fixed assets 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful
life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease component, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease component
and to account for the lease component and the associated non-
lease component (e.g., property management services for leases
of properties) as a single lease component.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold lands 50 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Office buildings 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either
an operating lease or a finance lease.
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24 ERSHHEM®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15/
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32/HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required
to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred assets is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification.
At each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
investments are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments.
Debt investments graded in the top investment categories by
the Credit Rating Agency are considered to be low credit risk
investments. It is the Group’s policy to measure ECLs on such
instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of debt investments since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.
The Group uses the ratings from the Credit Rating Agency both
to determine whether the debt instruments have significantly
increased in credit risk and to estimate ECLs.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

z4§kéﬁﬁ%@>

M EERME(

— 8877 % (48)

REREEM  ARBEFEANSRDES
MIAMEEERREAEEN - £8T
TR AREEREREANEBRIAY
ERONARENEEBAMSH AR
LR EREITHE - ERT B A
BETLRERRATUEHRALEN O

BEELMATEERES -

ARMFEHIORE  AEEBEEME
F%ﬁi%L%’] AT EREBRAT - BRE
LN EERARERCERAEEH TS
RIAE ] {5 IS A 2 BT KA g 2 B U B R
BENEGRSER  ~AEEDAERAESH
BEEY -

HRUARBEFELEEBEARENE
BRE  AEBERABEEARREL - RS
BERY AEESEAMBESE KA
MERFHREBRERETRBERAEEAR
BIK - BEFTBZHORAKBN - HEITH
i AEBEEHIHEFRENINSER
AR WERTRRBEFSTERKRER
MEBKRERAS/TEEARRKE - K
SENBRERZEARERFEMET
AME2HERAERE - AN EEKREN
ﬁ%ﬂ P EEEARBELGINE  BER
AERE2HEAEBE AEEEAERF
REBOIRRBEEEFETANEHRER
ERBEEMAGH 2B ERER -

BREAEBHEESENRSRER - ¥
BEESHME -



108

SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED R3¢ 88IRIZRBRA R

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fin B B 3% 3R R B RE

b7 N =

31 December 2023
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSAEXHEI] -

2.4

RZZ=Z=F+=—A=+—H
UAREESIE)

Material accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 —

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
an amount due to the ultimate holding company, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost(trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Material accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out
in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of
financial position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of
convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders' equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible bonds
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Convertible bonds (continued)

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated from
its liability component. On initial recognition, the derivative
component of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value
and presented as part of derivative financial instruments. Any
excess of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as the liability component.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
derivative components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative components
when the instruments are initially recognised. The portion
of the transaction costs relating to the liability component is
recognised initially as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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24 ERSHHEM®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are initially recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate. The warranty-
related cost is revised annually.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 ERETTEER®

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the statement
of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses and staff welfare costs are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present values.

(ii)  Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Contributions to local retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in Chinese Mainland
and Hong Kong are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred, except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes, except that deferred

tax is not recognised for the Pillar Two income taxes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued) 24 EXEFTBE®

Income tax (continued)

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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24 ERSHHEM®

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15/HKFRS 15.

(i) Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of industrial products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the industrial
products.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Processing services

Revenue from the processing services rendered is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date. The
input method recognises revenue based on the proportion
of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the processing services.

(i) Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of
which are included in the accounting policies for impairment of
financial assets. They are reclassified to trade receivables when
the right to the consideration becomes unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.
However, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are presented in RMB, as the directors of the Company consider
that the major subsidiaries of the Company are all presented
in RMB and meanwhile this presentation is more useful for
its current and potential investors. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

24 EXEFHE®

o
ARBMWERERETT - A NEBELR
BUMBREAARBZH - TARARAE
ERRBARAIEMNBRARHUARKEZ
HoMABLERUBEREEREEER
BR - AREANERSAREANERYE
B SERNM B RERBH UM ENE
EREE - IERFNIRRZEANERY
EERMEXBEAR - UIINELHEE
MHE¥EERAE RARMWEEER
BENRAERMATEXBRE - B¥ R
BEREIELZENBERTER -

BELRADNE LI ENIFERIR
B HANSXZAHNEXRKE - BRF
B - AOMESHEIFERIRE - BIRA
EEAFERPMERKRE - RBEUARQ
FEFENFERREMELZESE &
BRESARERZBEEAFEEHER L
ARA-HEIAFEREENEMCE2EKRARN
BRzZBBZHREZERBaTDIRE
fh2EBARBEANER) -

RETEKIREFENIFEEEERF
ERABERIEAKEBEE AW
ARV HRBOEE - X ZAH AR
SEVTHABANBMANREEENIESR
BUHBESFEELEARE-



120 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED [ &5z &R 2 5

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IIF

CLEEE Y

31 December 2023 HZZ=—=4#+=-A=+—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHEAEIN  LARKZIE)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

(@  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each
asset, after taking into account the estimated residual
value. Management reviews annually the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any. Both the period
and methods of depreciation are reviewed annually. The
depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates.
Further details are given in note 15 to the financial
statements.

(b)  Impairment of non-financial assets

Management assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(0

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on ageing for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacture
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer's actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in note
22 to the financial statements.
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EXREF AR A E

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Write-down of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs to completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacture and selling products
of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in technique and competitors’ actions in response
to adverse industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 December 2023 the Group provided for the write-
down of inventories amounting to RMB49,085,000 (2022:
RMB90,086,000).
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(f)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2023 was nil
(2022: Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2023 was RMB701,304,000 (2022:
RMB968,750,000). Further details are disclosed in note 20
to the financial statements.

Provision for warranties

The Group provides warranties for its photovoltaic
modules for up to 25 years after sales have taken place.
Due to limited warranty claims history, management
estimates warranty based on the Group's historical cost
data, industry data and an assessment of the history of
warranty claims of the Group’s competitors. The warranty
obligation of the Group will be affected not only by the
product failure rates, but also by costs incurred to repair
or replace failed products. If the actual product failure
rates and the costs of replacement or repairing of failed
products differ from the estimates, the Group will need
to prospectively revise the provision for warranties which
would affect profit or loss in future years. Further details
of the Group’s provision for warranties are given in note
30 to the financial statements.
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4.

Operating segment information

In a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, (the “CODM") for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has identified three reportable segments in 2023:

(i) the manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules
("Segment A");

(i) the construction and operation of photovoltaic power
plants (“Segment B”); and

(i) the manufacture and trading of semiconductor, the trading
of monocrystalline silicon solar cells and others (“Segment
C”).

No operating segments have been aggregated to form these
reportable segments. Revenue, costs and expenses are allocated
to those reportable segments with reference to sales generated
by those segments and the costs and expenses incurred by those
segments.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s CODM
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the basis as they are presented in the
Group's financial statements.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

e mRMEE

31 December 2023 R-ZE—-=#+-"A=+—H

ARKIIE)
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4. Operating segment information (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s CODM for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 is set out below:

Segment A
2HA

4, REDETEFR(E\)

DHEE BENMBEGE)

HE-_ZE-_=Ffrk-_ZFE-_—_F+=-A=1+—
HEFEMAEEGERRATHEREABR
HOBEAEE RS D BAE RE D 0

T
Segment B Segment C Total
2%8 28 #it

2023 2022
ZECCF Eekieiakid
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BNEEE
(Restated)
(E5)

2023 2022 2023

ZECCE ket —F-=
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BNCCEIM AR%TT

128,667 189,593 42,530
23,286 15,778 251,252

2022 2023 2022

“E-c-f Pkl T f

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARSTT WNLEwH \RETT

(Restated)
(E5)

35419 7,192,853 6,869,362
126,426 5,530,063 5,538,618

151,953 205,371 293,782

161,845 12,722,916 12,407,980

Revenue from external customers RENREFHNKE 7,021,656 6,644,350
Intersegment revenue A EEsE 5,255,525 5,396,414
Reportable segment revenue PEERET ¢ 12,277,181 12,040,764
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AREASBHE/ (BE) 168,498 (85,287)

130 (5177) (26,960)

(44,265) 141,668 (134,729)

3|
B
of
=
%’r
s
24

Reportable segment assets 3,482,596 5,395,632

257,192 206,652 1,928,407

2,135,007 5,668,195 7,737,291

=]
E
off
o
e
pinng
SR

Reportable segment liabilities 3,411,269 5,226,939

158,533 141,752 905,284

1162902 4,475,086 6,531,593

Other segment information:

Segment A
2HA

2022
—ZC-CF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BNEEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INL S | RETT

AR#TT PNERP AR% T PN

Hth o 5w E
Segment B Segment C Total
2%8 28 a3t
2023 2022 2022
ot dagt ) —T - F - St -3

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Interest income from bank deposits ROEZNFERA 19,677 20,086 91 30 14,326 6,254 34,094 26,370
Finance costs BEMK (41,047) (36,650) (8,334) (6,224) (21,737) (35,919) (71,118) (78,793)
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (148,010) (139,319) (2,741) (1,734) (8,036) (7,281) (158,787) (148,334)
Investment in associates HBERANRE 1,000 1,000 200 200 - - 1,200 1,200
Reversal of impairment losses/ HBRENEERBEER

(impairment losses) on financial /i)

and contract assets 12,669 (37,837) (385) (701) 367 17,324 12,651 (21,214)
Reversal of write-down/(Write-down) BEMEE®R/ (W)

of inventories 42,184 (86,727) - - (77) — 42,107 (86,727)
Capital expenditure* BRR* 50,720 126,877 9,651 38,401 24,104 7212 84,475 172,490
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARAXBERNEYVE BMERZHE -

equipment.
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Operating segment information (continued) 4. & 2 BEF (@)
Geographic information (2 & K
Substantially all of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, REEME BELEZH CABEERR
right-of-use assets, and interests in associates are located or B AR MR N PR PRELE -
operated in Chinese Mainland.
The following table sets out information about the Group’s TREMEHMINEAEBRRBINAEFH
revenue from external customers by geographical location. The W o BREMIEA B AR P AT 26 A K
geographical location of a customer is based on the locations & e
of the customers.
2023 2022
g = —_F—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Chinese Mainland A B K e 5,981,401 5,193,815
Export sales B A E
— Japan — BHAK 936,124 1,402,079
— Europe — BUM 122,170 95,657
— Asia (excluding Japan) — M (FEEEX) 86,882 172,029
— Others — Hfth 66,276 5,782
Sub-total NET 1,211,452 1,675,547
Total BEt 7,192,853 6,869,362
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. & 2 ZE R (40

Information about major customers FEEFPHAR
For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue from a single HEZZT-=F+ZA=+—HLEFE K
customer, including a group of entities which are known to be BEETEFPHKE  BECHNEZEFBH
under common control with that customer, which amounted to EHESIM—EEE  HAEELKZEI0%K
10% or more to the Group's total revenue, is set out below: A EEEHINWT:
2023 2022
—Eg-= -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARMBF T
Customer A EPA
— From Segment A — KRB P HA 1,315,111 1,148,101
2023 2022
—E=-= ==
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREF T
Customer B =FB
— From Segment A and C — REDEARC 1,241,600 838,966
2023 2022
—g=-= - =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBF T
Customer C BPC

— From Segment A — RE DA 981,919 1,327,770
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Revenue 5. W=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T:
2023 2022
—_ZFg-= P = —
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Manufacture and trading of photovoltaic modules 7‘51?(@1’-?9’]%}5 BE 5,779,995 5,839,067
Construction and operation of photovoltaic power 3¢ {k & ik 32 3% £2 ¢ é%
plants 128,667 189,593
Manufacture and trading of semiconductor, the ¥ EENRELREH + &
trading of monocrystalline silicon solar cells and FEEAGEEELHNER
others R E A 42,488 35,419
Rendering of services RHRB% 1,241,703 805,283

7,192,853 6,869,362
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W 2 (@)

HEPEITERMHEA

D EEWAEE
BE-E-=ZH+ZH=+—HLEFE

5. Revenue (continued) 5.
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

Segment A Segment B Segment C Total
2BA 2B 28C @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tx
Types of goods and service BAmAMREHER
Sale of industrial products BETERM 5,779,995 4,479 42,488 5,826,962
Processing service RIRH® 1,241,661 — 42 1,241,703
Construction services HERY — 124,188 — 124,188
Total @t 7,021,656 128,667 42,530 7,192,853
Geographical markets & 5
Chinese Mainland GEN 5,810,204 128,667 42,530 5,981,401
Japan AR 936,124 — — 936,124
Europe B 122,170 — — 122,170
Asia (excluding Japan) TN (FREEK) 86,882 — - 86,882
Other Hit 66,276 — — 66,276
Total @t 7,021,656 128,667 42,530 7,192,853
Timing of revenue recognition WX A 32 B
Goods transferred at a point in time &% X EBEHEEH 5,779,995 4,479 42,488 5,826,962
Services transferred over time PR 7% B s 48 7 1,241,661 124,188 42 1,365,891
Total @t 7,021,656 128,667 42,530 7,192,853
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Revenue (continued) 5. W&HF @
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEPEFERKAGE
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i BRAEEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-_ZE_—_F+-A=+—HLEFE
Segment A Segment B Segment C Total
2 EA 7 B AHC @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETT ARBTT ARET:
Types of goods and service BRAREHER
Sale of industrial products BETEHESG 5,839,067 3,112 35,419 5,877,598
Processing service RIRH 805,283 — — 805,283
Construction services BERB — 186,481 — 186,481
Total Bar 6,644,350 189,593 35,419 6,869,362
Geographical markets WE TS
Chinese Mainland A B 4,968,850 189,593 35,372 5,193,815
Japan AR 1,402,032 — 47 1,402,079
Asia (excluding Japan) TN (TREBRR) 172,029 — — 172,029
Europe B 95,657 — — 95,657
Others it 5,782 - - 5,782
Total Bar 6,644,350 189,593 35,419 6,869,362
Timing of revenue recognition WX A 2B
Goods transferred at a point in time &% XEFRHIEES 5,839,067 3,112 35,419 5,877,598
Services transferred over time REEREER 805,283 186,481 - 991,764
Total Bar 6,644,350 189,593 35,419 6,869,362
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5. Revenue (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

AARKEDIE)

& AC )
HEPEITARMNKAE

(i)

7 BRAE B (&)
TREAFAREHARIBORA R
# o oeRERESHTnanasEs
WeRme AR HIRMENRL:

2023 2022
—E-= - —
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Revenue recognised that was BERAEBREREHINEL
included in contract liabilities at BEMEA:
the beginning of the
reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HEILEER 318,662 136,023
Construction services B 72 AR 7% 10,356 5,060
Total 485t 329,018 141,083
Performance obligations (ih BHEE

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon the
acceptance of industrial products by customers and
payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery, except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

Processing service

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due within
30 to 90 days after customer acceptance.

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered. Payment in advance is normally
required at the beginning of the service, and progress
payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing.

FHEASERHEENER M
T

HETFEEm
EEFPEITIXERBR/TKENE
T BRTBERERANRANHTER
MNERP S FORE AR F1K30E90
RAEH -

IR
R—BEERARERESAERBENE
- -MBEEEFEXEI0E90AA
EIHR o

H ZE AR %
R—EBEREAREREAERBENE
T ENREEREREHAREENR
LIREENF—RERKEARZEZ
H#£30E90Kk N XL »
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5. Revenue (continued) 5. WEHF
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) HEPEITEROUAGE)
(i) Performance obligations (continued) (iy BHEETUE)
Construction services (continued) L E R (1B)
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining HETZA=T—H8 HEHEFHHN
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially BHAEBEE(RTHIETKLS)EER
unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows: BRMTE:
2023 2022
—E_= T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
Sale of industrial products HETIEE®R 35,633 318,662
Construction services B 32 AR 7% 2,363 10,356
Within one year —&R" 37,996 329,018
6. Other income and gains 6. HMWARK=
2023 2022
—Eg2=-= —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Other income Hig A
Government grants (note 31) IR #68 B (BF5E31) 63,401 37,470
Interest income from bank deposits AT A F B A 34,094 26,370
97,495 63,840
Other gains/(losses), net Htthz (E1E) FH8E
Net foreign exchange gain S EE Uy 25 05 58 30,999 43,919
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREEEE
equipment R (711) (71)
Gain from sales of other materials HE MM R 4,264 1,957
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 36(b)) & — KK B QA 2=
(Fft 52 36(b)) — 713
Gain on disposal of investment in HERER —KEERFIZ
an associate I 2= — 600
Others Hity 8,513 2,146
43,065 49,264

Other income and gains, net Hfth r A & W 2% 140,560 113,104
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7. Profit/(loss) before tax

The Group's profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations
is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR B AT FE (& 18)

AREFBEBEEEBIBRBAFE, (BE)
Bk (EE)

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREF T
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (@) BIRK(BEESHMH
remuneration (note 9)) (i) (Bt 5£9)) (i)
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IERAMEFR 274,032 203,032
Contributions to retirement schemes RORET &I 23,343 16,437
297,375 219,469
2023 2022
—_=2_= -
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AR F T
(b) Auditors’ remuneration (b) B
Audit services 7 H R 2,750 3,148
Non-audit services IEZ ERTE 256 1,220

3,006 4,368
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AARKEDIE)

7. BRBIATRE (EE)E

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
(c) Other items Hfit®mE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENTE
(note 17) (4 5£17) 7,773 25,097
Depreciation of property, plant and M BERZED
equipment (note 15) (i) #1 & (M1 3E15) () 151,014 305,839
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down FECRERMH),
of inventories WAE (42,107) 86,546
Provision/(reversal of provision) for RAKREE (5
warranties (note 30) 1 %) (Kt 5£30) 35,604 (23,850)
Research and development costs Tt 75 f& [ 25 Bk AR 63,749 98,203
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ BB REHNEECRE
impairment losses on financial and BH) R (E
contract assets (12,651) 26,274
Impairment losses of property, plant M- WERZHE
and equipment (note 15) B (P 5E15) — 43,039
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BMERZE
and equipment (note 6) #Y &5 18 % 78 (M 75e) FAN 7
Cost of inventories sold (i) BEEFERKA(®) 5,459,114 5,724,220
Cost of services rendered (i) 212 AR 7 A A () 1,275,736 873,878
Interest income from bank deposits |ATIF R 2 FB A
(note 6) (Bt 5%6) (34,094) (26,370)
Gain on disposal of investment in an HEREN — K&
associate NEZ W — (600)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRB AR 2 W=
(note 36(b)) (Bt 51 36(0)) — (713)
(i) Cost of inventories sold and cost of services rendered include, in (i) HE-_Z-_=Ff+-_A=+—HLFENEE

aggregate, RMB344,649,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB273,956,000), relating to staff costs and depreciation
whose amounts are also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above.

FERAREBRERBKABEEBEE IR
AT E A £ AR #344,649,000C (= F =

—F: ANR¥273

,956,0007T) * #Z sK B IFET A

RN EXDFREN R EFRIREE -
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8. Finance costs 8. WEMA

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR T ARBETF T

Interest on bank and other loans wholly ARAFTREHEBNERITR

repayable within five years HEtERF B 69,253 77,084
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 1,865 1,709

Total interest expenses on financial liabilities 3F3Z A F{E R B R BEYI BRI %

not at fair value through profit or loss BENT EMXBE 71,118 78,793
9. Directors’ remuneration 9. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the RIR LR A REH B QT E383(1)@)
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong (b) ~ ORMMEARAG(FEBREEMNTER)
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure ROIE2BETHRENFAEETHE O T
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:

2023 2022
—E-= —_=E- =
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREFIT
Fees we 324 300
Other emoluments: HEM & :
Salaries, allowances, bonus and benefits e R Bek
in kind Y F &= 3,554 3,21
Retirement scheme contributions RAOKET B 5K 16 15
3,570 3,226

3,894 3,526
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9. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9. EEME£ (m)

Salaries,

allowances,
bonus and Retirement
benefits scheme

in kind  contributions
EXxFe -
B RER R R Et E
we BEYR & #X @t
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR AR TR AR TR AR TR

Executive directors HITES

Tan Wenhua EIE — 864 - 864
Tan Xin (chief executive) BETHER) - 1,621 16 1,637
Wang Junze THE — 367 — 367
Non-executive director FBTES

Hsu You Yuan B — 702 — 702

Independent non-executive directors B HITES

Wong Wing Kuen, Albert T oK 108 — — 108
Chung Wai Hang EEY 108 — — 108
Tan Ying EH 108 — — 108

Total st 324 3,554 16 3,894
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9. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9. EEMEw®
2022
—E--
Retirement
scheme
Fees contributions Total
we RIRET &I R @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HITES
Tan Wenhua EE — — 797
Tan Xin (chief executive) EETHER) — 15 1,510
Wang Junze THE — — 271
Non-executive director FBTES
Hsu You Yuan By — — 648
Independent non-executive directors B HITES
Wong Wing Kuen, Albert T oK 100 — — 100
Feng Wenli(i) -3¢ 10) 53 — — 53
Chung Wai Hang(ii) @E (i) 47 — — 47
Lian Taoljii) Bk 7% (i) 80 — — 80
Tan Ying(iv) FH (v) 20 — — 20
Total Bt 300 15 3,526
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Directors’ remuneration (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2022: Nil).

(i) Ms. Feng Wenli resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from July 2022.

(i) Ms. Chung Wai Hang was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect from July 2022.

(iii) ~ Mr. Lian Tao resigned as an independent non-executive
director with effect from October 2022.

(iv)  Ms. Tan Ying was appointed as an independent non-
executive director with effect from October 2022.

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2022: three) directors including the chief executive whose
remuneration are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the
remuneration in respect of the remaining two (2022: two)
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company is as follows:

9.

10.

AR B IR AR A

31 December 2023 R-ZE—-=#+-"A=+—H

MARETIE)
EEME )
NER TEEEXSESTHABITIE

MZHREIAERBELANE (T
T

(i) BXBZLTtEZZTZZFtARESE
NVIEBITESE -

(i) #EEWMZTA-_T__F+tAEZE
BENIERNITES o

(i) BEERXEBZZTEZ_Z_F1+AR
FEHMITESE o

(iv) BRZITE-Z-_—_F+AEZETA
BYFERITES -

TEBRSHFMES

FRARAEReTNEERE=R2( 2T ==

FZR)EEREESTHRAR)  HEH
TR FIORE - TR (=Z2==
RV EARREEFSA RS THRAENKZ
SHMEENFHABNT

2023 2022

—_E_-= T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® Tt AR F T

Basic salaries, allowances, bonus and EAHF¢ 28 - HEeLEY

benefits in kind F 7% 1,783 1,644
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes MAEATE ST E 32 30
1,815 1,674
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10. Five highest paid employees (continued) 10. EEESFHMES @
The remuneration of the remaining two (2022: two) highest paid BTG ( T —F - —R)EaFMES
are within the following: B 3 B B DA T AR Bl
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-—
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1
Above HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7t A £ 1 1
2 2
11. Income tax 1. FrEF
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss @) EBABRFRFERARS:
represents:
2023 2022
—_=E_-= —_=E- =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®B T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(E751)
Current tax — the PRC BIEA 18 — b
Provision for the year FEEBE 24,122 15,717
Overprovision in respect of prior years i@ 14 & fB %8 # & (11,128) (2,740)
12,994 12,977
Deferred tax (note 20) i E B 18 ( 5120) 2,468 3,209
Income tax expense from continuing $5EBLEXBF 2 MSHER
operations 15,462 16,186
Income tax expense from ERIECEEBZMSHER
discontinued operation — 141,159
15,462 157,345
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11. Income tax (continued) 1. IEH &)

(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit (b)y HAAXRDREEKXBSWE QR EM
before tax at the statutory rate for the country in which B 0% 5E T K PR 5T & 89 B B AT AR &Y
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are MIERY  ERBEBRRNEFENN
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is BERZTHENAT:
as follows:

2023 2022
—E=-= ==
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) before taxation from continuing #3485 4% & % 7% = & %% A 7
operations B (E18) 157,130 (118,543)
Profit before taxation from discontinued BRI EEEBZBREIA
operation b — 1,387,976
Profit before taxation B 5 A A 157,130 1,269,433
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEBERFENTIA 39,283 317,358
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AP L EOB BT R 1,636 2,067
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFET UL AN B T 7 2 2 (1.355) (5,314)
Effect of differential tax rates (note(ii)) TR ENZE
CiE=a0)) 631 4,978
Effect of tax concessions obtained (note(iii)) Ff7 % &% 75 8 H H) & £
(i &% (i) (22,371) (175,675)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and EARERAAREARIBEE
temporary differences not recognised REREBENNETE 6,428 24,420
Utilisation of unused tax loss and temporary %) 18 1+ Hi 5 14 R #E 32
differences not recognised in previous ﬂi@ﬂﬂfﬁlﬁgﬁ,ﬂ&gﬁ%
periods =% (623) (74,647)
Additional taxable income arising from HEMBARMESNE
disposal of subsidiaries HNFE 49 T FT 45 — 65,309
Effect of withholding tax on the BRBEAEEFRFRQ
distributable profits of the Group’s PRC AIE A 9 B FE 8 2 2
subsidiaries 2,961 12,077
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ¥ LABTHIR & HIATE R A
previous periods (note(iv)) A& (M3 Gv) (11,128) (13,228)
Tax charge at the Group effective rate BRAEBERBESED
BIE B X 15,462 157,345
Tax charge from continuing operations at IRIFELEEF TR X
the effective rate ATHEOBIER X 15,462 16,186
Tax charge from a discontinued operation at ?ﬁﬂ%ﬂ:i‘“ﬁ%ﬁ’%,ﬂ%ﬁ
the effective rate R HEOTIERE — 141,159
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R=F-=#F+-A=1—A
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSEXHEI] -

1.

AARKEDIE)

Income tax (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

As stated in note 2.2(d), the Group has applied the mandatory
exception to recognising and disclosing information about
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from Pillar Two income
taxes, and will account for the Pillar Two income taxes as
current tax when incurred. Pillar Two legislation has been
enacted or substantively enacted in certain jurisdictions in
which the Group operates, and the legislation will be effective
for the Group's financial year beginning 1 January 2024.

The Group has assessed its potential exposure based on the
information available regarding the financial performance of
the Group in the current year and prior years of 2022 and
2021. As such, it may not be entirely representative of future
circumstances. Based on the assessment, the Group’s effective
tax rates in all jurisdictions in which it operates and Pillar
Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted are
above 15% and the directors of the Company are not currently
aware of any circumstances under which they might change.
Therefore, the Group does not expect potential exposure to
Pillar Two “top-up” taxes.

Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong during the year.

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the local rules and regulations of their
respective countries of incorporation.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Germany was 15% for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: 15%).
income tax has been made as the subsidiary incorporated in
Germany did not have any taxable profits for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

No provision for German

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Ghana was 35% for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: 35%). No provision for Ghana income
tax has been made as the subsidiary incorporated in Ghana did
not have any taxable profits for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

1. T8
(b)

()
B -

0]

(i)

mE

%
E

2 2R AEEBELERT
HRARMBBERNE —XAEPEH
O FE Y B B AN B R RO 58 1R 51
VTHEELEREE _XHEMAEHER
BN FE_HRUFEEAEEE
BR R LRAE S G E K EESE
VTHE-F-_MF-—A-ABRBEHAE
SEFBFEER -

AEECRBEBENFEMN T
CEM_R_-FRMFENASENM
BREBOAAERTEEELERR
Rt - BRI A T %ﬁ%*xm%
e BETE AEEEEZEELRD
BlERBEESES X EILENAA
AAERRNARKRELBIBIS%
BRRAMEEAAILA FBAEM A
BEMEMER o Bt - AEBETES
BRARERERE S EMEMIF -

FREENESHRZARENFEEM
ﬁi%%ﬁAE%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%

16.5% (ZZF = —4F :16.5%) 5t &
AR NERHEES N EBE X

BEMARIOMEARREESSE
it P 32 B 2R 10 & 3 AR I K 3R 01 8 78 A
MERMER -

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—BLtHF
B ARB R EE MK/ E A F
HRAREEREARISR (ZE-—_F:
15%) ° B 7 5% 8 72 12 B 5 il Ak <2 /9 P
BRIREBE-ZE-_=F+_A=1+—
BIEFEY ETAERBFE - I
EEHERREHER( 2T ==
") o

HE-_ZT-_=F+-_A=+—HILF
[ AR BRI FE A L KB A R
EAREEBRERIR (ZE =
35%) o B 5% [ 7E O 4R = 118 AR 32 &Y B
BRARANBE-_S-_=F+-A=+—
BIEFEY \EMERBFE - K
EEHMAMEHEE( 2T ==
') o
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11. Income tax (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

(continued)

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Australia was 25% for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil). No provision for Australia income
tax has been made as the subsidiary incorporated in Australia
did not have any taxable profits for the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The income tax rate of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is 25%
except for the subsidiaries mentioned below:

Jinzhou Yangguang has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
since 2012, and has been registered with the local tax
authority to be eligible for a reduced income tax rate of 15%.
“High and New Technology Enterprise” certificate need to be
renewed every three years. Jinzhou Yangguang has renewed
the certificate in 2021 effective for a term of three years.
Accordingly, Jinzhou Yangguang was entitled to the 15%
income tax rate for 2023 and 2022.

Jiangsu Yueyang has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
in 2021 for a term of three years, and has been registered with
the local tax authority to be eligible for a reduced income tax
rate of 15%. Accordingly, Jiangsu Yueyang was entitled to the
15% income tax rate for 2023 and 2022.

Boxinke has been accredited as “High and New Technology
Enterprise” by the relevant government authority in 2021 for
a term of three years, and has been registered with the local
tax authority to be eligible for a reduced income tax rate of
15%. Accordingly, Boxinke was entitled to the 15% income
tax rate for 2023 and 2022.

Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co., Ltd. (”"Qujing
Yangguang”), in accordance with the “Catalogue of Industries
Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region”, has been
registered with the local tax authority to be eligible for
a reduced income tax rate of 15%. Accordingly, Qujing
Yangguang was entitled to the 15% income tax rate for 2022.
As disclosed in note 36, Qujing Yangguang was disposed of
in 2022.

31 December 2023 A=
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSAE XA -

e mRMEE

To=f+=f=1—A
A RMIE)

1. IEH &)

(b)  (#)

=

BsE: (8)

(i)

(iii)

(48)

HE-_Z-_=F+-_A=+—BLF
& AR RV RR K FI 28 5 A S A B
BRAREANEEHREAR2% (ZF=
ZF ) o A ZEER KR
RN BRARANBEE-TE=_=F+
A+ BALFEELETAERB
FB - B A VR DR KRR AR R
BE(CTE__F:|\)-

AN E BB B A RO AT B K
7325% » MET BB AR BRA :

BNGRE T —FEEABRNER
By matlEeglmt YEAE
W EHEERL  FEERRBIRIS%
B EHARERH - [mH R
BEB=FEH R-FT=_—FEF
WBMNEABEMESMREACEIE
E2 BRBPAR-T-_—FE-T_=
FoAB=F - At SHMBEXRZ
TR T —FARIS%AER
EHB o

TR T —FEFBAREE
BETIEFECEIML  REB=
FoAEMERBEEER &
BERERMIBI5% MR EHERED - B
e IHRRBER-_ZE =R
FARI5% SR LR/ -

FRYERBN T - FEFHEBN
ERETIEFRE I A
=F VWEREMBBEREERD &
A EBERRIRIS% KB KBTS HL -
Hit  BEFLEBEBRN_T_=R=-TF
ZoFEARIS% SRR o

HEGEF e RN BRAE ([HhiE
BRDEREBEEDREBEEEE
SFIAE MRS EEERD  FEAERR
RIS% B REAEH - Bt - i
BN T —FAIRIS%AEH
KR o NI FE36FTHE & - HhiE 5 X
ERZE__FHE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSEXHEI] -

11. Income tax (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

Jiangsu Zhiding has been accredited as “High and New
Technology Enterprise” by the relevant government authority
in 2023 for a term of three years, and has been registered
with the local tax authority to be eligible for a reduced income
tax rate of 15%.
Zhiding is construction and operation of photovoltaic system.

Moreover, the main business of Jiangsu

According to the Catalogue of Income Tax Incentives for
Public Infrastructure Projects issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the income from investment and operation of projects such
as ports and wharves, airports, railways, highways, urban
public transportation, electric power, and water conservancy
is exempt from income tax for the first three profit-making
years and reduced by half for the fourth to sixth profit-making
years. The photovoltaic system construction project of Jiangsu
Zhiding is under the scope of the above catalogue, and Jiangsu
Zhiding obtained operating income for the first time in 2021.
Therefore, for 2022 and 2023, Jiangsu Zhiding has been the
three-year period of exemption from corporate income tax.

It mainly represented the reversal of income tax expenses
arising from the difference between annual tax settlement
and income tax provision of Jinzhou Yangguang for the year
2022. As disclosed in Note 36(a), the disposal gain of Qujing
Yangguang was RMB1,043,840,000 which was against the
accumulated tax losses of Jinzhou Yangguang in income tax
provision. Being a “High and New Technology Enterprise, the
tax losses are allowed to be carried forward up to 10 years,
then the financial impact was RMB11,745,000 for the current
year.

12. Discontinued operation

In October 2022, Jinzhou Yangguang entered into an equity
transfer agreement (“Equity Transfer Agreement”) with three
entities controlled by Mr. Tan Wenhua and/or Mr. Tan Xin and
two entities controlled by China Lesso Group, an independent
third party (collectively the “Purchasers”), pursuant to which
Jinzhou Yangguang agreed to sell and the Purchasers agreed
to acquire the entire equity interest in Qujing Yangguang at an
aggregate consideration of approximately RMB1,350,000,000
(the "Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on 30 December
2022 (the "Disposal Date”) and a gain of RMB1,043,840,000
was recognised by the Group upon the completion of the

Disposal.

AARKEDIE)

. I8 ®H @
by ()

BRE: (8
(iif) (%)

IHEER-_TS_—FEEERFE
BETFIEFARMEEI ML A=
ﬁ WERENBEREEL T4
BRIB15% O R EHBARBEH - 1t
&\H;I@x CTEXZEBARRREE
SRR ARAE B ED B (A E
WMREBBEMSRERBE)  BOH
9IS BB A CHmARR
i%\?é)ﬁ KAMEBEMRELERN
CREFE=FEREMEHR KF
@i%/\lzﬁﬂir‘ TR U -
THEENKRKESFZERBERE
N EERRR T8 BEHFENH -
A THEER S _=ZFR_F
—FRE-FEAHAMBHRENA -

(iv) ETEERRTREAR-Z__FHMNE
HEERBHEAMSRIREZHE
BERMEHERORE o 0 3360)
Frift - BB M EBEREAARE
1,043,840,0007T * i 58 88 M 5 Y 7E BT

BHEEFOHRBEBIEAEE - A —
1![%%&5%&% BB AR A AT
BEREIOF IEEFNUBEE
& AN R#11,745,0007T °

12. CRLEREE %i%

—E- = ZE W

(s Tg% )Eﬁﬁa%%i%?ﬁi&/
& EXERYN-HERBRARBEEE
SEEHOMEABIE= TNEE (5B
[BAD Fi BB ERAEHEME AR
BEWREMBB LN IR ENERED S
A R#1,350,000,0007C ([HEFIE]) - & H
ERZTZZF+ZA=F+B(HERDT
B U zs A R#51,043,840,000 7T & AR & E g
REKREHEEE -

"
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Discontinued operation (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group received approximately
RMB459,900,000 of the consideration with the remainder of
approximately RMB889,321,000 included in the Group's other
receivables (note 23), which was fully settled in July 2023.

In view of the Group’s business strategy, the Group does not
expect to manufacture any polysilicon and monocrystalline
silicon solar ingots/wafers in the foreseeable future. With Qujing
Yangguang being classified as a discontinued operation, the
manufacture of, trading of, and provision of processing services
for polysilicon and monocrystalline silicon solar ingots/wafers
business is no longer included in the note for operating segment
information.

12. CRIEREE®K @

MW-ZZT-—#F#+-A=+—H0 A&EBEZ%
H 49 A R #459,900,000T IR (B * BT 4
A R #889,321,000t B FE R AEE A E
FEUWBE TR (M 7E23)  EHRBEORN T ==
FEAZ&HEE-

ERAEEMNEBRE AEEEHAT
BRARTgRETMNERHRELKGERE
B/ BEHEBILEBSEACDKRLE
KEER ZRMESKBEEE EH
EENRE BHINRERENTIRETIES
BEREEDHEEMES -

The results of discontinued operation for the year are presented ERIEREEREFEENT:
below:
2022
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Revenue Ui 2= 2,128,393
Expenses & (1,722,784)
Finance costs A& B AR (61,473)
Profit from the discontinued operation B AR IE 48 K % R 344,136
Gain from disposal of discontinued operation (note 36(a)) & 4 1k ¥ % U 35 (Ff 5£36(a)) 1,043,840
Profit before tax from the discontinued operation B A% E 482 275 R A R R 1,387,976
Income tax: Frg 7%
Related to pre-tax profit B A AR (38,532)
Related to disposal of discontinued operation FRELERRIEREER (102,627)
Profit for the year from the discontinued operation B 4% IF 48 & R F AR 1,246,817
Attributable to: AT AT RES
Owners of the parent B ARIRE 1,106,084
Non-controlling interests FE 4% I M 140,733
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12. Discontinued operation (continued) 12. BERILEREEK @)
The net cash flows incurred from discontinued operation are as HEREEBEEARSREFEOAT:
follows:
2022
—ZE=-=
RMB'000
AREBF T
Operating activities KEEE 262,592
Investing activities I’ & EE (396,327)
Financing activities B & E B 141,114
Net cash inflow FRERA 7,379
Earnings per share: (RMB cents) BRAEN: (ANREBD)

Basic and diluted, from the discontinued operation ERIEEEEBERRE SRS 33.28
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from BRI EEBERERNREFBHBEN
the discontinued operation are based on: HEER:

2022
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent from B IFEEEB L F R L EAEE

the discontinued operation BFEAELERFE RMB1,106,084,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during HESREABAEEANFAEH

the year used in the basic earnings per share calculation 17 % 38 A& g 1 g (Mt 514)

(note 14) 3,323,771,133
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the diluted &t & &% #5825 85 F

earnings per share calculation (note 14) )% 98 AR 0 T B (P R 14) 3,323,771,133

13. Dividends 13. B &

The board does not recommend to declare a final dividend for TEefEERBEE S+ -A=+
the year ended 31 December 2023. — B EEIREE R A -

The declaration of a special dividend of HK$0.07 per ordinary sEeesN T —F+-A-+—-Bi#t
share of the Company (the “Share”) out of the share premium EEATR D EBEDAATRES EER
account of the Company (the “Special Dividend”) to shareholders AE A (MERBIRE A ) 2@ as (TRR 15 ]) 5 R% 36
of the Company was approved at the board meeting of the e AR —E-—&E+—-B+HETH
Company on 21 November 2022 and at the extraordinary AFERBRE RS SRS ST
general meeting of the Company held on 7 December 2022, S BRSSO M R R R
which authorised the directors to take action for the purpose B HE -

of or in connection with the implement of the payment of the
Special Dividend.
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14. EERBLAFEERRRNE

14. Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent

(@)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the parent of RMB111,906,000 (2022: RMB957,163,000
(restated)) and the weighted average of 3,323,771,133
(2022: 3,323,771,133) ordinary shares of the Company in
issue during the year.

g

(@)

BREXRZF
BREXABFNDRERENTIARE
AR AR R A F OB A R 111,906,000
TL(ZEZ =4 : ARM957,163,0007T
(B ARFRARARIEEITEBK
DNAE 15 B% £03,323,771,133 (=T =
T4 :3,323,771,133/) 5t E -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBF T
(Restated)
(E%)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity fAEEBIIEZSIEE AEN
holders of the parent & i ) 111,906 957,163
Attributable to: AT AT FEA:
Continuing operations RELEEB 111,906 (148,921)
Discontinued operation ERIEEEEB — 1,106,084
111,906 957,163
Number of shares
B E
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
Weighted average number of LB % N 9 2
ordinary shares 3,323,771,133 3,323,771,133
Diluted earnings per share (b) BRREFRF

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 in respect of a dilution as the
Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

REBEEZTE_=FR_FT__F+=
A=+—BLFE TEBITEE

BENEBRTEER AT ERE
EZE=FRZIFZZF+ZARA=
+ Etﬁrfﬂmt%%$§ﬂ¢

f

H

EE
H?Q
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15. Property, plant and equipment 15. ¥ -BEREZE

Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings equipment vehicles  and fittings Total

BE - #E AR
ERIE g+ ET hE BEXE fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®Tn  AR®Tn  ARMTz  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR

Cost: RA:

At 1 January 2023 RZF-=%-F-H 138,842 424,390 1,439,912 23,656 40,581 2,067,381
Additions NE 54,098 5,017 13,860 6,259 5,241 84,475
Disposals LE - (726) (51,691) (2,465) (805) (56,892)
Transfer R (37,256) 726 35,602 928 - -
Exchange adjustments EREE - - - - 32 32
At 31 December 2023 RZEZZF+-A=1-H 155,684 429,407 1,437,683 28,378 45,049 2,096,201

Accumulated depreciation and Bt ERREFE:
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2023 R-Z-Z%-f-H (80,684) (147,407) (955,060) (16,446) (35,829)  (1,235,426)
Depreciation for the year FENE - (13,174) (132,829) (2,602) (2,409) (151,014)
Written back on disposals HEKED - 1 43723 2,094 734 46,672
Exchange adjustments EH % - - - - (32) (32)
At 31 December 2023 RZTZ=F+-A=T-A (80,684) (160,460)  (1,044,166) (16,954) (37,536)  (1,339,800)
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2023 ol s et e 75,000 268,947 393,517 11,424 7,513 756,401
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15. ¥ BERZRE®

Plant,
machinery
Construction and Motor Furniture
in progress Buildings equipment vehicles  and fittings Total
BE 8% FER
HEIE By &S RE EE%E @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARETz  ARRTR  AR®Tx  ARET:

Cost; WA
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—%-F-H 279,299 727426 2,142,804 34,381 34,546 3,218,456
Acquisitions of subsidiary KEHBAR - 2113 1722 779 115 4,729
Additions RE 436,951 5224 4,410 2,890 2,762 489,237
Disposals hE (25,193) 2113 (34,355) (9.473) - (71.134)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBATF (39,575) (381,917) (1,146,591) (5,820) - (1573,897)
Transfer g% (512,640) 73,651 434922 899 3168 -
Exchange adjustments % - - - - (10) (10)
At 31 December 2022 RZE--F+-fA=1+-H 138,842 424,390 1,439,912 23,656 40,581 2,067,381
Accumulated depreciation and 2t ERRESE:

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2022 R-E--%-F-H (80,684) (211,165) (971,034) (25,411) (29,037) (1,317,331)
Depreciation for the year FENE - (29,387) (266,868) (2,801) (6,783) (305,839)
Written back on disposals HEKEM - 91 16,539 8,878 - 25,508
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - 93,054 309,342 2,888 - 405,284
Provision for impairment losses B - - (43,039) - - (43,039)
Exchange adjustments % - - - - (9) 9)
At 31 December 2022 RZE-—F+-fA=1-H (80,684) (147.407) (955,060) (16,446) (35,829) (1,235,426)
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2022 A\ZE--#+-A=+-H 58,158 276,983 484,852 7,210 4,752 831,955
As at 31 December 2023, the Group's interest-bearing bank W_E-=ZF+-_A=+—H KEEET
borrowings were secured by certain of the Group’s property, FERITEENUNASEEREEFEAEA
plant and equipment (note 26), which had an aggregate R #516,661,0000c (ZE - —F+=- A=+
net book value of RMB516,661,000 (31 December 2022: —H: AR #383,081,0007T) M) & F 4 % -
RMB383,081,000). T 55 B 3% 8 VR 4R 4 (PR 51 26) ©
Substantially all of the Group's property, plant and equipment REEBREO>WE BERZEHUR

are located in Chinese Mainland. AR K B o
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15.

16.

17.

Property, plant and equipment (continued) 15. ¥ BERZHE®
The Group has been applying for the property ownership AEBTFERBFE TAYE  BERREHE
certificates for certain buildings included in property, plant and HWEFHNEEMEER RZT_=ZF+=
equipment with an aggregate net book value of RMB12,172,000 R=+—FB ZEEFOHEEFELER
as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: RMB13,361,000). ANR#12172,000(ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+
Notwithstanding this, the directors are of the opinion that the —H: AR#13,361,0007T) > A * EER
Group owned the beneficial title to these buildings as at 31 B AEBER-_ZT_=F+-A=1+—80#%
December 2023. EZEETFHNERFERE -
Goodwill 16. BEE
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E-_—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBFT
Cost: )5 A
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BR+ZA=+—H 208,237 208,237
Accumulated impairment losses: At WMEEBE:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+=ZA=+—H (208,237) (208,237)
Carrying amount: BRTE A
At 31 December R+=—B=+—8H — —
The goodwill was fully impaired during the year ended 31 BEEREEZE-_FT—_F+-A=t+—HLE
December 2012. FEBZONE °
Leases 17. HE
The Group as a lessee AEEER/AMA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
machinery and office buildings used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leasehold
lands from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms
between 2 and 6 years. Office buildings generally have lease
terms between 2 and 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

AEBRELETERANERBE R\
ESMABFIVEEAN -LHEAED
BAXN -—ERBUNESHERR0FH
HELTH - BRBELTMBEONESR - T
ERENK BEARBEENHER K
R2E6F - MABRFHHEERR-—KR/2E
10F - —RM = - ARBERHELEEING
EMBHAHEEEE -
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The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets

17. &)

REBERAMEAE)
(a) ERABEE
AEENEAREENRESENF

and the movements during the year are as follows: EEBHOT:
Leasehold Office Plant and
lands buildings machinery Total
HE+ WAEF BERZE #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
As at 1 January 2022 RZE-ZZ—_F—A—H 137,768 26,890 73,905 238,563
Additions # — — 130,776 130,776
Deductions as a result of — H&E—FKI B QT
disposal of subsidiaries k& (38,759) — (187,185) (225,944)
Depreciation charge TESH (3,889) (3,712) (17,496) (25,097)
As at 31 December 2022 R-T-_—F+-A
and 1 January 2023 =+—BR=ZZT==
F—HA—H 95,120 23,178 — 118,298
Additions i — 5,515 — 5,515
Depreciation charge TEERA (2,718) (5,055) — (7,773)
As at 31 December 2023 RZT=Z=%+=A
=+—H 92,402 23,638 — 116,040
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17. Leases (continued) 17. HE @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) RNEBERAMEAE)
(b)  Lease liabilities by HEBE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements FAHEAENREASENEHNT

during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
—E=-= T =
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR T T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HZEREE 25,992 93,862
New leases MmAE 5,515 130,776
Accretion of interest recognised during 4 X # 2 2 | B4 i1
the year 1,865 9,266
Payments E (6,192) (47,652)
Deductions as a result of disposal of & — X[l /& A &) & 1Bk
subsidiaries — (160,260)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RAzKEE 27,180 25,992
Analysed into: DT
Current portion BIEREE > 3,967 3,300
Non-current portion JE BN ER & 5 23,213 22,692
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBBE/E AR T E B R R
41(b) to the financial statements. FANb) R E -
(0 The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to O HTEz+TmIAEHASEENSED
leases are as follows: ™~

2023 2022
—E== —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AR F T
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERB 1,865 9,266
Depreciation charge of right-of-use ~ FRAEAENEEH
assets 7,773 25,097
Total amount recognised in AR =R B
profit or loss 9,638 34,363
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 35(c). d) MHEMRSKDETENTHEISQF

HE -
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31 December 2023
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (R ZAFHESN -

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H

AARKEDIE)

18. REEENTINKRE

2023
—E-=

RMB’000

AR TR

Share of net assets

1,200

2022

RMB’000
AR T T

1,200

The following list contains particulars of the associates which
are unlisted corporate entities:

TEREIBER

-
zae

H iz -

BIMEE  ERFLTAA

Percentage
Form of Place of of equity
business establishment Registered and  attributable
Name of associate structure and business paid-in capital to the Group Principal activities
31
ZMAILR ErEERE
BERTER EBRBERA EBBY ZMREHER AAtt TEEE
%
Jinzhou Chengguang New Energy Incorporated PRC/Chinese Mainland ~ Registered and paid-in capital 49 Construction of photovoltaic
Technology Co., Ltd. Balfi e RE/REA R of RMB10,000,000 power plants
BB AR RERAA HMEAREHER BERREL
A& %10,000,0007
Jiangsu Oriental Huida New Energy Incorporated PRC/Chinese Mainland Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Technology Co,, Ltd. Balfi e RE/RE AR RMB20,000,000 and paid-in power plants
IHEFBENEERE capital of RMB4,700,000 BEXREU
BRAT AMER
AR 20,000,0007C &
EHERAKRH4,700,0007T
Liaoning Yangguang Energy Power Co., Incorporated PRC/Chinese Mainland Registered capital of 30 Construction of photovoltaic
Ltd. ("Liaoning Yangguang") Balf e RE/RE AR RMB10,000,000 and paid-in power plants
BERXERED capital of RMB3,400,000 BERREL
ERAR(EZERX]) AMER
AR %10,000,0007C &
EHERARH3,400,0007
Xingye Lvjian (Jiangsu) Urban Incorporated PRC/Chinese Mainland Registered capital of 20 Construction of photovoltaic
Construction Development Co., Ltd. Balf e RE/RE AR RMB20,000,000 and paid-in power plants

("Xingye Lvjian")

BRgR(IH) UTERERERAA

([Bx%z))

capital of RMB1,000,000
AR 20,000,0007C &
BHERARM1,0000007

RELRTH
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18. Investments in associates (continued) 18. REBFERTIMNRE®
All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity e HEE AR RAEREARGES M
method in the consolidated financial statements. BHREAAR -

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity AEEREBE AR TR BB QA
shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, TETRAFANRE BESEBBERE
except for Xingye Lvjian, the shareholding in which is held B B 1 M B A B FE AR BR AN o

through a partly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

19. Equity investments designated at fair 19. AanEEFTEEEEEHITA
value through other comprehensive Hitm e W2 RERRE
Income

2022
RMB 000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR F T
Equity investments designated at fair value AREEFEEHZEDHHA
through other comprehensive income E{ﬁ,ﬁ?éﬂﬂl mHERRE
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FELEMEREE  EATFE
Jinzhou Runyang Energy Trading Co., Ltd. R/ E IS aE R E B R A A
("Jinzhou Runyang") (T8 M B ) — 190
Dongyao New Energy (Qujing) Co., Ltd. RBH AR (HhiE) BR A A 3,700 —
Total mEt 3,700 190

In August 2023, Jinzhou Runyang was deregistered due to
streamlined procurement process of the Group.

In November 2023, the Group invested RMB3,700,000 in cash
for 15% equity interest of Dongyao New Energy (Qujing) Co.,
Ltd.,, a photovoltaic power plants operation company which
commenced business in late 2023.

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

R-ZZF-_=F/\A BMEERLAKRERE
MR M

RZZEZ=F+—R AEBURSIKEA
R 3,700,0007T * Y i 3 1B 37 62 R (B 55)
ERARNS%EBRE  ZRRAA—RNRZZ
ToFRAREENAREHEE QA ©

MNEEERAZRAASHEEE - Lt
B 1A R A S B HE A A A A B B
AE AR A

/\o
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20. Deferred tax 20. EEBIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the AFEEREMGHEEMNABENZEEHBR
year are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EEFTIS I E B

2023
===

- ==

Deferred Provision Allowance for ~ Write-down

income for warranties doubtful debt of inventories Others Total
BEWA RABE RERE FEMH Efh @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®Tn ARETR ARETn AR%TR  AR%TR

At 31 December 2022 R-B--E+-A=t-H 2,162 5,388 1,974 7316 - 16,840
Effect of adoption of amendments to (BB & 281 2128) /(&
IAS12/HKAS 12 (note 2.2) AEHERENR) BN
2(fr22) - - - - 267 267
At 1 January 2023 (restated) R-E-=F-F-B(E]) 2,162 5,388 1,974 7,316 267 17,07

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the RFREIERRFHER (]
statement of profit or loss during ~ B) /3t AR EILH B
the year (note 11) (R 1) (121) 1,017 (1,368) (4,225) 70 (5,22)

At 31 December 2023 FZE-=F+tZR=T-H 1,441 6,405 606 3,091 337 11,880
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20. Deferred tax (continued) 20. IEERBIE (%)
Deferred tax liabilities REFEHRAE

Fair value
adjustments
on business Withholding

combination Tax Others Total
ERAHN
A¥E S Eilk H @t
RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000
AR TR AR TR ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2022 WZBZZ&+-A=+—-H 2,345 11,132 — 13,477
Effect of adoption of amendments ~ (BIRR @ &HERIZ1257) /(&5
to IAS12/HKAS 12 (note 2.2) SHERMNENF)BENYE
(ff#552.2) - - 3 3
At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZEZ=F—R—H(E%) 2,345 11,132 3 13,480
Deferred tax credited to the RENEBERFREGZA
statement of profit or loss (R FE B 38 (P E11)
during the year (note 11) (73) (2,686) — (2,759)

At 31 December 2023 E-ZE-=%+-A=+-H 2,272 8,446 3 10,721
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20. Deferred tax (continued) IE 7€ B 18 (@)
Deferred tax assets EREMBHEE
2022
—E--F
Allowance
Deferred  Provision for ~ for doubtful Write-down
income  warranties debt  of inventories Others Total
ERBA  RERE RERE FEHA Aot &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETR
At 31 December 2021 W-E--f+-fA=1-H 2,882 6,183 — — — 9,065
Effect of adoption of amendments to (BB & & 28| E12%) /(B &5t
IAS12/HKAS 12 (note 2.2) BUZNFIEENTE(HE22) - - - - 194 194
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RZZE--F-A-H(EF) 2,882 6,183 — — 194 9,259
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to the REREBHRTRER(NRK) /3
statement of profit or loss during ~ ABVEEFRE(E7)) (1)
the year (restated) (note 11) (720) (795) 1974 7316 73 7848
At 31 December 2022 (restated) E-E-__F+t-A=+-H(EJ) 2,162 5,388 1,974 7316 267 17,107
Deferred tax liabilities EEMSHAE
2022
—E-CF
Fair value
adjustments
on business Withholding
combination Tax Others Total
EBAMHY
ATE B £t @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR AREFT ARETR
At 31 December 2021 R-E--5+-fA=+-A 2,418 — - 2,418
Effect of adoption of amendments to IAS12/HKAS (BB &3:H£8IF125) /(EE 2 £8E1
12 (note 2.2) FIBEMYE(W2.2) - - 5 5
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RZFZ§-F—-AH(EF) 2,418 — 5 2,423
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the statement of ﬁﬁ E NEBEZTFRBEMG/GIA)H0E
profit o loss during the year (restated) (note 11) T & (E7I)(Fi 5 11) (73) 11,132 2) 11,057
At 31 December 2022 (restated) E-E--F+t-A=+-H(EJ) 2,345 11,132 3 13,480
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20. Deferred tax (continued) IEE B IE (8)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

THIEEARERRIEMSHEE:

2023 2022

—E—-= —E- =
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR® T ARBFT
Tax losses I EEES 701,304 968,750
Deductible temporary differences AENEREER 220,458 225,235
921,762 1,193,985

At 31 December 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of unused tax losses of RMB629,602,000
(31 December 2022: RMB715,898,000) and RMB71,702,000
(31 December 2022: RMB252,852,000) attributable to
its subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong,
respectively, and certain deductible temporary differences of
RMB220,458,000 (31 December 2022: RMB225,235,000), as it
is not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses or deductible temporary differences can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities.

Included in the unrecognised tax losses, RMB71,702,000 (31
December 2022: RMB252,852,000) may be carried forward
indefinitely and the remaining balance RMB629,602,000 from
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland will expire at various dates up
to 2028.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Chinese Mainland. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Chinese Mainland and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H0 FEETE
HOBIRPREARERESHHNBERARARE
629,602,000t (ZE=Z=ZF+=-HA=+—H:
A R #715,898,0007T) & A & #71,702,000
T(ZEZ_ZF+_A=Z+—H: AR¥
252,852,00070) M FEME R BV AL BB 18 &
AT eI f00R R = 5 A R 220,458,000
T(ZEZZF+=A=+—H: AR¥
225,235,00070) RELEHIBEE - RAA
HEAREAZERRERBTIAAESER
2R JE ER O LA B R B 1B Bk T 0 R B
o

RAERMIBEEEFRH A REKT?,702,000

T(ZE -+ -_A=+—H: AR¥

252,852,00070) AJ PR HAAE 82 - (AR E i

/) B B A F) B4R B A R 629,602,000 7 #
BT )\FHARBHEHER -

REFECEMGSHE  HEPE AR
UHINERECERIEREETSEHR
BHEWI0%MTEIER - RERKBE_ZZT/\F
—A—HRER HARZZZ+LF+=A
—t+—BZBHURA o a0 R B K R NER
REENEER 2MER KB T BIE
AREMERBE - S RAER - BRM
EB5%H10% At - §ERAZTTNF
—A—BMUREAHKE  EPRARERTL
WTRRMOEMNRE  AEEBETARN
KRBT -
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Inventories 1. 78

2023 2022

—E-= —E=- =
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTF T
Materials and supplies MR pE 151,648 340,768
Finished goods 21 AX i 175,115 246,799
326,763 587,567

Trade, bills receivables and contract assets

2 BUESEA - BURBRE

%

2023 2022

—_E_-= —_ET-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREFIT
Trade receivables B E B ER K 1,731,589 1,147,814
Bills receivable U E & 287,397 229,237
2,018,986 1,377,051
Impairment RAE (44,334) (62,036)
1,974,652 1,315,015

The Group normally grant a credit period of 30 to 90 days
to its customers. However, regarding domestic photovoltaic
module sales, some trade receivables are granted longer credit
period of up to 180 days depending on the construction period
of photovoltaic power plants. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due
from the Group’s associates of RMB17,954,000 (2022:
RMB40,618,000), which are repayable on credit terms similar to
those offered to the major customers of the Group.

AEE KR4 TEF0E0ENEES -
BHHEAZAFHESE - 20 RUERKE
ERFFORREBUZROTRES R
EEHREK  ZE180K - BEAFFEHE A
RRERREE ASBEAOREREHER
EENBEER  XREEEEHEFIA
HEERRREEZRE BAREHRBERE
BEEE#RE - ERLBABERARAEHE
MEBEZERYEF S RAREZTIEEP - Al
THEEEANEFREARR AEEYLE
REESEREREHRBFTEEMERRX
HMERER - EHERBEHBTFE -

AEERKESEFRBERNEEHE ARE
U B 7k A R #17,954,000C (ZFE = —4F : A
R#40,618,0007T) * ZFHIBEZMAEHE
FTERFRENEUEEEEKRR -
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22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 22. BN ESER  EBREEBRSE

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

HEE®E
RBEMMEER - NERERGBEGRE
KESERREENERIREZAH N
T

2023 2022

—E-= —E- =
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBTFT
Within 1 year —&R" 1,773,007 1,212,698
1 to 2 years —E=F 136,174 81,205
2 to 3 years —E=F 55,817 7,589
Over 3 years il =F 9,654 13,523
1,974,652 1,315,015

As at 31 December 2023, bills receivable amounting to
RMB181,813,000 (31 December 2022: RMB57,410,000), together
with pledged deposits amounting to RMB1,346,754,000 (31
December 2022: RMB2,245,602,000) had been pledged as
security to banks for issuing bills payable to suppliers amounting
to RMB1,600,633,000 (31 December 2022: RMB2,433,217,000).

As at 31 December 2023, borrowings amounting to
RMB18,000,000 (31 December 2022: RMB32,678,000) and
RMB223,479,000 (31 December 2022: RMB115,518,000) were
secured by certain of the Group’s trade receivables and bills
receivable with a carrying amount of RMB23,059,000 (31
December 2022: RMB32,678,000) and RMB223,479,000 (31
December 2022: RMB115,518,000) respectively.

RZZE-Z=F+=-A=+—8  BEKkERE
AR#181,813,000c (ZE=Z=ZF+=Z A=
+ —B8: A B #57410,0007T) KA & B K ##
17 5 A R #1,346,754,00070 (B = —F+
—A=+—8: ARK®2.245,602,0007T) {E
BRITANFAAEENHEENEZEEARE
1,600,633,000c (- —F+-A=+—
H: AR#2,433,217,0007T) °

M-ZZ-_=ZF+_A=+—0 #RARK
18,000,000t (ZE==F+=-A=+—H:
A R%32,678,0007T) & A R ¥223,479,000
T(ZEZZF+-_A=+—HB: AR¥%
115,518,0007T) A RN £ B H 5 fE R E Z BE K
M EWEERREED A ARE23,059,000
T(ZEZZF+-_A=+—HB: AR¥%
32,678,0007T) & A & %223,479,0007T 1
BH(ZCE-ZF+=-A=+—"H: AR
115,518,000 7T {E K ) »

2023 2022

—=:=-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AREF T

Contract assets arising from: GREEESE:

Sale of industrial products HETEmSR 181,947 214,063
Construction services B 7 AR 7 39,654 32,964
221,601 247,027
Impairment A (8,199) (3,148)
213,402 243,879
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22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets

(continued)

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned
from the sale of industrial products and the provision of
related installation services and construction services as the
receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion
of installation of the industrial products and construction,
respectively Included in contract assets for sale of industrial
products are quality guarantee receivables and for construction
services are retention receivables. Upon completion of installation
or construction and acceptance by the customer, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade receivables.
The decrease in contract assets in 2023 is due to the expiration
of quality guarantee receivables on the sale of industrial products
during the year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
as at 31 December is as follows:

22. ERESRZ EREERS

HWEE®

BHEENKBORERBEELEE MM
1R A8 B A 22 3 PR 75 N A SR AR S R X & Mk
@ WERRERFERNERIREMNLR
KMET  NEETERIXEMHEEN
fn IR EURR SR - DA R AR R TS B B WK
REBS -  BLEIMIRIWLELBRU
ERRANEENSRETDERESRE
WHIE - —E-=—F/NEERI ZHNF
WX E miE &0 mERE & KRR DB
FTEL -

BET-A=+—R AWEEREREE
BT HRES R 40 T ¢

Within 1 year —F R

2023 2022
—E=-= . —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBTT
221,601 247,027

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade,
bills receivables and contract assets are as follows:

FREKRESER KRR RAOEER
EREZDOT

2023 2022

—E2_-= —E-_F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®B TR ARBET T

At the beginning of year REH 65,184 113,245
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ CRERH), REER KX

impairment losses (note 7) (F3x7) (12,651) 26,274

Amount written off as uncollectible 37 QeI RS R | — (68,418)

Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB QA — (5,917)

At the end of year RER 52,533 65,184
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22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets 22. BN ESER  EBREEBRSE

(continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates for the measurement of the expected credit
losses of the contract assets are based on those of the trade
receivables as the contract assets and the trade receivables are
from the same customer bases. The Group applies the simplified
approach to the provision for expected credit losses prescribed
by IFRS 9/HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade debtors. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on the ageing of balances
for groupings of various customers with similar loss patterns,
repayment histories, and existing customer-specific and market
conditions, and also taking into consideration of forward-looking
information, including the forecast of industry situation and
overall economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than three years and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31

December 2023 and 2022:

As at 31 December 2023

HNEEm®

FA % R 45 I BB PR B8 48 4B B AT R E S AT -
U BEHEERE GEBANEETESR
EEBANEESRRIESE KRN E
BeRAaKEY  EAANEENESREK
HRERA—RER - AEEFAREMLER
KB FO% F B B K IR 45 % B SO%E
TEMEREEEAEES MBS -
RHBFEESESAERKATFAHEB X
B AEEDRY - BRESE 25
BENEGECBABRNTRAESHA
MEERSE EXEL RBAEEESA
ISR - WEEATE S - BIETEY
SRBEEBERNGTER - —BAE -
EREZ A BBE=ET ARTH 5T
RIZIR - B FLARESS -

TR AEEE T _=FN_FT -
TA=tT-"BRUBSERRNEGNEESR

RERBERERENERRRAENER

R-ZE-_=%+=-A=+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
AHFEREXR EHAE RBHFEESE
% RMB’000 L)
AR TR AR¥T T
Within 1 year —FR 0.97% 1,677,201 16,213
Between 1 and 2 years —FEZF 5.06% 147,399 7,452
Between 2 and 3 years —EE=F 11.93% 94,730 11,298
Over 3 years Bl =F 51.89% 33,860 17,570
Total #HEt 1,953,190 52,533
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22. Trade, bills receivables and contract assets

23.

(continued)
As at 31 December 2022

AR B IR AR A

31 December 2023 MW-ZE-=F+—-A=+—H
LARETIE)

22. ERESRZ EREERS
HWEE®

R-—E-_—_f+=-HA=+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEBEX FHAE BHEEEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBFT
Within 1 year —F R 2.30% 1,156,847 26,638
Between 1 and 2 years —FEZF 10.94% 180,253 19,728
Between 2 and 3 years —FEE=F 12.59% 17,613 2,218
Over 3 years Bl =F 41.37% 40,128 16,600
Total #HEt 1,394,841 65,184

Prepayments, other receivables and other

23. ERE HERFRERH
th&EE

assets
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —ZE=-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBTF T
Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries HEME AT 2R E (M E12)

(note 12) — 889,321
Prepayments for raw materials R BB TR 5RE 122,363 213,394
Deductible value-added tax A0 S E R 71,693 143,629
Other receivables H b B U 3R 1B 86,982 86,820

281,038 1,333,164
Impairment allowance B — —
281,038 1,333,164

Up to 31 December 2022, the consideration of RMB439,321,000
was related to the Group’s related parties (three entities
controlled by Mr. Tan Wenhua and/or Mr. Tan Xin). Details of

which are set out in note 12.

Other receivables mainly represent deposits and staff advances,
and an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date

by considering the probability of default.

BE_Z-_—_F+-A=+—H RKREAR
#439,321,000 c A S B BB 5 (B E X
AR/ REELERIN—RERE)AH -
AR AR FE127 o

HiEWKBIEREESRETER I
REBREAHBBEBEHBTETRE
DT e
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24. Pledged deposits

25.

Certain of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to secure
bank loans and other banking facilities granted to the Group as
follows:

EHEAER
AEEETROIEFREXRAEEHERNHR
TERREMBITHEFEDER - Il
T

2023 2022

—B-=fF —E-—
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Pledged as security for bills payable ERERENZEROERD 1,346,754 2,245,602
Other H At 11,246 68,599
1,358,000 2,314,201

The effective annual interest rate for pledged deposits with
banks was 1.26% for the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
1.77%).

Cash and cash equivalents

BE_T-_-_F+-A=t-HLEFE B
BT RITOERNERFFRRB1.26E (=

B RIRITHE R

Cash and bank balances

T F1778)
RERREEEY
2023 2022
—_=E_-= —_=E- =
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR F T
578,364 937,897

Cash and bank balances totalling RMB474,484,000 (31
December 2022: RMB676,497,000) as at 31 December 2023
were denominated in RMB. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest either at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates or at a fixed rate based on an
agreement.

MN-ZT-_=F+-_A=1+—HBHWEL &RT
R A ARA74,484,000 (ZFE - =
+ZA=+—H: AR®676,497,0007T) LA
ARESE ARBTAIERABAHEME
B o SRTM - AR P BR OINE E I 6 1 B2 A BE -
EELRNEEERAT AEEEMRESEH
BRERITHEA RN R EINEE DU 1T SNE
¥% -

RIOTASIBRBABTRITERMN XL FH
M R BREUA B - SR R 0 1R B E A R A

=1
T
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26. Interest-bearing bank and other 26. RITRHMTTERE
borrowings
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
ZBRIZETZAST-H “E-CE+-fZ+-H

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate fate

Notes (%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
ERA% ERA=

[k (%) : (%) 08 ARETR

Current: hE:

Bank loans — secured ROER-BER @) 5.800-7.500 2024 557,500 3.950-7.500 2023 269,500
RMB ARE 557,500 269,500

Bank loans — guaranteed RITEN-CER (b) 3.800-6.550 2024 500,845  2.625-9.000 2023 790,128
RMB ARE 465,999 613,802
EUR B - 157,766
UsD EN 34,846 18,560

Other loans — secured EnEN-BHHA (© 0.000-7.500 2024 223,479 0.000-7.500 2023 137518
RMB ARE 23,419 137518

Other loans — guaranteed EMEF-BER (b) 5.000-5.475 2024 5213 5.000-5.475 2023 3918
HKD A 1,672 730
UsD i 3,541 3,188

Current portion of long-term borrowings: RE&ZEHRBHS:

Other loans — guaranteed EER-2ER (b) - 1,600-6.00 2023 45915
EUR B - 1,252
HKD A - 44,663

Qther loans — secured EnEN-AHHA (© 2.500-3.500 2024 115,973 -
RMB ARE 115,973 -

Total At 1,403,010 1,246,979

Non-current: *RE:

Other loans — quaranteed EMER-CER (b) = 5900-7.000 2024 91,772
RMB ARE - 91,772

Other loans — secured EMEF-BEA () 5.000-7.160 2025 28,239 -

RVB ARH 28,239 -

Total adt 28,239 91,772
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26.

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The bank loans of the Group are secured by:

(iii)

the Group’s property, plant and equipment with the net book
value of RMB328,705,000 (2022: RMB383,081,000); and

the Group's right-of-use assets amounting to RMB22,320,000
(2022: RMB23,213,000); and

the Group's trade receivables amounting to RMB23,059,000
(2022: Nil), further details are disclosed in note 39 to the
financial statements.

Certain subsidiaries’ borrowings are guaranteed by the other

subsidiaries of the Group, Mr. Tan Xin or Mr. Tan Wenhua.

Other loans of the Group are secured by:

@i

(ii)

(iii)

the Group’s bills receivable amounting to RMB223,479,000
(2022: RMB115,518,000); and

the Group's trade receivables was Nil (2022: RMB32,678,000);

and

the Group’s property, plant and equipment with the net book
value of RMB187,956,000 (2022: Nil).

AARKEDIE)

M

(a)

26. RITREMFTEEE®

AEBEZRITEEATH A EER

@M

(ii)

(iii)

AEENYE BERRLKE KEF
& & A R #328,705000C (—ZF = —
£ AR #383,081,0007T) : &

AEBNERBEEAARKE
22,320,000t (Z B = —F: AR
23,213,0007T) : K&

AEENESREKBEAARE
23,059,000 (ZT==F :T)- F%
HECEMBREOM FE39PHEE -

ETHBARMERAAEEEGHBRR
WELEERBEXERERER -

e

(i)

(iii)

]

JiE]

ZEAME AT ST AR

AEENERERAAREAARE
223,479,000 (Z T = —F: AR ¥
115,518,0007T) : M

AEENEREGERAT(ZE ==
F: AR#32,678,0000T) : &

AEENYE BERRLE KEF
B A A R #187,956,000/L (=T = —
F:F)o

2023 2022
—E-= —E- =
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBFT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: ATEENRITEE:
Within one year or on demand —FRNIEEK 1,058,345 1,059,628
Other borrowings repayable: ATEENHEMEER:
Within one year —FR 344,665 187,351
In the second year B _F 28,239 91,772
372,904 279,123
1,431,249 1,338,751
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27. ERESZRIARERE

27. Trade and bills payables

2023 2022

—E=-= —E- =
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
Trade payables ERE SRR 725,397 1,307,717
Bills payable JER R & 1,600,633 2,433,217
2,326,030 3,740,934

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

@ m®

e
=EmERREE

SHHEER  BENESER R
BEIoMfran T :

2023 2022

—_Eg-= - —
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBF T
Within 1 month —@AR 357,604 1,027,945
1 to 3 months —z=={8A 779,773 977,506
4 to 6 months A ] 1,139,129 1,558,395
7 to 12 months tE=+ @A 34,992 153,821
Over 1 year HBiE—F 14,532 23,267
2,326,030 3,740,934

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day credit terms.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bills
payable of RMB1,600,633,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB2,433,217,000) were secured by Group’s bills
receivable of RMB181,813,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB57,410,000) (note 22) and by Group’'s pledged
deposits of RMB1,346,754,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB2,245,602,000).

BHRNFE/RE  BEIRIORD
HIREE -

R-TE-_=F+-_A=+—8 &*&
E A R#1,600,633,000C(—E = —

+-A=+—8: AR®2,433,217,000
TN ENZEBEAAEBARE
181,813,000 (ZE-—F+-A=+
—H : AR¥57,410,0007T X Fi5E22) #9
FE U IR LA & A R #1,346,754,0007T
(- —F+-A=Z+—HBH:ARK
2,245,602,000) K EIE T RIEHE IR o
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28.

29.

Other payables and accruals

28. HENREREFGHX

2023 2022
—g=-= -
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
Payables for acquisition of property, BEME BEREEBEOER
plant and equipment RIE 75,767 203,795
Payables for other taxes H o e F 18 10,053 72,072
Payables for freight charges JEREE 29,758 23,561
Payables for staff-related cost JETE T HEREFRIE 27,745 33,064
Dividends payable FERT IR B 6,173 217,123
Other payables on behalf of HiRE=ZHENZE
the third-parties 58,007 58,007
Other payables and accruals Hi ENRIBRESER 84,252 68,553
291,755 676,175

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

Contract liabilities

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

bR AEER - %8 BEEEERY

29. 6N EE

BHNARFEBNT:

o

2023 2022

—_=E_-= —EF-=
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREF T
Sale of industrial products HETXEMR 35,633 318,662
Construction services 3 R 2,363 10,356
Total 48 =t 37,996 329,018

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver industrial products and provide construction services. The
decrease in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the
delivery of industrial products this year.

ARNEEEERRHEIEEMNE AU
RRHEERERE  -HN_T_=FEHAER

PEBEARAFIRE

fn AN P ER
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30. PROVISION

30. B 15

Provision for

warranties

RABE

RMB’'000

AR F T

At 1 January 2022 R-—E-——#—H—8 186,305
Provision BB 76,575
Reversal due to estimation changes SRR EE-Eldvs: 30| (99,437)
Utilisation A (988)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H 162,455
At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-—=ZF—H—H 162,455
Provision B 35,604
Utilisation A (6.844)
At 31 December 2023 NZZE-—=F+=-A=+—H 191,215
Portion classified as current liabilities DEAERDAEENI D 5,128
Non-current portion MBS 186,087

The Group’s photovoltaic modules are typically sold with
a 2-year or 5-year warranty for defects in materials and
workmanship, and a 10-year or 25-year minimum power output
warranty against declines of initial power generation capacity of
more than 10% and 20%, respectively from the date of receipts.
The Group has the obligation to repair or replace solar modules,
under the terms of the warranty policy. The Group maintains
warranty reserves to cover potential liabilities that could arise
under these warranties.

The Group began to sell photovoltaic modules from the year of
2010. Up to now, the Group has continuously engaged in sales
business of photovoltaic module for over 10 years. According
to the mathematical statistics of quality compensation starting
from selling photovoltaic modules, the Group has not made any
quality compensation due to declines of initial power generation
capacity of more than 10% and 20% from the date of receipt
or defects in materials and workmanship.

REBENRREFLER—BRIHEEB KA
EfR2FHSFWRHIEE R ATRA + KLRI10
FRISFHRENBHRE - DRREED
BETRBETSZRVPEEERI0% K
20%  RBERABRGR  AEBBETY
RIS EHFETHESIER - AEERER
ARENEEZSERABETHNEEEGE -

REBR-_Z—ZTFMAHEEREME - &
ZEA z&%@aﬁiﬁ%%‘ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ%%
HEI10F - BEFRKEBEHEELRENE
NEEHEHESF FAEERREKE 2
EI%*ETMtﬂm%ﬂm%&MﬂﬂI
BERpEMETEEREE -



170 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED [ &5z & R 2 5

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fin B B 3% 3R R B RE

31 December 2023
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSEXHEI] -
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UARETIE)

30. PROVISION (continued)

31.

32.

In order to present a fairer and more appropriate view of the
financial position and operating results of the Group, the Group
revised its accounting estimates on the provision for warranties
from 1% to 0.625% in accordance with IAS/HKAS, based on
the technical assessment report prepared by the Company’s
management, as well as further referenced to the accounting
estimation adopted by other companies in the industry. The
Company obtained the approval on 26 August 2022 from the
Company’s board of directors and adopted this change from 1
January 2022.

DEFERRED INCOME

Various government grants have been received by the Group
for participating in high-tech industry and constructing various
manufacture and photovoltaic power plants in Jinzhou, Liaoning
Province, and Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC.

Those government grants related to assets are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially as deferred
income and are amortised to profit or loss as other income over
the useful lives of the assets.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to participate in a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries were required to make
contributions to the scheme at 20% of the employees’ salaries
per annum to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of retirement benefits associated with the schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

30.

31.

32.

BEuw

BE QTR ERE R R A £ E A B SR
MREEEE  AEBRERSELN B
BEHEATRERRAAETEEMREDN
R meE  BHEERBEEBEN ST
EH1%1E 5] 50.625% @ W — £ 2 E TR
TEEMARMRBN G HE - AAF]
RZZE-Z—FNA-Z+HEBRREES
o TR -—F—FBEREMZE
@ o

i E WA

AEBARESHMRTERETREES
BT &R H B B S ERE R B Mot
K B uf M 2 15 1S [F 9 BT A RS o

ZEREERHENBRAHEBRINNES Y
BRARPERRETERA  LIREET
EREHRBEaNBEAEMBEA-

EBARE R T E

7 g [ o B U 0 ) B 7 2 B 3 0 7 B
FREE R B E R SR KB R B - A
o5 ) 0 Y 2 )2 1 B 4F 95 920% () 3t
BUERH - BRBBNENRHAS -

AEBENRERIEES®HEQE DB
Bl BESZEBREKAMEENREER
U FlE ARSI ([RS8 - &
CEEATHEMERRNRGE  ABLZT
AEE - BESHEHTREIREEESS
LEEB MBI ABSY%E a2 EH ftF - A
FAMEWA30,0008TAELR - mBES
ETEIEE M RENRE -

B Lt oh - NERBE B A X% F TS
BRMERKRENABEEMBERNRL -
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
Authorised and issued share capital EERBEETRA
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
No. of shares No. of shares '000
R4 # B B8 E T
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREBEIBTHEAEM 5000000000  HKS$500,000 5,000,000,000 HK$500,000
Equivalent to HER RMB450,000 RMB450,000
Ordinary shares, issued and CETRMRERAR:
fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—H 3,323,771,133 RMB285,924 3,323,771,133 RMB285,924
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,323,771,133  RMB285,924  3,323,771,133 RMB285,924
The information about the Company’s ordinary shares is set out EBRARAIEBRMNERET
below:
No. of shares
issued and
fully paid Amount
ERITRHER
R#% &8 k-
RMB'000
ARBFT
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022 R-ZZFE-_=F+=-A=+—H

M=—ZFEZ=—F+=A
=+—H 3,323,771,133 285,924
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RZZ=Z=F+=—A=+—H
UARETIE)

34. RESERVES

1

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The share
premium is distributable.

General reserve fund

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC, these PRC subsidiaries are required to transfer
a minimum of 10% of their distributable profits after
taxation based on their PRC statutory financial statements
to the general reserve fund until the balance of the
fund is at least half of the paid-in capital of the relevant
subsidiaries. The amounts allocated to this reserve are
determined by the respective boards of directors with
reference to the minimum requirement.

For the entities concerned, the general reserve fund can be
converted into capital in proportion to the equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the balance after
such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of shares
allotted and issued over the subscription costs and share
options granted to employees of the Group.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
the group companies into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represents the differences between
considerations of acquisitions of equity interests from non-
controlling equity owners and the carrying amount of the
proportionate net assets.

34. %%

(M

I A7 % (B
B aERNERAXAERERFE
BE - BEEI TR -

—REER
REABTBEERRARRNHEE
AR B AR M A EIZAMEA
It % AP B Y R B 2R S B P BUA E B
BRI RORBRE A DI BE&D
0% BRE—REHRS  EE%HE
CHEBEVERBENBRAEHKRA
—FRLE - BREEFEL2RRER
Kk BEENEEZAFHENEE -

REBEREME  —REBSTRE
AR AAEEOFERLEALBRAEE
N EHBRBERTESOREFMER
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CENGE
EAREARERRITTAREESR
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. RERERERME

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@ Major non-cash transactions @ EXRFERERF
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FA -AEERKE REONHEHE
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB5,515,000 ZHOR BB MEAEEE
(2022: RMB130,776,000) and RMB5,515,000 (2022: & & afE A R¥5515000(=F
RMB130,776,000), respectively, in respect of lease = =% : A R¥130,776,0007T) & A
arrangements for plant and machinery. R¥5515000( 2 - —F: AR

130,776,0007T) ©

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing by BREBEITEBELEMNEBEEZ(L
activities

Interest-bearing
borrowings Lease Liabilities

FFEER HEAE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AR T

At 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=ZF—H—H 1,338,751 25,992
Changes from financing cash flows BEBR S REHE L 92,498 (6,192)
New leases FHE — 5,515
Interest expense FMEEA — 1,865
At 31 December 2023 RZEB_=%+-_A=+—8H 1,431,249 27,180

Interest-bearing

borrowings Lease Liabilities

STEMER HE&aE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBFT

At 1 January 2022 R-—E-—%—A—H 2,124,949 93,862

Changes from financing cash flows FERSREHE L (69,039) (38,386)
Capital contribution from REFERERNTE

non-controlling interests 32,067 —

New leases e — 130,776

Interest expense MEEMA — 9,266
Interest paid classified as operating ~ SXfEF B DB AL %E

cash flow Rense — (9,266)

Decrease arising from disposal of & B QA R R
subsidiaries (749,226) (160,260)

At 31 December 2022 R-ZZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H 1,338,751 25,992
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31 December 2023 W-ZE-=%+-"A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRBEFEAHEI - UARKESIE)

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 35. ke BHERERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases © HERSRLERE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement Hernerteinigliaentg
of cash flows is as follows: BT

2023 2022
—E=-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
Within operating activities R TEE T 8,144 9,266
Within financing activities RE& S+ 6,192 38,386

14,336 47,652
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Disposal of Qujing Yangguang in 2022

As disclosed in note 12, Qujing Yangguang was disposed
of on 30 December 2022. Therefore, Qujing Yangguang
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results was no longer consolidated into the financial

statements of the Group.

e mRMEE

31 December 2023 R-ZE—-=#+-"A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHEAEIN - LARKZIE)

36. HEKMHEB AT
@ R-ZE-—F LEWHBERN

M EE12FT TR - tEBE AR =T =
ZHFE+ZA-THEBEE - At - #his
BRI BAARAGMNWNE QR - Eif
BEETBHALREBNTBIRE -

Disposal Date

HEBH
Note RMB’000
B 3% AR¥TR
Net assets disposed of: HERFEE:
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZE 1,168,613
Long-term prepayments and other £ B8 5 3018 Jo A Ath FE UL
receivables KIE 31,880
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 225,944
Deferred tax assets BEXERIEE E 7,763
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHE % 86,554
Pledged deposit BEEMEFER 54,437
Trade and bills receivables BB M EREERER 671,556
Inventories FE 191,916
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIE K E R W SRR 59,943
Derivative financial instruments (i) PTHE SR T A() (1,404)
Interest-bearing bank and other RITRHEMFTEEE
borrowings (749,226)
Trade and bills payables EBRESMEMNEEER (347,016)
Other payables and accruals Hib e M EE & A (225,576)
Contract liabilities aHaE (5,204)
Current portion of lease liabilities —FARNIEENHEEGE (61,278)
Convertible bonds (i) Al R & () (258,109)
Deferred income % 3E U A (137,966)
Lease liabilities HEAE (98,982)
Non-controlling interests FE 15 I 1 (310,934)
302,911
Transaction costs R 5 K A 3,249
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBAR 2K 12 1,043,840
1,350,000
Satisfied by: AT
Cash e 1,350,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSEXHEI] -

=F+=-A=+—8

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a

Disposal of Qujing Yangguang in 2022 (continued)

(i) On 27 April 2022, Qujing Yangguang issued convertible bonds
with a nominal value of RMB250,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) and a maturity of three years from the date of
issuance. The bonds carried interest at a rate of 5.8% per
annum, which was payable semi-annually in arrears on 30 June
and 31 December. The Convertible Bonds were split into the
liability and derivative components.

As at Disposal Date, the fair value loss of derivative
components was RMB6,502,000 recognised during the
year 2022.

AARKEDIE)

36. HEMHB AR @

(a)

RZTEZ—F  HEHEBEBKL

(%)

(i) T _FWMAZ++R BB
FITHE A A R 250,000,0007T &) 7] &
BES((TRRES]D  a%T2AR
HRAE=F - EHFNFFEAE5.8% -
MESEEIN—K  RANA=ZTAM
+=—A=+— El@lHH c A HER D
REBEMTERED

HEHEH
9&7—1}\&%56 502,0007T °
T FERNEHER -

TTEBOBAAEERE
ZIERE=

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEHNBARMNRERREEEMTF
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries are as follows: WA
2022
—E-=
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
Cash consideration ReERE 456,651
Cash and bank balances disposed of BENRE RIRITEH (86,554)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEHMBEANBEEMEAS
of the disposal of Qujing Yangguang LEBYWERA 370,097
Disposal of Liaoning Yangguang by HEEZEREX

In June 2022, Jinzhou Yangguang and Shanghai Rongxin
Investment Energy Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Rongxin”)
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which Jinzhou
Yangguang agreed to sell, Shanghai Rongxin agreed to
acquire 40% of the equity interest in Liaoning Yangguang
without any consideration. The disposal was completed
on 30 June 2022. Upon completion, Liaoning Yangguang
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results was no longer consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group.

ZEZZFXNA - BMERE G
Mk REEERAT (L ERD
Faltha - Bt - BMNBARBLE -
FEREREWRERE I%j‘:40%EI’JHx
E-ORERE - BERALERZ
FRNAZTHREK - THE  EEG
KTBRAATNOWE LR - HBHB
¥ETHHAREENMB®RE -

= __
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31 December 2023 R-ZT=-=4%+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRBAEFEREI - LARESIE)

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEME R @)
(b) Disposal of Liaoning Yangguang (continued) by HEEZERXE)
Disposal Date
HER
Note RMB’000
Bt 5 ARM
Net assets disposed of: PEFEE:
Cash and bank balances & R IRAT A R 313
Inventories ey 36,884
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE K E W R IR 6,798
Trade and bills payables ERNESMENERER (39,307)
Other payables and accruals Hib B MBS & B (5,401)
(713)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEB AR 2 W= 6 713
Satisfied by: SANPIEWE
Cash RE —
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash PE—RMNBEARMNBRERRE&EE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary are mEFRE AT
as follows:
2022
—E-_F
RMB’000
AR T
Cash consideration ReRE —
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEEMNEE RBITHES (313)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEEEBANE MRS
of the disposal of Liaoning Yangguang ZEWFRD (313)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRBEFEAHEI - UARKESIE)

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREE
The Company had no significant capital commitment as at 31 BT =%+_-_A=+—HMZ-_ZT=-—
December 2023 and 31 December 2022. FTZA=Z+—8 ARAELE/EERNER
HHE o
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEEA R B
The Group had the following transactions with related parties REEAEEEBBETNZIZOT:
during the year:
(@) Key management personnel remuneration @ TEEIEABFHN
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Salaries, allowances, bonus and e R BENEYH
benefits in kind 3,554 3,211
Retirement scheme contributions RARET 8 5% 16 15

3,570 3,226




38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Transactions with a director of the Company,

associates of the Group and entities controlled by

the directors of the Company

31 December 2023 K=
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (R ZAFHESN -

38. B TR B (&)
(b)

AR B IR AR A

To=f+=f=1—A
SAREFIE)

BEARNRESR  AREBEZRQ
Al RRRERFTE %'JEI@:%’? B

2022
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
The entities controlled by the directors of AN T E F AT &l 0 F 82
the Company :
sales of goods (i) oS E ) 1,526 —
sales of electricity (i) HEEG) 2,674 —
sales services (i) B AR () 1,778 —
rental income (i) ik N() 1,391 —
purchase of goods (i) BEEMI) 1,663 —
rental expenses (i) HEEAG) 767 —
receipt from disposal of a subsidiary (ii) & F B8 A R (i) 439,321 459,900
The associates of the Group : REEKE AT :
sales of goods HEE® — 36,550
A director of the Company : RRAES:
receipt from short-term loan (iii) U B 55 B 1%?}(0”) 864 1,922
repayment of principal of short-term BEEBEREAS
loan — 11,364
repayment of interest of short-term loan BEREBERFE — 1177
interest expense B 60 448
(i) Each of these related party transactions constitutes de minimis (i) EEBBIRFBRABXAARRIE LT

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and is, pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules, fully exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

This related party transaction above which was completed on
30 December 2022 also constitutes connected transaction for
the Company as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

This related party transaction constitutes connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, but is, pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, fully
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules as this related party transaction constitutes
financial assistance received by the Group from a connected
person on normal commercial terms or better and not secured
by assets of the Group.

In the opinion of the directors, the transactions between the
Group and the related parties were conducted in the ordinary
and usual course of business and on normal commercial terms,
and the pricing terms were based on the prevailing market
prices.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RAIZUAENRERENRER S  TRE

ETHRBE14ATEE - TR RN LT R A
FAAEZFEMEBENR  AERBILRRIES
3K e

PR T —F+ZA=+HTKEBEET
25 MERARARIE LT HRBE14ATH
REMBERS °

UL BB T X 5K AR BIRE LA R 14A
EWRERS - BRE EMARRF14A.900% -
TERERETRNEUAZFFHARR - 2
ERBIBRIEER  BRULEBT RS
B AEENREA KRB B8 -
—RREEOBRGEFIEH] - BREUAE
B & EFER -

BEERA AEHEMABALIZHNOZZ R
R—RRIEFNEBEER —ROEEKEK
T MEBGRMEREFNTHERE -
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31 December 2023 R-T=-=4+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FrSEXHEI] -

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c)  Other transactions with related parties

In October 2022, lJinzhou Yangguang entered into an
Equity Transfer Agreement with the Purchasers. Among
the Purchasers, three entities were controlled by Mr.
Tan Wenhua and/or Mr. Tan Xin, which were defined as
related parties of the Group. The total consideration was
approximately RMB1,350,000,000 and RMB900,000,000
therein was related to these three entities. Further details
of the transaction are included in note 12 to the financial
statements.

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties

AARKEDIE)

38. BEE S X5\

(c)

(d)

The entities controlled by the directors AN/ &)= 25 F 22 4l ) 2 82

of the Company :
trade and bills receivables
prepayment, other receivables and

EWEZERRERERE
B FRIR - HAth FEUGRIR

other assets & H A& =
trade payables ERE SRR
other payables H ) J& -t ;B
The associates of the Group: REEBE QT -
trade and bills receivables JEWEZERRE K
A director of the Company (i) MEARIES ()
short-term loan EEER

B HM RS

R F+A BB EKER
FEIREEEGE B AR B E
EER /NEBEEEELH -—MEE
TEARAEEHEHF - BREDNA
A R #1,350,000,0007C * HEfF AR
900,000,000 Z —EEE AR - &
REMFABEHN B REM 12 -

B BE B 7 2 [ET A 1 0K fB IR A R

2023 2022
—E-= = —

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARBFT

1,019 —

— 439,321

651 115

146 —

17,954 40,618

1,672 730

(i)  The Group had an outstanding balance due
to a director of the Company amounted to
HK$1,842,000 (equivalent to RMB1,672,000) as
at the end of the reporting period. This loan was
received from a director of the Company, and the
loan is unsecured, with a 5% annual interest rate.

Except for the short-term loan from a director of the
Company, the other balances were unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and repayable on demand. Trade
receivables from and trade payables to related parties were
repayable or to be settled on settlement period agreed by
both parties.

(i) MR|EHR AEEBHEAKRRQF
W—BEENEREELERA
1,842,000 L(HHE R AR
1,672,0007T) « Z B R AR
AN—REETRES ZEX
REER - FFEAB5% -

BTRARRN - REFTRESNE
HEZN  HUBEIREER %
ERABRBEREE - KAREBIINE
Yo B R A R SR IR AR IR B T M0 TE Y
HEBMRALH -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  39.

AR B IR AR A

31 December 2023 MW-ZE-=F+—-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRBAEFEREI - LARESIE)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2023

Financial assets

Equity investments designated at

BEEMESKE

BREABEBNSTWMBITA
RBEHEHEER  SRMBTANGEE
AN

—EBC-=f
MBEE

Financial

Financial assets at fair value assets at
through other amortised
comprehensive income cost

LU H

AREEEBHEMEGS R 2R 51 i B9

KENHBEE MEEE

Debt
investments
BERE
RMB'000
AR®ET T

Equity

investments

RERE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®ET T AR®ET T

fair value through other NRAREBEEEEDN
comprehensive income % 1 % & — 3,700 — 3,700
Financial assets included in trade and FTAJEWE 5K ZK &
bills receivables RROPBEE 197,643 — 1,777,009 1,974,652
Financial assets included in FPATER B - HAt
prepayments, other receivables U R IE R H A
and other assets EENUBEE — — 86,982 86,982
Pledged deposits BEEBER — — 1,358,000 1,358,000
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY — — 578,364 578,364
197,643 3,700 3,800,355 4,001,698
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FRBEFEAHEI - UARKESIE)
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. R E WM K I A%

(continued)

2023 (continued) —E-=F(#)
Financial liabilities B aE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
DL H B2 5l iR
ol 3 =Ri ot
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR¥ T
Lease liabilities HEEE 27,180 27,180
Trade and bills payables ENESERLEE 2,326,030 2,326,030
Financial liabilities included in other FHACE b 8 58 & T
payables and accruals MW aE 253,957 253,957
Interest-bearing bank and other ATERITREMEE
borrowings 1,431,249 1,431,249
4,038,416 4,038,416
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. REME "MW BT EH®)

(continued)

2022 e
Financial assets MEEE
Financial
Financial assets at fair value assets at
through other amortised
comprehensive income cost Total
LA
DAEBERBEMES B 25 5] B £
Wi isEE MBEE et
Debt Equity
investments investments
BHKRE IRiE®RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTET AR%®TT AR%®TR

Equity investments designated at BBEHEMEESRE

fair value through other WARBERTEN

comprehensive income % 1 & & — 190 — 190
Financial assets included in trade and 3t A JEUE 5 8 X )

bills receivables ERENMKTEE 84,095 — 1,230,920 1,315,015
Financial assets included in STAFEMNFIA - Eft

prepayments, other receivables U R IE & E At

and other assets EENMBEE — — 976,141 976,141
Pledged deposits BEEMBES — — 2,314,201 2,314,201
Cash and cash equivalents RekBELEEY — — 937,897 937,897

84,095 190 5,459,159 5,543,444




184 SOLARGIGA ENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED [ &5Ri% M &R 2 5

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS B IS B R B AR

31 December 2023 M-ZE-=F+—-F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BEEAEIN  LARKZIE)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. RERE WM BT Aw)

(continued)

2022 (continued) —E-_F(#)
Financial liabilities amE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
LA 8 X A8 51 iR
H B EE st
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR®EFT
Lease liabilities HEAaE 25,992 25,992
Trade and bills payables ERESERLKER 3,740,934 3,740,934

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank and other

ST E fh fE A FRIE K E A
A as 571,039 571,039
AERTEREMEER

borrowings 1,338,751 1,338,751
5,676,716 5,676,716
Transfers of financial assets EEMBEE
Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised AEBRIVNCEZGHREE

in their entirety

At 31 December 2023, the Group endorsed and discounted
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Chinese Mainland
(the “Endorsed Bills” and “Discounted Bills”) with a carrying
amount of RMB223,479,000 (2022: RMB115,518,000) to certain
of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”) and obtain the cash and cash
equivalent (the “Discount”). In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards,
which include default risks relating to such Endorsed Bills and
Discounted Bills, and accordingly, it continued to recognise the
full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills and Discounted
Bills. Subsequent to the Endorsement and Discount, the Group
did not retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills and
Discounted Bills, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the
Endorsed Bills and Discounted Bills to any other third parties. As
at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount of the
trade payables settled by the Endorsed Bills during the year to
which the suppliers have recourse was RMB207,326,000 (2022:
RMB115,518,000), the Group pledged the bills receivable of
RMB16,153,000 (2022: Nil) for the short-term borrowings.

HEZZ-=F+=-A=+—10 RKELE
B EKBGIR BB A IR 1T ) R L U
ER(EEZEIRIGBAER])  HiREE
@%Aﬁﬁgzzumooomf?ffi A
R #115,518,00070) + T R ErR - LB
EEMNZEHEINZEZIRNZE(EED
ERBReFReSEW (R - £FR
p= MEIE{%“”TTEEJ‘LIZ B3R - BiEHE
ZEBSEZBRRABEREBENENRR
At AEBEERASEZRRURE
BH2MIEMESR REEREE A&
B RREEMNEBRERSEZBERIE
ZERMEN  BEATCAELE=FHE
ﬁ%*”&%%ﬁﬂiﬁgfﬁﬁﬁafﬁ%ﬁo%@:
T_=F+ZA=1+—H8 #HEFEERE
B REENERSZEERAENESEN
B AR EE A A R207,326,0007T (=
T — 4 AR¥115,518,0007T) - KEEHE
T ARK16,153,000 T EN ZiE (— T =
ZECEVEAEBER-
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (%%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ%% ’

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Transfers of financial assets (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety (continued)

As part of its normal business, the Group entered into a
trade receivable factoring arrangement (the “Arrangement”)
and transferred certain trade receivables to a bank. Under the
Arrangement, the Group may be required to reimburse the bank
for loss of interest if any trade debtors have late payment up
to 180 days. The Group is not exposed to default risks of the
trade debtors after the transfer. Subsequent to the transfer,
the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the trade
receivables, including the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade
receivables to any other third parties. The carrying amount
of the assets that the Group continued to recognise as at 31
December 2023 was RMB23,059,000 (2022: RMB33,356,000)
and that of the associated liabilities as at 31 December 2023
was RMB18,000,000 (2022: RMB32,678,000).

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

At 31 December 2023, the Group endorsed and discounted
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Chinese Mainland
(the "Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a
carrying amount in aggregate of RMB1,339,542,000 (2022:
RMB954,593,000) and to obtain the cash and cash equivalent
amounting to RMB316,965,000 (2022: RMB1,000,000). The
Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to six months at
the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law
of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills may exercise the right of recourse against any,
several or all of the persons liable for the Derecognised Bills,
including the Group, in disregard of the order of precedence
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors,
the risk of the Group being claimed by the holders of the
Derecognised Bills is remote in the absence of a default of the
accepted banks. The Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it
has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group's Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

e mRMEE

31 December 2023 R-ZE—-=#+-"A=+—H

ARKIIE)

REREI>WBEITAE

HRUYBEE B
A2BRINCEHRMEEE (H)

EREEREBN—HD  NEEFTLT—
EE%%W%E%@?HU@?%D I #%
KUB oK RIBERZES —RIRTT - RIEZ
ﬁm'miﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁALﬁfﬁgwo

CAEEARE R EMRITREN BB -
WL%& REBMIBASTEZGBEBEANE
HER - NEEE  AEEYREREEMNE
A RESEWFIENET - BIERERE
tE=FRE  ERIEFEFHEWFE -
HEZZZ_=F+ZA=+—H XEH#E
BEERHEEREEEAARK23,059,000
TT(ZZF==F : AR¥33,356,0007T) © &L
B _=F+ZA=+—HNEBAEER
HE{EE A ARE18,000,000T (=T = —4F:
A R #32,678,0007T) °

E2BRINCERIBEE

HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—H AK£EE
B E N AR IR R R B A SR 1T AR Y R L LR
ZR(ERNER]) FRLMEER  UEE
ENZEHERNESEMNRIE  BIREE
A ARE1,339,542,000 (T = —4F: A
R #0954,593,0007T) ' WH{SIR & RBEEF
B A R%316,965,0007L (—ZF — —
A R #1,000,00070) - EBIIEE R R EH
KOFBHBEA—ZXNMEA - RIBFEFEARKL
MEEEZE  ERIEZBENFBEAAULE
EERIER - HERIZEROTMA - HEK
EMHETABREBEASE)TERBRE(HE
28])  BERE  EARLEBITRENNG
ﬁT AEERERIEENBTEABRY

BIRE - AEBEEBE BRI Z K ERH
m%?%ﬁﬂ B REHR - Bt - $EIEM
FIERIIEBERIEEESENSREN S
REEE - $Elﬁ5/ﬁathﬁm
BEAEERERRLAEOBELERIZENHR
AR RSREENEREEE E2RE
AEBBEL2HBDRINEZEENAALBAEAL
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39.

40.

RZZ=Z=F+=—A=+—H
UARETIE)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Transfers of financial assets (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Endorsed Bills, and recognised interest expense amounting to
RMB2,073,000 (2022: RMB223,000) on the date of transfer of
Discounted Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from the
Continuing Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.
The endorsement and the discount has been made evenly
throughout the year.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at 31 December 2023 were assessed to be
insignificant.

39.

40.

REHIINMBITAE@®

BEMHEEE)
E2BRINCEZVREE (H)

HE_Z-_=F+-"A=+—HIEERN "
AEEVARASEZEREEAELD
EAU Sk BL  WHRARZEEEARER
FMEBEMARE2073,000 (2= —4F: A
R#223,00070) - REE R ETERE - I
AERBFESHELENTMNRFIRIEBR -
EERMBEEREFFET -

RFERAFERER

FIBA SR A ENMEEEMBED
IREEE BER_ZT-_ZFR_FT-_F
+- A=+ BNAABEIEERE=SR -

B BAERENAEEN KB A TR
ETEMITAAABEMENREMERF -
MBREERANERMBEENESFLZES
RE -GEHBEBRER UBALMPOIM
TABENEY IREHETERNIE
WA - HERERMBEEELNLLE -
BFEBERZE N WMRAT HBREME
R-NETHPHRNFERHRSE -

MBEEEMARENAABEERERE L
REZEMXSTANIBTANEE  MT
EREHBFHEHIERENESE -

FRBBAZFERITMEMERN AR
BEESBEBAERAEABEUGR  EREAR
ME RN TAEME AT AN XITHE
HHARRERERFEN BE_FT—
=FEFA=1T B ARAKEYHFEER
1T M EL A f8 SR0R R B9 3F B 40 R B 1 28 B A0
ARNBEEHRRB/ETERN -
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. 2 ¥ ERAFEEEHK &)
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments as at 31
December 2023 are determined by using the adjusted net assets
value method, with unobservable inputs of net assets value.
The fair value measurements are positively correlated to the net

BE_T-_=F+t-_A=t—H ' KRETK
BEENAABEAERARRFIEEE
% EPFEEENBABTIES - AR
BEGERFEEEZ LHERE -

assets value.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair HRUAABEFEAEZEH T AHLME
value through other comprehensive income, management has SR ELITRERENAAEE  BR
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible BEtstERAeaRaen BRI RIERM
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model. BEEAGABEBNBEZE -

Fair value hierarchy R ERER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHAEPLAEESHRTITANAREBAENE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: [E 4% :

WARBETENEE
RZE-_=ZF+=-FR=+—H

Assets measured at fair value
As at 31 December 2023

Fair value measurement using
ARBEFESER

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets other
for identical observable
assets inputs
()] (Level 2)
HEEEMN EENHM
ERTEHRE THEHA
(E-E&) (F=E#)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)
BEART
BRBA
(E=BHR)
RMB’000
AR® TR

Fair value at
31 December

2023
R-2-=%
T=A=1-H
WAREE
RMB’000
ARETR

MBEE

Financial assets

Equity investments designated at fair WA EEEHE

value through other comprehensive ~ ZB)5t A E 454
income WErRERE 3,700 - - 3,700
Bills receivable eSS 197,643 — 197,643 —
201,343 — 197,643 3,700
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 40. 2 ¥ ERAFEE &K@
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EER(E)
Assets measured at fair value (continued) UNARBEFENEE(E)

As at 31 December 2022

Fair value measurement using
RREEFHENER

Quoted prices in Significant

active markets other Significant

Fair value at for identical observable unobservable

31 December assets inputs inputs

2022 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

i S EREEMN EEMHM ERATH

+=ZRA=+-H ERTISEE TEZEEA BEHA

MRRER (E—E&) (FZER) (B=ZE®R)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBEFT ARBFT ARBEFT ARBFT

Financial assets HBEE

Equity investments designated at fair MAAEBEFEHHE
value through other comprehensive  Z B)it A E iz 4

income Y RERE 190 - — 190

Bills receivable eSS 84,095 - 84,095 -

84,285 — 84,095 190

FREZER2ANAAEEFESHE

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during

the year are as follows: T:
2023 2022
—E-=F —EFq-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBF T
Equity investments at fair value through KAAREBEFEAR
other comprehensive income PEFTAREMER S
W a R i i &
At 1 January R—H—H 190 190
Additions 0 3,700 —
Disposals BE (190) —
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 3,700 190
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalent
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit
terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.

e mRMEE

To=f+=f=1—A
A RMIE)

MHRBEERNREEK

31 December 2023 K=

AEENTESBTABRRITIREMESE
fEE HRekBReEEBYAREERFR -
ZECBIANTIZANERAAEENEE
E8Ee AEBEZHAMESREER
BE - PImERBESERRENESRX
BEEREHZE -

FEReRmIAEENTIZRARAGEER
B~ REBE SRR - N KB A HMNE R
EEeELWREBEEEELARMEE -
BT -

@ EERR

AEEERFERLFREEVENS
ZHEITRS c MEAKENRE
ERZEREGRRETIINEL K
ARBEERERRFR HUEE-
S AEEEREEEREKGH
MIER MASE 2 ZRRRYTNE
ReHRARERABBREEUIIRER
BAENRS  KREEEZEHAZA
RS RIHEfE - AEBE ARG RHEERK

e
A °

BB AN R RER

TRETREAEEEEHEZEE
AERERARBARAR(LIE
REBEAMANR (BIEHEEBEH
RSN A B R AR 8 ) R
WA= A=+ —B2FRRESHE -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

AARKEDIE)

4. BEEBEEENREE®

@ 1EERRE
& BB B R BE B ()
R-F-_=ZF+-_HA=1+—H
Lifetime ECLs

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2023
12-month ECLs

REARH
BEFSE 2HEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FER B EE]EE B A% )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn  AR%Txn
Trade receivables* JEWE 5B - - - 1,731,589 1,731,589
Bills receivable ERZEE
— Not yet past due —UARBH 287,397 - - — 287,397
Financial assets included in HBEEECABEBRATE
prepayments and other current R EMREEE
assets
— Normal** — EF* 86,982 - - — 86,982
— Doubtful** — RE* - - - - -
Restricted deposits RHIFR
— Not yet past due —UARBH 1,358,000 - - — 1,358,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEER
— Not yet past due —UARBH 578,364 - - — 578,364
2,310,743 - - 1,731,589 4,042,332
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

31 December 2023
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (R ZAFHESN -

AR B IR AR A

R-ZE-_=F+=-A=+—H
AAREESIME)

4. BHEREEENRBE®

Credit risk (continued) @ FERR®E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) EmRERRFERER(E)
As at 31 December 2022 RZFZZF+=ZH=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
REAES
EEEE LHESEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
1B EylEe E3RB Bl A @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFTT  ARETT  AREFT  ARET:
Trade receivables® LGl - - - 1,147,814 1,147,814
Bills receivable W EE
— Not yet past due —UABE 229,237 — — — 229,237
Financial assets included in HBEEEDABERATE
prepayments and other curent  REMRHEE
— Normal** — EE* 86,819 - - - 86,819
— Doubtful** — RE* - — - - —
Restricted deposits RAIFR
— Not yet past due —UABE 2,314,201 — — — 2,314,201
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEERE
— Not yet past due —UARBE 937,897 — — — 937,897
3,568,154 - - 1,147,814 4,715,968

* %k

For trade receivables included in trade, bills receivables and
contract assets, to which the Group applies the simplified
approach,
disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

information based on the provision matrix is

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other current assets is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, bills receivables
and contract assets, and prepayments and other current
assets are set out in notes 22 and 23.

* %

MASEEABEBSCHEZEERE
SEF(BEREBERESERREEM
BREE)ME  REBBERZAR
KRB REMT2RHE -

BAIABRMKR AR BEE T &
BRMETEENBERYBEEAN S
BRUARZEERRE AR LFE -
HEEAXBARIES] TR - B
BEEZEEERWERIRE] -

AEEEEHERESRRIRREM
BHEE BENREAREMRDEE
FMEXZFERREBZE—FEE
B 0 B B S R M iE22 238

3= o
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AARKEDIE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily depending on its
ability to maintain adequate cash flows from operations,
to renew its short-term bank loans and to obtain
adequate external financing to support its working capital
and meet its obligations and commitments when they
become due. Management is taking certain actions to
address these conditions in accordance with the Group's
policy of regularly monitoring its current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. These actions
include negotiating with banks to renew the short term
loans and to explore the availability of alternative sources
of financing.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

(b)

4. BHEEBEEENREE®

MEE &
AEERDESCETEXRFENKEF
HFEHEERSRE EEHEEH
RITERRRGEE IR E AT FH
HEBEBESRNIMKBETHEER
EENEED c REBEAEEFTHERE
EHMBERARDE ST KOBE
EREERZEBRREE T78
NEREA#FTHVRSFHELMEXR
CRREDNSECAKEEEE N
ENREPNRBEST R - ZFT
Eﬁ@?ﬁﬁifﬂﬁ};ﬂ%?ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁg
FERFABAEMEERSE

TREHAEEH B AENREHME
BEANBTANFR  FHEMBA
BEARFTRAOADRE (BERE
BRI E ey (0 R% )R RS B
,%3%5 BE ATA RS E AR BAR0 A R&
AEBEAESNZFARESER -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BIXEREEENRBEE®E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) by mBERRE)

2023
ZEC-CE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AFBEHRLRE
[[CRUEL More than
Carrying Within 1year but 2 years but

amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
Rt=A
=t+-Bf Rt Af-f BEmE
REE BE  BERAR  BORWE  BOREE BBILE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  AR¥Tn  AR¥TR  AR¥Tn  AR¥TR  AR¥T:R

Interest-bearing bank and HERBAREBER
other borrowings 1,431,249 1,471,143 1,442,313 28,830 - -
Trade and s payables ERBARARENTE 2326030 2,326,030 2,326,030 - - -
Other payables and accruals HiERREREHER 253,957 253,957 253,957 - - -
Lease liablities HERE 27,180 29,938 5,707 4,897 13,688 5,646
4,038,416 4,081,068 4,028,007 33721 13,688 5,646
2022
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRENRLR
More than More than
Carrying Within 1 year but 2 years but
amount at 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December Total on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
i
=t+-R —ERF BA-% BAME
EHE 8% EEREAE  BSRRE EORIDE BALE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBFR  ARBTR  ARETRT  AR¥TRT  ARET:
Interest-bearing bank and HEHMBOREMER
other borrowings 1,338,751 1.397,690 1,305,593 92,097 - -
Trade and hills payables ERESEFRENER 374093 3740934 3740934 - - -
Other payables and accruals HERFEREHER 571,039 571,039 571,039 - - -
Lease liabilities HEER 2599 26,186 3,300 3532 11,725 7629

5,676,716 5,735,849 5,620,866 95,629 1,725 7629
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RZZ=Z=F+=—A=+—H
UARETIE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and variable rate borrowings in order to manage its
interest rate risks. As at the end of 2023, the interest rates
for 98.5% (2022: 86.5%) of the Group’ debts were fixed.
The fixed interest rates can reduce the volatility of finance
costs under uncertain environments and the Company
and its subsidiaries’ exposure to changes in interest rates
is not expected to be material. During the year, however,
the management of the Group did not consider that it
is necessary to use interest rate swaps to hedge their
exposure to interest.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases, bank loans and cash and bank
deposits that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The primary
currencies giving rise to this risk are United States dollar,
Euro and Hong Kong dollar. Management does not expect
any significant impact from movements in exchange rates
since the Group uses the foreign currencies collected from
customers to settle the amounts due to suppliers.

4. BHEEBEEENREE®

(@)

% L b

NEE T H® R ERETE RFEF
RIEZWMEE  AEBRBEFZRER -
HEZZTZ-=FK  A%EH85% (=
T ZF:865% MEBFNEE R
TE o [EE FI R AL 5 N E MIIR IR TR
LREKANESE  BEFEBHARR
HEFRARUTGREEBEBENFERE
fbe R REER NEEHERE
B AEEENEFE BRI BRY
REF R -

S BE [ B

REBAZNINERR  EEREMN
ShEs (BB XX S ME R M R 5 ThRE B DA
SN BTG EMHERERE - RIT
EFXNERERRITER - EXZA
BHMEBTERZTT BTRBET-
EREYTAHEXSE G EREM
EARE RARAKEERBEF
Y ER ) SN ESTE (8 FE A (B P 5R0R -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. BHEEBREEENRBE®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (continued) d) HNEE R B (%)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (i HNER B

The following table details the Group’s exposure TRFNAEERREHRELE
at the end of the reporting period to currency HHAENINER R - SNE R
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities in S AE B EEE T e B IS LA Hb
the consolidated statement of financial position EBTENERESMBARR
(after elimination of intercompany receivables and 7 (B8 85 2 7 ) e W 50 08 I pE A+
payables) denominated in a currency other than RIBR)ERANEEXBEME
the functional currency of the entity to which they &
relate.

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)

HAERR(AARYSE)
022
5o CF
United United
States Hong Kong States Hong Kong
Dollar Euro Dollar Dollar furo Dollar
in B i3 E3 B #E

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR RN P So

Trade, bills receivables and contract assets ~~ EUERENRZERANHEE 24,463 165,827 - - 318,898 -
Cash at banks and on hand FARFERS 83,525 16,152 3,995 1 107913 1,040
Intrest-bearing loans HEER (38,387) - (1672) 0,749 (157766) 13
Trade and bills payebles ENE5EARER (119) (53) - 2] - -

69,482 181,926 233 (21759) 269,045 30
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit/(loss) for the year and
in equity in response to reasonably possible changes
in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period.

4. BEEREEENRBE®

() 5hEE B ()

(i) GRS
TRERAEBERANR B ESHE
GHEAEEARBRMHER
EHBARED HRAEE
R (5 1) R 2 B
RIBNEF &8 o

Increase/(decrease) in profit

FIEE M O D)
Increase/
(decrease)
in foreign
exchange
rates 2023 2022
ExLH A
(TH®) =—TB-=F =—ZB-Z-fF
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TrR
United States Dollar ETT 10 6,948 (2,176)
(10) (6,948) 2,176
Euro BRIt 10 18,193 26,905
(10) (18,193) (26,905)
Hong Kong Dollar B 10 232 31
(10) (232) (31

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments (excluding
intercompany receivables and payables which are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements)
held by the Group which exposed the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial
statements of the group companies into the
presentation currency. The analysis has been
performed on the same basis as 2022.

FIFYJ* PR RERAEH
EXREHEHFEAEERF
*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁi&%ﬁﬂ?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%
ﬁl\EHAE’JEZ%EM‘%IH(T’T
ERAVBERRTEHEOAD
] e R TR B R AR IR e Tﬁ
$@$ﬁﬂﬁ$‘§@ﬁﬁ%$&i€?@”
REREEMELENEZRE - —
ZZFMR Tﬁml«(*ﬁﬂﬁ’]%@g
i
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a
gearing ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines gearing
ratio as the ratio of total borrowings, less cash and cash
equivalents, to the total of share capital and reserves.

e mRMEE

31 December 2023 R-ZT-_=F#+—-A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BB AEEREEIN «

ARKIIE)

4. BHEREEENRBE®

(e)

B ER
AEEESEENTIZABRAREAR
SEFELENRES  LHEFRED
BALE  UXHEEBAERRE
BE&AKIL -

REBEBREEARLERE  WRELE
R B MEREEENEREE
HEHBETHAE RERBIARELRE
B ASETESAERREIREDN
BB MBREREEALETIHR -
AN £ 8 1 52 AT ] S0 SR i A0 A9 B AR Sk
ZHR - BE-_T-_=ZF+-A=+
—HMZETZ=ZF+=ZA=+—HL
FE EEEAMERE  BEIRRE
REBEEFL o

AEENEEARLXERAERE
Beoltms AEESEEAGBL
XEBRRIEERR RESRBAESE
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41.

42.

43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M. BHERBEEENRBER®
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued) ) BE2EHEE)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were RZBZ=FR-ZT-__F+=AH =
as follows: +—HMEEBBLENT:
2022
—B-=fF —F-—
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR® T ARBFT
Current liabilities: REEE:
Bank and other loans R 1T M HoAth B 3R 26 1,403,010 1,246,979
Non-current liabilities: RBEE:
Bank and other loans RITMEMER 26 28,239 91,772
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 38 : IR & NIBELEEY 25 (578,364) (937,897)
Net debt FEE 852,885 400,854
Share capital [N 285,924 285,924
Reserves & 8 891,100 815,680
1,177,024 1,101,604
Gearing ratio EEBBHE 72% 36%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject RRB R EEMNE QRS HAEST
to externally imposed capital requirements. HNFEBE DN A E A E o
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42, SREHHREE
No significant events after the reporting period are noted. RBEHE WEAAEEMTEREENSE
B4
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 43. L RHF

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due
to the adoption of the new and revised IFRSs/HKFRSs during
the current year, the accounting treatment and presentation
of certain items and balances in the financial statements have
been revised to comply with the new requirements. Accordingly,
certain prior year adjustments have been made, and certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified and restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation and accounting
treatment.

IS MR 2.2 — F R RS
ERBHMOREETH R B REER
BEVBREER  PHHRRPRXLEER
HRENGHRERIIBEERT  UTAHR
E o Bt SRR LATHIRE XL
ReWOENEREL  UNAXFENT
BERERE -
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44. XAT M E AR R T
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the RBEEHHEEEARARBHEMRAENE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: eSO
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBTF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARMEE 1,384,462 1,364,678
Current assets REBEE
Cash at banks and on hand RITEFHEBE® 1,421 1,851
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HiERNRIBRETER 107,172 114,371
Net current liabilities RBEEER (105,751) (112,520)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERABER 1,278,711 1,252,158
Net assets EEFRE 1,278,711 1,252,158
Capital and reserves BEXREE
Share capital fi& A 285,924 285,924
Reserves (note 34) ik 4 (BT 5234) 992,787 966,234

Total equity EEEE 1,278,711 1,252,158
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44. KRR BRI T H®)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: M2 -
Share Exchange Accumulated Total
premium reserve losses reserves
R ig® ERffH 2itEE BEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARBT ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2022 R-B--F-B-AMEH 1,752,401 (105,992) (614,802) 1,031,607
Loss for the year FEBR - - (4,077) (4,077)
Special dividend (note 13) BBl R 8 (M 313) (211,513) — — (211,513)
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - 150,217 — 150,217
Total comprehensive income EXON 1 (211,513) 150,217 (4.077) (65,373)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-B--E+-A=+-RANEH 1,540,888 44,225 (618,879) 966,234
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZB-=ZF-A-AN&H 1,540,888 44,225 (618,879) 966,234
Loss for the year EEBE - - (4,426) (4,426)
Qther comprehensive income EREITTON - 30,979 - 30,979
Total comprehensive income PAMANEE - 30,979 (4,426) 26,553
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZZE+ZR=+-BHER 1,540,888 75,204 (623,305) 992,787
45. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 45. #itEM B ®R
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EEgRRTME=A-TLtHZEL

by the board of directors on 27 March 2024. TR BB ®mE o
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